Evershine Group Holdings Limited
KEEEZERERD A

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)
(REBFTMLZ BRAT])
Stock Code Rt 5% : 8022

ANNUAL REPORT

2016

F &,

AVAVAVAVAV —

i



CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be
aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after
due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a
market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be
more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility
for the contents of this report, makes no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim
any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents
of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Evershine Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) collectively
and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of
giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to
the best of their knowledge and belief, the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material
respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which would make any
statement herein or this report misleading.
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STATEMENT FROM THE BOARD

EFERE

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”), | hereby present
the Group’s annual report for the year ended 31 December 2016.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS OF 2016 FISCAL YEAR

Revenue of the Group from continuing operations for 2016 was
approximately HK$135,462,000 which increased by 86% as
compared to approximately HK$72,900,000 last year. Compared
to the loss for the year of HK$13,530,000 in 2015, loss for the
year of HK$64,924,000 was recorded. Loss per share in 2016 was
approximately 4.49 HK cents, compared to a loss of 1.42 HK cents
per share in 2015. The Board does not recommend any dividend
payment for 2016.

OVERVIEW FOR 2016 OPERATIONS AND PROSPECTS

While we faced with an undoubtedly challenging year in 2016, the
Group continued to focus on our strategy of increasing synergy
among the Group’s core businesses and seek new revenue sources
and favourable opportunities by ways of acquisitions and capital
investments. The volatile economic environment impacted us;
nonetheless, the Group has been making every effort to broaden
the source of income while also reducing the operating loss.

The Group is tapping into the properties development and
construction market this year with the acquisition of a construction
company in the Republic of Turkey (“Turkey”). Taking advantage
of the favorable environment of the “One-Belt-One-Road” initiative,
along with the strong demand of housing and infrastructure
in Turkey, we believe that the business in Turkey will bring
visible economic benefits and give the Group the ability to grow
substantially.

The Group has also entered into several memorandums of
understanding and sales and purchases agreements with various
parties regarding the acquisition of various businesses and assets.
It demonstrates our efforts on seeking new business opportunities
and our striving for maximising the potential benefits to the
shareholders.

During the year, the cemetery business in Henan commenced
sales of niches and burial plots. The unique market structure in
PRC has created a moat for existing company to prevent from new
competitors. The cemetery business is expected to continuously
contribute steady income to the Group in 2017. We are very excited
about the future potential of the cemetery business.
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STATEMENT FROM THE BOARD

EFERE

The Group has also engaged in properties investment and money
lending business this year. During the year, we acquired two
properties in Wan Chai, Hong Kong. One of the properties has
been used as the headoffice and one of the properties has been
leased to tenants to earn rental income while we also capture any
possible future capital appreciation. On the other hand, our wholly
owned subsidiary company Ottoman Evershine Finance Limited,
has been granted for a money lender license in Hong Kong under
the Money Lenders Ordinance. The Company intends to commence
the money lending business as one of its principal businesses. We
believe that the business would extend the scope of the Group’s
existing businesses and broaden the Group’s revenue basis, that
enhance our profitability.

Looking forward to 2017, the Group is optimistic and will continue
to adopt sound and flexible strategies to ensure stable and healthy
business growth by leveraging on our strengths and experiences.
We will continuously seek and cultivate every investment
opportunity, so as to empower them to realise their full potential.

On behalf of the Board, | wish to take this opportunity to express
our appreciation to the management and staff of the Group for their
guidance and invaluable expertise in guiding the Group through the
year's challenges. | would also like to extend my gratitude to all our
shareholders for their unswerving belief and continued confidence
in Evershine Group Holdings Limited.

On behalf of the Board

Biilent Yenal
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 24 March 2017
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THREWRLE 5

The board of Directors (the “Board”) of Evershine Group Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) herein presents the audited annual results
of the Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) for the
financial year ended 31 December 2016 (“Year”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the Year, the Group engaged in travel agency business, trading
business, mobile application business, properties development and
investment business, cemetery business, money lending business
and marketing and advertising business. Details of the associate
company and the principal subsidiaries of the Group are disclosed
in Notes 18 and 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

During the Year, the Group recorded revenue from continuing
operations of approximately HK$135,462,000 (2015: approximately
HK$72,900,000). The increase in revenue was mainly attributable to
the increase in trading of commodities during the Year. The Group’s
loss attributable to shareholders increased to approximately
HK$65,399,000 for the Year (2015: approximately HK$11,996,000).
Such increase of the loss was attributable to (i) the increase of
certain operating expenses including depreciation expenses of
office premises, staff costs and rental expenses of approximately
HK$4,784,000; (ii) the increase of impairment loss on intangible
assets and goodwill of approximately HK$24,689,000; (iii) the
increase of finance costs of approximately HK$10,813,000; and (iv)
the decrease of gain on disposal of subsidiaries of approximately
HK$15,949,000.

Travel Agency Business

The financial results of the travel agency business has dropped
drastically due to slower economy and strong competition.
During the Year, the revenue contributed from the travel agency
segment was approximately HK$19,358,000 (2015: approximately
HK$40,348,000). The operating cost has been increasing as a
result the business is unprofitable. The Group has entered into an
memorandum of understanding with an independent party for the
possible disposal of the travel agency business at the end of 2015.

Mobile Application Business

During the Year, the revenue contributed from the mobile
application business was approximately HK$86,000 (2015:
approximately HK$2,103,000). The current mobile application
business including a mobile game application of the name “Ninja
in Barrel” and a mobile application named “Patalogue”. Due to
continuous changing of market practices in terms of payment
gateway integration, mobile application publishing and market
acceptance, the performance of this business was lower than
expected. The Group also considered that without full support from
a software solution team and software publication team, the existing
two products are hardly remain competitive in the market.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THBEWLER S

With reference to the valuation reports issued by an independent
external valuer, the Directors have made a further impairment
loss of approximately HK$10,997,000 (2015: approximately
HK$617,000) in respect of the carrying amount of the goodwill; and
approximately HK$4,660,000 (2015: Nil) in respect of the carrying
amount of intangible assets — mobile application which were
arising from the acquisition of “Patalogue” during the year ended
31 December 2014. Also with reference to the valuation reports
issued by an independent external valuer, the Directors have made
an impairment loss of approximately HK$9,649,000 in respect of
the carrying amount of intangible assets — operating rights of “Ninja
in Barrel” which was arising from the acquisition during the year
ended 31 December 2014. As a result, total impairment loss of
approximately HK$25,306,000 was recorded (2015: HK$617,000)
and segment loss of approximately HK$37,109,000 was recorded
(2015: HK$12,030,000).

Trading Business

The Group has started its trading business in commodities, mainly
included but not limited to steaming coal and chrome, since the
last quarter of 2015. We have established an experienced team to
handle the transactions. During the Year, the revenue contributed
from the trading segment was approximately HK$115,185,000
(2015: approximately HK$30,449,000). We believe the commodity
prices are consolidating at current level and therefore the trading
activities will become more robust in the coming future. The Group
intends to obtain banking facilities for further development of the
trading business.

Properties Development and Investment

During the Year, the Group acquired two properties in Wan Chai,
Hong Kong. One of the properties has been used as the headoffice
and one of the properties has been leased out to earn rental income
while they also capture any possible future capital appreciation.
During the Year, approximately HK$833,000 rental income were
received from tenants (2015: Nil) and a gain on fair value change
of investment property of approximately HK$6,981,000 was
recognised (2015: Nil).

The Group is also tapping into building construction, properties
development and trading of construction materials business through
its associate company in the Republic of Turkey (“Turkey”).

During the Year, a gain on bargain purchase in relation to the
acquisition of 30% of the share capital of the associate company
amounted approximately HK$2,416,000 was recognised upon the
completion of acquisition (2015: Nil).

Details of the acquisition of the properties and the associate
Company are discussed in the section of “Material Acquisition and
Significant Investments” in this report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THBEWLE S

Cemetery Business

The Group has entered in the cemetery business in the PRC
through the acquisition of the entire issued share capital of Fortune
Ford Limited which was completed on 30 November 2015. The
cemetery services segment is experiencing reform in the PRC
that favours officially approved operators. Due to the growing
demand for legitimate burial and limited supply, the price of burial
plot in the PRC has been soaring in recent years. It is a valuable
opportunity for the Group to be able to participate in this business
sector. During the last quarter of the Year, the Group commenced
sales of niches and burial plots, approximately HK$100,000 were
received as deposits for those sold niches burial plots. We believe
the contribution of the cemetery business would be significant in the
coming years.

Money Lending Business

To diversify the business of the Group, the Board has been
considering and exploring for appropriate opportunities. During
the Year, Ottoman Evershine Finance Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, has been granted for a money lender
licence in Hong Kong under the Money Lenders Ordinance and
commenced the money lending business. Subsequent to the year
end of 31 December 2016, we have made loans to customers and
we will closely monitor the credit status of the loan portfolio and
look for new customers in order to broaden the revenue basis of the
Group.

Marketing and Advertising Business

The performance of the marketing and advertising business has
been disappointing. This is due to a shift from media marketing
to internet marketing. The financial information of this segment is
disclosed under discontinuing operations of the Group in Note 11 to
the consolidated financial statements. During the Year, revenue of
approximately HK$2,106,000 (2015: HK$872,000) was recognised.
On 30 March 2016, the Group ceased to carry on the business
of advertising and marketing services. Details were disclosed to
Company’s announcement dated 30 March 2016.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THBEWLER S

Other Corporate Income, Expenses and Finance Costs

During the Year, the Company and one of the promissory note
holder agreed to extend the promissory note issued on 30
November 2015 with its principal amount of HK$30,320,000 and
matured on 30 November 2016 to 30 November 2017 with other
terms remain the same. The fair value as at the date of extension
was approximately HK$27,509,000. Hence, a gain on fair value
change in relation to the extension for the maturity of approximately
HK$2,811,000 was recognised (2015: Nil).

During the Year, the corporate expenses of approximately
HK$21,460,000 not allocated to business segments (2015:
approximately HK$16,448,000) was mainly attributable to operating
expenses including legal and professional fee, staff costs including
Directors’ remuneration and also rental expenses.

Finance costs for the Year amounts to HK$12,542,000 (2015:
HK$1,729,000), the increase of which was mainly due to the
increased borrowings of the Group during the Year and effective
interest expenses arising from promissory notes and convertible
notes of the Group.

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: HKS$NIil).

FINANCIAL POSITION

Charges on Group’s Assets

As at 31 December 2016, there were term loans with total principal
amount of approximately HK$52,000,000 which carry interest at
4.75% per annum above the Hong Kong Dollar Best Lending Rate
with repayment period of 24 months. The loans were secured by i)
first legal charges of the two properties acquired by the Company
which was completed on 27 June 2016; ii) the Company’s
corporate guarantee; iii) an unlimited personal guarantee given by
Mr. Hung Tat Chi Alan, an executive Director of the Company; and
iv) assignments of rental of the properties. Details of the properties
are disclosed in the section of “Material Acquisition and Significant
Investments” in this report.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2016, the total assets of the Group was
approximately HK$421,923,000 (2015: HK$308,576,000),
including cash and bank balances and restricted bank deposits of
approximately HK$14,812,000 (2015: HK$42,738,000). The gearing
ratio of the Group expressed in total debt as a percentage of net
assets was approximately 96.16% (2015: 31.23%).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THBEWLE S

Capital Structure

The number of issued shares of the Company as at 31 December
2015 and 2016 were 1,142,677,356 and 1,502,677,356 shares
respectively.

Convertible notes issued on 30 November 2015

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement dated 15
September 2015, the Company issued convertible notes in the
principal amount of HK$49,680,000 to the vendor as part of the
consideration to satisfy the acquisition of Fortune Ford Limited. The
vendor exercised the conversion rights attaching to the convertible
notes on 20 January 2016 and 15 March 2016, 181,159,420 and
178,840,580 of new shares have been allotted and issued at the
conversion price of HK$0.138 per conversion share respectively.

Details were disclosed in the Company’s announcements dated
15 September 2015 and 30 November 2015 and circular dated 7
November 2015.

Convertible notes issued on 3 June 2016

Pursuant to the subscription agreement dated 3 June 2016,
the Company has completed the issue of convertible notes of
principal amount of HK$30,000,000. On the assumption that the
convertible notes would be converted into conversion shares
in full at the initial conversion price of HK$0.4 per conversion
share, the 75,000,000 conversion shares represent approximately
4.99% of the existing issued share capital of the Company and
approximately 4.75% of the issued share capital of the Company
as to be enlarged by the allotment and issue of the conversion
shares. The net proceeds of the subscription was approximately
HK$25,000,000 and (i) approximately HK$11,000,000 has been
used to partially repay outstanding promissory notes and short-
term loan; (ii) approximately HK$8,000,000 has been used for
procurement of inventories of the commaodities trading business;
and (iii) approximately HK$6,000,000 has been used as general
working capital of the Group. No convertible notes were converted
into shares of the company during the Year.

Details were disclosed in the Company’s announcements dated 16
May 2016 and 3 June 2016.

COMMITMENTS

The details of the capital commitments incurred during the year
ended 31 December 2016 are set out in Note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND SIGNIFICANT
INVESTMENTS

Acquisition of Properties in Hong Kong

On 24 March 2016, the Company and an independent third party
(the “Vendor”) entered into two acquisition agreements (the
“Acquisition Agreements”), pursuant to which the Company has
conditionally agreed to acquire and the Vendor has conditionally
agreed to sell the entire share capital of Spring Hero Developments
Limited (“Spring Hero”) and Sharp Pick Ventures Limited (“Sharp
Pick”) (the “Acquisition”). Spring Hero and Sharp Pick individually
is the owner of the whole of the 15th Floor and 16th Floor of Henan
Building, Nos. 90 and 92 Jaffe Road and Nos. 15-19 Luard Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong, respectively (“Property A” and “Property
B”, respectively) and the principal business activity is property
investment. The saleable floor area of Property A and Property
B was approximately 2,346 square feet and 2,324 square feet,
respectively, while the fair value of Property A and Property B was
approximately HK$44,983,000 and HK$44,830,000, respectively.

The Acquisition was approved by shareholders in the extraordinary
general meeting held on 10 June 2016 and the Acquisition was
completed on 27 June 2016.

The aggregate total consideration of the Acquisition was
approximately HK$53,332,000 which were satisfied by i) cash of
approximately HK$4,900,000 and ii) promissory notes issued to
the Vendor with principal amount in aggregate of HK$48,432,000
carrying a fixed interest rate at 6% per annum.

Upon the completion of the Acquisition, Property A was leased to
independent tenants and was classified as investment property of
the Group while Property B was occupied by the Group for office use
and hence was classified as office premises of the Group.

Details of the Acquisition were disclosed in the Company’s
announcements dated 24 March 2016, 19 April 2016, 6 May 2016,
20 May 2016, 27 June 2016 and 5 July 2016 and circular dated 24
May 2016.
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Investment in Boyraci Yapi insaat ve Taahhut Gayrimenkul
Yatirnm Anonim Sirketi in Turkey

Pursuant to the sales and purchase agreement entered into
between Ottoman Evershine insaat Proje Ticaret Anonim Sirketi
(“Ottoman Evershine Consturction”), a company incorporated in
Turkey and an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
and Mr. Osman Boyraci on 7 December 2016, Ottoman Evershine
Consturction acquried 30% of the share capital of Boyraci
Yap! insaat ve Taahhut Gayrimenkul Yatirrm Anonim Sirketi
(“Boyraci Building Construction and Contracting” or “BBCC”) at
a consideration of US$5,780,000 (approximately equivalent to
HK$44,795,000) satisified by a promissory note of principal amount
of US$5,780,000 issued by the Company on 30 December 2016.
The promissory note carries interest rate of 5% per annum and
mature on 30 December 2018.

The consideration was determined after arm’s length negotiations
with reference to, among others, the net assets value of the BBCC
and its business prospect. BBCC is a company incorporated in
Turkey and is specialized in elite urban transformation projects
and earthquake resistant buildings. As at 31 December 2016,
BBCC has completed 3 projects, namely the Arzu Apartmani, Doga
Apartmani and the Evim Apartmani with a total construction area of
approximately 13,360m2, and there are 3 projects to be completed
in 2017 with a total construction area of approximately 3,700m2.
The Turkey Government is keen on promotion of investment in
Turkey, which was the 18th largest economy in the world with
approximately USD718 billion GDP (2015). Turkey is also one of
the fastest growing economies in Europe with an average annual
GDP growth rate of approximately 3.86% during the year of 2006
to 2015 (as quoted in the website of the World Bank). There are
also a lot of young and well-trained labour in Turkey. The Company
anticipates that the investment potential of BBCC can be expected.
This investment was accounted as an interest in associates as
at the end of the financial year. Other than building construction
and properties development, BBCC is also seeking for business
opportunities in trading of construction materials with overseas
countries, including Hong Kong and China regions.

Details of the acquisition were disclosed in the announcement of
the Company dated 7 December 2016 and 30 December 2016.
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INFORMATION ON POSSIBLE ACQUISITIONS AND
PROJECTS

AREBBEERER ZER

() The memorandum of understanding in relation to a (i) BEFEZBERBEEEZREES

proposed acquisition

On 14 December 2015, the Company entered into a non-
legally binding memorandum of understanding (the “MOU 1)
with Li Yang Qin and Deng Xianggui (together the “Vendors”)
in relation to the proposed acquisition of 100% issued shares
in Color Bridge Industrial Company Limited (“CBI”) and 90%
issued shares in Color-Bridge Printing & Packaging Company
Limited (“CBPP”) (the “Proposed Acquisition”). CBl is a
company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability and is
principally engaged in property investment. CBPP is a company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability and is principally
engaged in color printing works.

Upon the signing of the MOU I, the Company paid to the
Vendors the sum of HK$10,000,000 as deposit (the “Deposit
I”) according to the terms of the MOU I, which will be fully
refunded subject to the terms and conditions of the MOU 1.

In the event that the Proposed Acquisition will not be
proceeded with, the Vendors should within seven (7) days after
the receipt of the written notice given by the Company to the
Vendors refund the Deposit | in full without any deduction to
the Company without interest. In any event, the Vendors shall
immediately refund the Deposit | in full without interest to the
Company upon the termination of the MOU |, save and except
a formal agreement is executed on or before 6 months of the
MOU I (the “Long Stop Date”).

It is the intention of the parties to the MOU | to apply the
Deposit | towards the consideration of the Proposed Acquisition
upon the entering into of the formal agreement subject to the
terms and conditions therein.

As a security for the refund of the Deposit |, each of the
Vendors shall upon the signing of the MOU | execute share
charges in such form and substance to the satisfaction of the
Company to charge all CBI Shares and CBPP Shares held by
each of the Vendors in favour of the Company.

On 14 June 2016, the Vendors and the Company by way of
extension letter, extended the Long Stop Date to 30 September
2016. Details were disclosed in the Company’s announcement
dated 14 December 2015.

As at the date of this report, the MOU | has been lapsed and
the Deposit | has been fully refunded to the Company.
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(ii) The memorandum of understanding in relation to a

proposed acquisition

On 16 March 2016, the Company entered into the non-legally
binding memorandum of understanding (the “MOU 111") with Lee
Sze Yan (the “Vendor B”) in relation to the possible acquisition
of issued shares in Topbridge Industrial Company Limited
(“Topbridge”).

Under the MOU I, the Company intends to acquire and the
Vendor B intend to sell the sale shares at a consideration to be
agreed by the parties. The sale shares shall represent at least
5% and up to 30% of the issued share capital of the Topbridge.
The consideration may be settled by the Company in cash
and/or by allotment and issue of shares in the share capital
of the Company or a combination of the above or any other
forms as the parties thereto may agree in writing. Topbridge
is a company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability
and the Vendor B is the legal and beneficial owner of the entire
issued share capital of Topbridge. Topbridge intends to build
and operate a resort which locates in the wetland, Dong Ting
Hu, Hunan Province, the PRC with an area of approximately
300 km? in the wetland. Details were disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 16 March 2016.

As of the date of this report, the MOU Il has been lapsed and
ceased to have any effect due to conditions not being met by
the long stop date of MOU IlI, i.e. 16 September 2016.

(iii) The proposed projects in Europe and Turkey

14

The Group is committed to continuously exploring new and
different investment opportunities in order to broaden its
source of income. This allows the Group to diversify risks from
any single segment of business and maintain profitability and
be sustainable. The Group intends to tap into the properties
investment and development market worldwide including
Europe and Turkey which has high potential to be one of the
Group’s main profit streams.

On 5 February 2016, the Company and the 6th Engineering
Bureau of China City Construction Holding Group Company
(“The 6th Engineering Bureau”) entered into a non-legally
binding memorandum of understanding (the “MOU II”).

Under the MOU Il, The 6th Engineering Bureau has the
intention to participate in the engineering and construction
works in relation to the proposed land development and large
scale project(s) of the Company in Turkey and will underwrite
the engineering works of relevant projects in accordance
with the intention and design of the Company while The 6th
Engineering Bureau would also give suggestions on the design
and feasibility of the projects.
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Upon the implementation of the projects, the parties to the
MOU Il shall obtain all necessary approvals to enter into
binding formal cooperation agreement(s). The terms of the
cooperation agreement(s) shall be subject to negotiations
between the parties.

On 6 May 2016, the Company entered into a Strategic
Cooperation Agreement (the “Cooperation Agreement”) with
The 6th Engineering Bureau.

Pursuant to the Cooperation Agreement, the Company has
nominated The 6th Engineering Bureau as its technical
engineering consultant for the projects, the Company and The
6th Engineering Bureau shall negotiate in good faith in respect
of every project in Europe and enter into relevant project
agreement(s) which would set out the scope of services, fees
and the corresponding duties of the parties.

The 6th Engineering Bureau shall provide relevant technical
engineering consultancy services to the Company in respect of
every project, which may include but not limited to consultancy
works, such as feasibility studies, project design, blueprints,
engineering quotes and budgets, testing and checking,
procurement of materials, engineering and construction works,
engineering supervision and inspection.

The Company shall provide all necessary information and data
to allow The 6th Engineering Bureau to conduct relevant works
and shall pay relevant fee(s) in accordance with the terms
of the project(s) agreement(s). Subject to the payment of all
consultancy fees to The 6th Engineering Bureau if applicable,
all copyrights of the technical documents provided by The 6th
Engineering Bureau shall be transferred to the Company and
the Company shall be entitled to utilise such documents for the
relevant projects.

The proposed property development project located in
Gaziosmanpasa, Turkey

The Company has identified a proposed property project in
Gaziosmanpasa, Turkey (“Proposed Property Project A”). In
order to conduct the feasibility study regarding the initial design
of the Proposed Property Project A and also to provide the
construction blueprint of the Proposed Property Project A, on 16
May 2016, Ottoman Evershine Development Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the consultancy
agreement with The 6th Engineering Bureau regarding the
provision of technical engineering consultancy services (the
“Consultancy Agreement”). Based on the assumption that the
Proposed Property Project A would have a construction area of
approximately 110,000 sq. m., the consultancy fee according
to the Consultancy Agreement will be RMB1,650,000 based
on RMB15 per sq. m. subject to the stage of completion of the
project.
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The proposed project of Ankara Yenimahalle Station, Turkey
On 30 August 2016, the Company entered into a letter of intent
(the “Lol”) with The 6th Engineering Bureau, ASTRA INSAAT
ANONIM SIRKETI (“ASTRA”), CIFTAY INSAAT TAAHHUT
VE TICARET A.S. (“CIFTAY”) and PASIFIK GAYRIMENKUL
YATIRIM INS. A.S. (“PASIFIK”) whereas each of PASIFIK,
CIFTAY and ASTRA is a company duly constituted and existing
under the laws of Turkey.

PASIFIK and GIFTAY have been awarded in the tender by the
local authority for the revenue sharing model project of Ankara
Yenimahalle Station (the “Project Ankara”), which is situated
at Ankara, Turkey. Pursuant to the Lol, the Company, The 6th
Engineering Bureau and ASTRA proposed their intention to be
partners with the joint venture formed by PASIFIK and GIFTAY
in Project Ankara subject to the execution and completion of
the actual agreements after arm’s length negotiations among
the parties. The parties to the Lol have agreed to discuss
the terms of partnership, business plan, business concept,
direction, profit sharing, project analysis and all further issues
that may be necessary for Project Ankara.

Pursuant to the Lol, the joint venture will provide all the
necessary documents and information to the Company, The
6th Engineering Bureau and ASTRA regarding the entire
project, including but not limited to business model of the
project. The Company, The 6th Engineering Bureau and
ASTRA will conduct necessary review and analysis on the
related documents and make relevant feasibility study.

Details of the proposed projects were disclosed in the
Company’s announcements dated 5 February 2016, 6 May
2016, 16 May 2016, 18 May 2016 and 30 August 2016.
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FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group’s major business operations and investments are in
PRC, Hong Kong and Turkey. All the outstanding balances of
borrowings and obligations under finance leases are denominated
in HKD. Other than described above, most of the assets, liabilities
and transactions of the Group are primarily denominated in Hong
Kong dollar, Renminbi, United States dollar and Turkish Lira. The
Group has not entered into any instruments to hedge the foreign
exchange exposure and considered the potential foreign exchange
exposure of the Group is limited. The Group will closely monitor
exchange rate movement and will take appropriate activities to
reduce the exchange risk.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group exposes to various risks and uncertainties in its daily
operation and management. Save for the credit risk, liquidity risk,
interest rate risk, currency risk and fair value risk as disclosed
in Note 33 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group
also exposes to operation risk and market risk. In addition, as
the cemetery business is located in the PRC and the interest in
associate is located in Turkey, the Group’s business, financial
condition, results of operations and prospects are greatly affected
by political, economic and legal developments and changes to
government policies in the PRC and Turkey.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2016, the Directors are not aware of any
material contingent liabilities (2015: Nil).

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The details of the non-adjusting events including (i) placing of
shares under general mandated (issued on 19 January 2017); (ii)
acquisition of 40% issued share capital of First Surplus Investments
Limited; and (iii) placing of convertible notes under general
mandate (issued on 23 March 2017) are set out in Note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THBEWLE S

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had approximately 100 (2015:
approximately 60) full-time employees. The Group remunerates
its employees based on their performance, experience and the
prevailing industry practice.

The Group provides competitive remuneration packages to
employees with the share option scheme. The emolument policy
of the employees of the Group is determined on the basis of their
merit, qualifications and competence.

Details of the share option scheme of the Company are set out in
the “Directors’ Report”.

PUBLICATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REQUIRED
UNDER SECTION 436 OF THE COMPANIES ORDINANCE

The financial information relating to the Company for the years
ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 included in the 2015/2016
annual results announcement dated 24 March 2017 is derived
from, but does not constitute the Company’s statutory annual
consolidated financial statements for these two years.

The Company has delivered the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2015 to the Registrar of Companies of Hong
Kong as required by section 662(3) of, and Part 3 of Schedule 6
to, the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) (the “Companies Ordinance”) and will deliver the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2016 to the Registrar
of Companies of Hong Kong within the prescribed time limit.

The Company’s auditor has reported on the financial statements
of the Group for both the years ended 31 December 2016 and
2015. The auditor’s reports were unqualified; did not include a
reference to any matters to which the auditor drew attention by
way of emphasis without qualifying its reports; and did not contain
a statement under sections 406(2), 407(2) or (3) of the Companies
Ordinance.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFEAGBREERERESFR

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Biilent Yenal (“Mr. Yenal”), aged 41, was appointed as
executive Director on 11 January 2016. Mr. Yenal graduated from
Koc University in Turkey. Mr. Yenal holds a Master Degree in
Business Administration and is specialized in financial management
and business development with more than 10 years of experience
in these fields. Mr. Yenal also has experience in businesses such
as construction, energy, hotel and international trading and held
key positions in various well-known organisation including Zorlu
Holdings, Rixos Hotel as well as Istanbul Congress Centre.

Mr. Chan Ming Kei (“Mr. Chan”), aged 33, is currently an Executive
Director, company secretary, compliance officer and authorized
representative of the Company. Mr. Chan joined the Group in
September 2016 and was appointed as executive Director with
effect from 7 November 2016. Mr. Chan is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and has extensive
experiences in accounting, financial management and company
secretarial works. He holds Bachelor of Business Administration
(Hons) majoring in Accounting from The Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology.

Mr. Hung Tat Chi Alan (“Mr. Hung”), aged 38, was appointed
as Alternate Director to Mr. Yenal on 11 January 2016. Mr. Hung
was also appointed as executive Director of the Company on 22
March 2017. Mr. Hung holds Master Degree in Civil Engineering
and Business Administration. He is specialized in commercializing
recycled products in the construction industry and in waste tyres
solutions. Mr. Hung has more than 10 years of experiences in
China and established extensive network with government officials
and executives, and investors, entrepreneurs, professionals and
academics in Asia, America, Europe and the Middle East. Mr.
Hung has been the Deputy Secretary General of the Preparatory
Committee for the World Summit of Chinese Entrepreneurs since
2005, and has been taking up senior positions in organizations of
different sectors for more than 8 years. Mr. Hung was an executive
Director of Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited (stock code: 8148)
from 2 March 2016 to 20 March 2017.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFEAGRREEREREFR

Mr. Ling Ko Yin Jason (“Mr. Ling”), aged 35, was appointed as
an executive Director with effect from 16 December 2016. Mr. Ling
obtained a degree of Bachelor of Economics and Finance from
The University of Hong Kong. Mr. Ling has extensive experience
in merger and acquisitions, post-deal management and also
has extensive knowledge in the industries of agriculture, clean-
technology, real estate, fund investment and education sector. Mr.
Ling has worked in the advisory department of an international
accounting firm for number of years. Mr. Ling is a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and Chartered
Financial Analyst of CFA Institute.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Choy So Yuk, BBS, JP (“Ms. Choy”), aged 66, was appointed as
an Independent Non-executive Director on 12 May 2015. Ms. Choy
is also members of the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee
and Chairlady of the Remuneration Committee. Ms. Choy obtained
her Bachelor of Science and Master of Philosophy degrees from
the University of Hong Kong in 1974 and 1980 respectively. Ms.
Choy was the founding managing director of SHK International
Services Limited (which was subsequently acquired by Ms. Choy
and changed its name to Oriental-Western Promotions Limited).
Ms. Choy holds a wide variety of political, social and academic
positions, such as a deputy of the National People’s Congress and
a director of Fujian Middle School. Ms. Choy was a member of
the Fujian Provincial Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference and a member of the Legislative Council
in Hong Kong from 1998 to 2008. Ms. Choy has been appointed as
an Independent Non-executive Director of Ping Shan Tea Group
Limited (formerly known as Huafeng Group Holdings Limited, (stock
code: 364) since August 2002 and an Independent Non-executive
Director of Loudong General Nice Resources (China) Holdings
Limited (stock code: 988) since June 2009.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFEAGBREERERESFR

Ms. Lam Yuk Ying Elsa (“Ms. Lam”), aged 57, was appointed as
an Independent Non-executive Director on 2 September 2013.
She is also members of the Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee, and Chairlady of the Nomination Committee. Ms. Lam
holds, Type 1 (Dealing in Securities), Type 2 (Dealing in futures
contracts), Type 6 (advising on corporate finance) and Type 9
(Asset Management) regulated activities license issued by the
Securities and Futures Commission. Ms. Lam has over 10 years
of experience in the securities industry and more than 15 years of
experience in the treasury function in several major banks. Ms. Lam
was an executive Director of Value Convergence Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 821) from 23 February 2011 to 28 December 2012.
Ms. Lam currently is a director of VC Asset Management Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Value Convergence Holdings Limited.
Ms. Lam was also an associate director of Excalibur Hong Kong
and held senior positions at Glory Sky Global Markets Limited and
Kingston Securities Limited. She was also the head of the treasury
department of KBC Bank N.V.

Mr. Leung Man Chun (“Mr. Leung”), aged 29, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director on 1 March 2016. Mr. Leung is
also members of the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee, and the Chairman of the Audit Committee. Mr. Leung
has been engaging in financial services sector for over 6 years,
along with ample experience in an international accounting firm and
an international bank. He currently serves as a corporate finance
principal for a professional firm. He obtained a bachelor’'s degree
in social sciences from Hong Kong Baptist University in 2009. Mr.
Leung is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Leung has been appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited
(Stock code: 08148), a company listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, since 23
February 2016.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFHE

The Directors submit herewith their report together with the audited
financial statements of the Company and the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2016 (“Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements. Further discussion and analysis
of these activities as required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, including a discussion of the principal
risks and uncertainties facing the Group and an indication of likely
future developments in the Group’s business, can be found in the
Management Discussion and Analysis set out on pages 6 to 18
of this Annual Report. This discussion forms part of this Directors’
Report. Details of the segment information of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2016 are set out in Note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on pages 67 to 68.

The states of affairs of the Group and of the Company as at 31
December 2016 are set out in the consolidated statement of
financial position and the statement of financial position on pages
69 to 70 and in Note 38 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

The cash flows of the Group are set out in the consolidated
statement of cash flows on pages 72 to 73.

DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend any payment of dividend nor
transfer of any amount to reserves for the Year (2015: Nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the Year are set out in Note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements and the section headed “Capital Structure” of this
Annual Report.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Details of placing of new shares under general mandate and
issue of convertible bonds are set out in Notes 27 and 29 to
the consolidated financial statements, respectively, and in the
sections headed “Capital Structure” and of this Annual Report. This
discussion forms part of this Directors’ Report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFHE

RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves during the Year are set out in
Note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years as
extracted from the published audited financial statements is set out
on page 164 of this Annual Report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment
investment properties and intangible assets of the Group during
the Year are set out in Notes 14, 15 and 16 respectively to the
consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2016, the Company has no distributable reserve
calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group has no charitable donations (2015:
the Group made charitable donations amounting to approximately
HK$20,000).

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year ended 31 December
2016 and up to the date of this annual report were:

Executive Directors
Ms. Ang Lai Kuen (Resigned on 18 April 2016)

Mr. Bilent Yenal (Appointed on 11 January 2016)

Mr. Chan Ming Kei (Appointed on 7 November 2016)

Mr. Hung Tat Chi Alan (Appointed on 11 January 2016 as
alternate Director to Mr. Bilent
Yenal and appointed as Executive
Director on 22 March 2017)

Mr. Lau Yu (Chairman) (Resigned on 9 December 2016)

Mr. Ling Ko Yin Jason (Appointed on 16 December 2016)
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFHE

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chan Kwun Chung (Appointed on 1 January 2017 and
resigned on 28 February 2017)

Ms. Choy So Yuk, BBS, JP

Ms. Lam Yuk Ying, Elsa

Mr. Leung Man Chun (Appointed on 1 March 2016)

Mr. Liu Kwong Sang (Resigned with effect from the close
of business on 31 December

2016)

Directors of Subsidiaries

The names of directors who have served on the boards of the
subsidiaries of the Company (other than those listed above) during
the year ended 31 December 2016 and up to the date of this report
included:

Mr. Mui Yuk Wah, Ms. Chan Shuk Man Lora, Mr. Chu To Jonathan,
Mr. San Tung, Mr. Kemal Tekin, Mr. Yasar inel, Mr. Au Yeung Yiu
Chung, Mr. Stephen Woo Sai Man, Mr. Hung Yu Pang, Mr. Shen
Hung Yee Eddie, Mr. Wu Wenbei, Mr. Wong Man Chiu Ronnie, Mr.
Yeung Wai Hung, Mr. Lai Chun Hung, Mr. Chan Ernest Kar Kit, Mr.
Pineda Al Luong, Mr. Li Zhengqing and Mr. Wong Yiu Wing, Mr.
Wei Liang, Mr. Cheng Kwok Wo, Mr. Frank Yu, Mr. Chu Wai Hung
Stephen, Mr. Cheung Man Yau Timothy and Mr. Zhang Daolin.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

In accordance with the Articles of Association, Mr. Chan Ming Kei,
Mr. Hung Tat Chi Alan and Mr. Ling Ko Yin Jason are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the Company’s forthcoming
annual general meeting. Each of the Executive Directors may
receive a discretionary bonus, the amount of which will be
determined by the Board of Directors as its absolute discretion
having regard to the operation results of the Company.

The Independent Non-executive Directors have not entered into
any service agreement with the Company and are not appointed
for a specific term, but all are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the Articles of Association.

None of the Directors is proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting (“AGM”) has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one
year without payment other than statutory compensation.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company, any of its holding companies or subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time
during the Year.

CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed in this report, there were no other transactions
which need to be disclosed as connected in accordance with the
requirements of the GEM Listing Rules during the year ended 31
December 2016.

The material related party transactions of the Group are disclosed
in Note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2016, same as disclosed elsewhere in this
report, as far as the Directors are aware of, none of the Directors
or the management shareholders of the Company or any of its
respective associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) has
any interest in a business which competes or may compete with the
business of the Group or has any other conflict of interest with the
Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY AND DIRECTORS’ AND
OFFICERS’ LIABILITY INSURANCE

Pursuant to the Articles and subject to the provisions of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
every Director or other officer of the Company shall be indemnified
out of the assets of the Company against all loss and liabilities
which he/she may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the
duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto, provided that
such Article shall only have effect in so far as its provisions are not
avoided by the Companies Ordinance. The Company has arranged
appropriate Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for
the Directors and officers of the Company during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Apart from the share option scheme referred as below, at no time
during the year ended 31 December 2016 was any of the Company
or any associated corporation a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate, and none of the Directors, or their spouses or children
under the age 18, had any right to subscribe for the shares in, or
debentures of, the Company, or had exercised any such rights.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITION IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2016, none of the Directors or chief executives
of the Company had any interests and short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571, Laws of Hong Kong)
(“SFQO”)) which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the required standards of dealings
by directors as referred to in Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The share option scheme adopted on 9 May 2011 (the “2011
Share Option Scheme”) by the Shareholders was terminated and
a new share option scheme was adopted on 1 February 2016 (the
“2016 Share Option Scheme”) by the Shareholders. The purpose
of the 2016 Share Option Scheme is to enable the Company to
grant Share Options to the Eligible Participants (as defined below)
as incentives or rewards for their contribution to the long term
development of the Group and to provide the Group with a more
flexible means to reward, remunerate, compensate, attract, retain
and/or provide benefits to the Eligible Participants. The 2016 Share
Option Scheme was adopted for a period of 10 years commencing
from 1 February 2016 and will remain in force until 31 January
2026.

Eligible Participant under the 2016 Share Option Scheme includes
any full-time or part-time employees, consultants or potential
employees, executives or officers (including Executive, Non-
executive and Independent Non-executive Directors) of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and any suppliers, customers,
consultants, agents and advisers who, in the sole opinion of the
Board, will contribute or has contributed to the Company and/or any
of its subsidiaries.
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The subscription price shall be determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion but in any event shall be at least the higher of:

(i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotations
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant
which must be a business day; and

(i) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant.

Upon acceptance of the options, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00
to the Company as consideration for the grant. The acceptance
of an offer of the grant of the option must be made within 14 days
from the date of grant. Unless otherwise determined by the Board
in the relevant offer letter to a grantee, there is no minimum period
for which any option must be held before it can be exercised and
no performance target which needs to be achieved by a grantee
before the options can be exercised. An option may be exercised in
accordance with the terms of the 2016 Share Option Scheme at any
time during a period as the Board may determine which shall not
exceed ten years from the date of grant subject to the provisions of
early termination thereof.

Based on 1,323,836,776 shares in issue as at the date of adoption
of the 2016 Share Option Scheme, the maximum number of shares
to be issued upon the exercise of options that may be granted
under the 2016 Share Option Scheme are 132,383,677 shares,
being 10% of the shares in issue as at the date of adoption. The
total number of shares available for issue under the 2016 Share
Option Scheme is 132,383,677 Shares, representing 8.3% of the
total number of Shares in issue as at the date of this report.

Pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules, the total number of shares
which may be issued upon the exercise of all options to be granted
under the 2016 Share Option Scheme must not, in aggregate,
exceed 10% of the shares in issue as at the date of adoption of the
2016 Share Option Scheme. The Board shall not grant any options
which would result in the maximum aggregate number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted but yet to be exercised under the 2016 Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes adopted by the
Company exceeding, in aggregate, 30% of the shares in issue from
time to time.
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S BERERBRER FATEMN AT B EME
MRz s HARR - R EARARITEER
BAAEY o RRER - BRETRESST
REEZHBARBE-Z - FRBRESEZ
RARBER T - HABME A SEBHARHA
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The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted under the 2016 Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company to each Eligible
Participant (including both exercised and outstanding options) in
any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of
shares in issue (the “Individual Limit”). Any further grant of options
to an Eligible Participant which would result in the shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of all options granted and to be
granted to such Eligible Participant (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding options) in the 12-month period up to and including
the date of such further grant exceeding the Individual Limit shall
be subject to approval of the Shareholders in general meeting with
such Eligible Participant and his close associates (or his associates
if such Eligible Participant is a connected person) abstaining from
voting.

Any grant of options to a connected person (as defined in the
GEM Listing Rules) must be approved by all Independent Non-
executive Directors (excluding any Independent Non-executive
Director who is the proposed grantee). Where options are proposed
to be granted to a connected person who is also a substantial
shareholder (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) of the Company
or an Independent Non-executive Director or any of their respective
associates, and the proposed grant of options, when aggregated
the options already granted to such connected person in the past
12 months period, would entitle that person to receive more than
0.1% of the total issued shares of the Company for the time being
and the value of which is in excess of HK$5,000,000, then the
proposed grant must be subject to the approval of the shareholders
at the general meeting. Apart from the connected person involved,
all other connected persons of the Company must abstain from
voting in such general meeting (except where any connected
person intends to vote against the proposed grant).

There is no outstanding share option under the 2011 Share Option
Scheme as at 1 January 2016 and 31 December 2016. As at the
date of this report, no options have been granted under the 2016
Share Option Scheme since its adoption.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS OF INTEREST IN
SHARES

As 31 December 2016, other than the interests and short positions
of the Directors or chief executives of the Company disclosed
above, person or corporation who had interests in the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO
or, who was, directly or Indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the
nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote
in all circumstances at general meetings of any other members of
the Group, or any other substantial shareholders whose interests or
short positions were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Number of Shares held

ETERRRRG 2 EH

RZE—XRE+ZA=+—H  REXFFEE
BERARARSTHRAEZEZR AR
BEAQTRGD BEROREEZER M
BERBEEERPEKRMNEXVIFE2R 3D 2 1&
XEAXABRE  NEEREEEGHEER
AEMEBRTRAEBEMAEMKE QTR
RARERRZEMERRAEES%R I LR
ZEMALTRLAT » S EZRAEER
RAQNTRBEFHF R ERFIEI6HFEEEZ
BEMOEMEMAEERRNT :

RGO # A8
Approximate
percentage of
Personal Corporate total issued
Name of substantial shareholders Interest Interest Total ordinary Shares
HE BT
EERBEE
FTERRME fEA Rz DR ERE - H BRBEIL
Mr. Titinct Oguz 347,796,000 — 347,796,000 23.15%
Titlincl Oguzse 4.
Mr. Lau Yu 1,266,000 173,653,000 174,919,000 11.64%
HF kLt (Note) (K1zE)
Mr. Chiu Ngai Hung 169,716,000 — 169,716,000 11.29%
TR A
Mr. Boyraci Osman 106,865,000 — 106,865,000 711%
Boyraci Osman’t4
Note: MiaE -

173,653,000 shares are owned by Noble Ace Investments Limited (“Noble Ace”)
which is 100% owned by Mr. Lau Yu. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Lau Yu is deemed
to have interest of the Shares held by Noble Ace.

Save as disclosed above, at 31 December 2016, the Directors or
chief executives of the Company were not aware of any party who
had an interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Pat XV
of the SFO or, who is, directly or indirectly Interested in 5% or more
of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to
vote in all circumstances at general meetings of the Company, or
substantial shareholders as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

173,653,000 IR 3 AWl F S £ 2 E B ZNoble Ace
Investments Limited ([ Noble Ace |) A - RiEE 5Kk
E1%H > MFEEHET B MW Noble AceFE 2R
B o
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

/

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
annual report, the Company had maintained the public float as
required under the GEM Listing Rules.

REMUNERATION POLICY

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid
individuals of the Group are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the financial
statements respectively.

The Remuneration Committee was set up on 8 October 2007 for
reviewing the remuneration policies and other remuneration related
matters of the Directors and senior management of the Company
and making recommendations to the Board as deemed necessary.

The Company has adopted the Share Option Schemes as incentive
to Directors and eligible employees, details of the Share Option
Schemes are set out in the section “Share Option Scheme” in this
report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the group’s sales and purchases
attributable to the major customers and suppliers respectively
during the Year is as follows:

The largest customer

BRAREF

Five largest customers in aggregate
BAREF 2B

The largest supplier

RAAtRER

Five largest supplier in aggregate

AR 2B

ERARBRE

REANBDARFHRAMAEARERNREE
EHA > ARTEEHEFRIER EHRRIARE

ZRBHRE -

FIBUR

EERAEELERSHA LT ZHMEFHED B
BRI RR L8R ©

FMESECR-_ZZLF+ANBRL - U
BNEERAARASNEERRE 2 HFMERRE
EHMERSEE  IRRAEFTERNESS
RHEEBER -

AATRCHEMBRESE  ERESRAERK
BECRE  BREFE ZFBARERE
[EBARAERT &) —66 -

FREFRHER
FEECHRIERFRERERIEAKEZH
EENRRBEENEIINT

Percentage of
the Group’s total

MAEEZES L
Sales Purchases
HHERE B EE
31%
85%
61%
86%
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At no time during the Year have the Directors, their associates or
any shareholder of the company (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the number of issued shares of the
Company) had any interest in these major customers and suppliers.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2016, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the
Company’s listed securities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are
set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” on
pages 33 to 47 of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

As far as the Board is aware, the Group has complied in material
respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the business and operation of the Group.
During the Year, there was no material breach of or non-compliance
with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The details of the non-adjusting post balance sheet events are set
out in Note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

ARBEE FEZHBEATHEMRRE
(BESRAEEANTS%EHTROULZ
RR)BERAFEEMABEHESZSIER
FREEER 2 S -

BE BERHEXRQF LHES

BE-Z-R"E+A=+—-HLEFE £2
AARDNE LTES

hEER
AARRFEERFR B RNAFREIIE
ERATHFH CEERRE |- -

BT MEBERERER

BESSRA  AREBEEASEHYCETY
AEEXBREEMSAEATE 2 HREE
RESR - AFE > AREYEHBREERS
RAEETERERRER BN -

BEWRER

FAREEAASEHBENGRSUBRE
MIEE37 ©

Annual Report 2016 —Z—<FF;H 31



y

<

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFHE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

/

As at 31 December 2016, the Audit Committee comprised four
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Ms. Choy So Yuk,
BBS, JP., Ms. Lam Yuk Ying, Elsa, Mr. Leung Man Chun and Mr.
Liu Kwong Sang. During the year, Mr. Liu Kwong Sang was the
chairman of the Audit Committee and applies his professional
qualifications in accounting and financial expertise in directing
the Audit Committee. After the resignation of Mr. Liu Kwong
Sang as the Audit Committee Chairman with effect from the close
of business on 31 December 2016, Mr. Leung Man Chun was
appointed as the Audit Committee Chairman with effect from 1
January 2017. The unaudited quarterly and interim results together
with the audited annual results of the Company in respect of the
year ended 31 December 2016 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee.

AUDITOR

A resolution for the re-appointment of Elite Partners CPA Limited as
auditor of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

On Behalf of the Board

Chan Ming Kei
Executive Director and Company Secretary
Hong Kong, 24 March 2017
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed to achieving high standard of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of all shareholders and to
enhance corporate value and accountability.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles and code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company has
complied with most of the code provisions of the CG Code, save for
deviations from code provisions A.2.1, A.4.1 and E.1.2 which are
explained below.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Under the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer of the Company should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual.
The division of responsibilities between the chairman and chief
executive officer should be clearly established and set out in writing.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, Mr. Lau Yu was the
chairman of the Company (the “Chairman”) until 9 December
2016 and there was no chief executive officer of the Company
(the “CEQ”). There has no Chairman since from the resignation of
Mr. Lau Yu on 9 December 2016. The Board will keep reviewing
the current structure of the Board from time to time and should
a candidate with suitable knowledge, skill and experience be
identified, the Company will make appointment to fill the post of
the Chairman and the CEO as appropriate and will make further
announcement in due course. There is no financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationship between the Chairman
and the CEO and among the members of the Board.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

According to the Articles of Association, one-third of the Directors
are required to retire from office at each annual general meeting,
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once in every three years.

Under the code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, non-executive
Directors should be appointed for a specific term of service. None of
the Independent Non-executive Director have entered into a service
contract or an appointment letter with the Company for a specific
term of service but their appointments are subject to retirement by
rotation and offer themselves for re-election at the annual general
meeting at least once for every three years in accordance with the
Articles of Association. The Company believes such practice meets
the same objective and no less exacting than those prescribed
under code provision A.4.1.
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Attendance of General Meetings

Under the code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the chairman of
the board should attend the annual general meeting and he should
also invite the chairmen of the audit, remuneration, nomination
and any other committees (as appropriate) to attend. During the
year ended 31 December 2016, the AGM was held on 17 May
2016 and the EGMs of the Company were held on 1 February
2016 and 10 June 2016 respectively, the chairmen/chairladies
of the Board committees of the Company were absent for other
business engagement. But the absented Directors have appointed
the Chairman, other executive Directors or another member of
the committee as their representative at the respective general
meetings to answer questions of the shareholders of the Company.
In the future, the Company will put its most effort in encouraging
and ensuring the Independent Non-executive Directors to attend
the general meetings.

The Company will continue to enhance its corporate governance
practices which is appropriate to the conduct and growth of its
business and to review its corporate governance practices from
time to time to ensure they comply with the statutory requirements
and the CG Code and align with the latest developments of the
Company.

Board Composition and Board Practices

As at 31 December 2016, the Board comprised seven Directors
including three executive Directors (the “Executive Directors”),
namely Mr. Bllent Yenal, Mr. Chan Ming Kei and Mr. Ling Ko Yin
Jason; an alternate Director (the “Alternate Director”), Mr. Hung
Tat Chi Alan (Alternate Director to Mr. Bllent Yenal); and four
Independent Non-executive Directors (the “Independent Non-
executive Directors”), namely, Ms. Choy So Yuk, BBS, JP, Ms. Lam
Yuk Ying Elsa, Mr. Leung Man Chun and Mr. Liu Kwong Sang
(resigned with effect from the close of business on 31 December
2016). There is no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship amongst the Directors.

The Board schedules four meetings a year at approximately
quarterly intervals and will meet as necessary. During the year
ended 31 December 2016, the Board held 4 regular meetings. The
Directors can attend meetings in persons or through other means
of electronic communication in accordance with the Company’s
articles of association (the “Articles of Association”).

In addition, the Company has maintained a procedure for the
Directors to seek independent professional advice, in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense in discharging their
duties to the Company. Moreover, the company secretary of the
Company (the “Company Secretary”) prepares minutes and keeps
records of matters discussed and decisions resolved at all Board
meetings. The secretary of the meetings of the Company keeps the
minutes, which are open for inspection at any reasonable time on
reasonable notice by any Director.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

The Company has received from each of its Independent Non-
executive Directors the written confirmation of his/her independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company,
based on such confirmation, considers Ms. Choy So Yuk, BBS, JP,
Ms. Lam Yuk Ying Elsa, Mr. Leung Man Chun and Mr. Liu Kwong
Sang are independent.

Role and Functions of the Board

The Board and the management teams are committed to high
standards of corporate governance. The Board is responsible
for approving and monitoring business plans, evaluating the
performance of the Group and overseeing the management. The
Board also focuses on overall strategies and policies with particular
attention paid to the growth and financial performance of the Group.

The Board delegates the authority and responsibility for
implementing day-to-day operations and management of the Group
to Executive Directors and senior management, and certain specific
responsibilities to the committees of the Company (the “Board
Committees”). The Board reserves certain key matters for its
approval including the Group’s long-term strategy, internal control,
annual, interim and quarterly financial results and shareholder
communications, etc. Decisions of the Board are communicated to
the management through Executive Directors who have attended
all Board meetings.

When the Board delegates certain aspects of its management
functions to the management, it has given clear directions as
to the powers of management, in particular, with respect to the
circumstances. The final decision still rests with the Board unless
otherwise provided for in the terms of reference of relevant
committees.

Board of Directors

The primary role of the Board is to protect and enhance interest
of the Company and shareholders as a whole. The Board is
responsible for setting overall strategy for the Group and monitoring
the performance of the management.

The Board members during the year ended 31 December 2016 and
up to the date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors
Ms. Ang Lai Kuen (Resigned on 18 April 2016)

Mr. Bilent Yenal (Appointed on 11 January 2016)

Mr. Chan Ming Kei (Appointed on 7 November 2016)

Mr. Hung Tat Chi Alan (Appointed on 11 January 2016 as
Alternate Director to Mr. Bilent
Yenal and appointed as Executive
Director on 22 March 2017)

BYFHTES
AARCEREBFATESE BREBEAER
Fi R RISE5.09R NS 2 B DB H 2.
RE  ERNZERAE  ALARE BEX
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EESREEEERR LR KT 2LXE
B B EEMREEXEBIE - SR
EERBUREREEE - ES2 IR
HERERBEREE  LHEEAREEZER
KEAFBRE o

EEERUTAEECRAEEEREREZED
REME ZRTHATESRSREDE  HiL
ETHREERERTESSET 2L QRES
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B EwiE  BEASERERK A
2 F5E  PHRFEMBXREARERRER
% -EXEEBHEMAESESRCHTE
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HESFSKE THR CEERERZRTEERE
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Mr. Lau Yu (Chairman) (Resigned on 9 December 2016) MR L% (EE) (E%:{g)—/‘\i‘kiﬁ LB
T
Mr. Ling Ko Yin Jason (Appointed on 16 December 2016) MEREE (R:;%—) NE+ZA+TARHR
EZLE
Independent non-executive BUHBITEE
Directors
Mr. Chan Kwun Chung (Appointed on 1 January 2017 and R BT E (R=Z2—+F—HF—H
resigned on 28 February 2017) BEZERR-ZE—tHF
—B=+N\AEME)
Ms. Choy So Yuk, BBS, JP BEFL
HEFEE -
A F#at
Ms. Lam Yuk Ying Elsa MERLZ L
Mr. Leung Man Chun (Appointed on 1 March 2016) RNBEE (}}'{;E:;%‘—)%\EEH —R
Eymn
Mr. Liu Kwong Sang (Resigned with effect from the close ~ BEE %% (R=ZEB—RFF+ZB=+—
of business on 31 December =| %%H—rfﬁ EE&_%H_{)
2016)
32 Board meetings were held during the year 2016 and the R-Z—AR"FAHBITAEZTEEE > ME
attendance of Directors at the Board meetings for the year ended ZZZ—A<F+__A=+—HILFE EEZ
31 December 2016 is set out as follows: EEEgRLEREEHINOT
Attendance of
Name of Directors meeting held
FRETaER
BEENG ZH:'.J‘:if'?
Executive Directors
BITESE
Ms. Ang Lai Kuen ABIR L 12/12
(Resigned on 18 April 2016) (R=F—ANEMH+/HEE)
Mr. Biilent Yenal (Mr. Hung Tat Chi Alan as Bulent Yenal%t4 CHEE EEBNRIEESE) #31/31
Alternate Director) (R=FB—AE—F+—HEZHF)
(Appointed on 11 January 2016)
Mr. Chan Ming Kei PREGESEA4 6/6
(Appointed on 7 November 2016) (R=B—ANFE+—FLtHEZE)
Mr. Lau Yu (Chairman) WMFEE(FE) 29/29
(Resigned on 9 December 2016) (R=F—ANE+=HA N HET)
Mr. Ling Ko Yin Jason MERAEE 1/1
(Appointed on 16 December 2016) (R=FE—ANEF+ZHFNHEZE)
Independent non-executive Directors
BYIBITES
Ms. Choy So Yuk, BBS, JP BRERLL ) HEHEE  AFHL 25/32
Ms. Lam Yuk Ying Elsa MEHRLZ L 31/32
Mr. Leung Man Chun RNBEE 25/25
(Appointed on 1 March 2016) (R=FB—NEF=F— AEZ(F)
Mr. Liu Kwong Sang BEERE 31/32
(Resigned with effect from closing business (R=F—ANEF+=—F=+—HFT
on 31 December 2016) I EZHA é"%ﬂw‘gﬁ*ﬁiﬁ’ﬁéﬂ)

#  Due to business commitments overseas, Mr. Biilent Yenal arranged for his ~ # EE??A EBINAE Bulent Yenal%i?zﬁﬁ)ﬁiﬁfi
alternate, Mr. Hung Tat Chi Alan to attend the Board meetings. HEREEHEEEEE:
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General Meeting

During the Year under review, an annual general meeting of
the Company (the “AGM”) was held on 17 May 2016 and two
extraordinary general meetings of the Company (the “EGM”) was
held with details of the Directors’ attendance set out below:

N -

RERBFEAR  RORARRBFAE (RRBF
RENDR=ZZB-RFEA+LBEHET LE
TTMRARRA BRI AS ([ RRFHIK
2 BRRBFAERBRRBFFIAEG2ESH
EREEINT

Attendance
of the EGM
on 10 June
2016
R-E—KF
~ATH
BRERAE
HEE

Attendance
of the EGM
on 1 February
2016
R-B—RE
—A-H
RREHAE
HER

Attendance
of the AGM
on 17 May

Directors 2016

R-B-RE
EAt+tA
RRBEAE
HER

Ms. Ang Lai Kuen HBRLL = v/ —
(Resigned on 18 April 2016) (R=ZF—~ELA T/ AFHE)

Mr. Billent Yenal (Mr. Hung Tat Chi Alanas  Biilent Yenal%4 (S £4 AREES) / / v/
Alternate Director) (R=F-~F—F1—HEZ)
(Appointed on 11 January 2016)

Mr. Chan Ming Kei BREEELE — — —

(Appointed on 7 November 2016)
Mr. Lau Yu (Chairman)

(Resigned on 9 December 2016)
Mr. Ling Ko Yin Jason

(Appointed on 16 December 2016)
Ms. Choy So Yuk, BBS, JP
Ms. Lam Yuk Ying, Elsa
Mr. Leung Man Chun

(Appointed on 1 March 2016)
Mr. Liu Kwong Sang

(Resigned with effect from the close of

business on 31 December 2016)

(R-E—NF1—FLARZS)
NFEEE(ZE)

(R=FB-—ANETZANAFE)
HEREE

(REF-NEFTZA 1T AEZN)
BRRLL WEHEE ATHL
MERZE
RUBSAE

(R=E-RFZF—HEZH)
BEERE
(R=F—NEFTZF=1—ABE

WEZAERE R RELYN)

N X< X
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Directors’ Induction and Continuous Professional Development
All Directors, including Independent Non-executive Directors,
should keep abreast of their collective responsibilities as Directors
and of the business and activities of the Group. Each newly
appointed Director would receive a comprehensive induction
package covering business operations, policy and procedures
of the Company as well as the general, statutory and regulatory
obligations of being a Director to ensure that he/she is sufficiently
aware of his/her responsibilities under the GEM Listing Rules
and other relevant regulatory requirements. The Group also
provides briefings and other training to develop and refresh the
Directors’ knowledge and skills, and update all Directors on the
latest developments regarding the GEM Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirement to ensure compliance and to
enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices.

All Directors provided the Company their training records for
the year ended 31 December 2016. During the year ended 31
December 2016, the Directors participated in the continuous
professional developments in relation to regulatory update, the
duties and/or responsibility of the Directors and the business of the
Group.

Audit Committee

The Company has established an audit committee of the Company
(the “Audit Committee”) with written terms of reference based upon
the guidelines recommended by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The primary duties of the Audit Committee
are to review and supervise the Group’s financial and accounting
policies and practices, financial controls, internal controls and risk
management systems. On 9 November 2015, the Board adopted
a set of the revised terms of reference of the Audit Committee,
which has brought in line with the changes on the CG Code in
relating to the internal controls by introducing the concept of the
risk management with effective for accounting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2016. The revised terms of reference setting
out the Audit Committee’s authority, duties and responsibilities are
available on both the GEM website and the Company’s website.
During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Audit Committee
has performed its duties, reviewed the effectiveness of the internal
control system of the Company and reviewed the re-appointment of
the external auditors. The unaudited quarterly and interim together
with the audited annual results of the Company in respect of the
year ended 31 December 2016 have also been reviewed by the
Audit Committee.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Audit Committee
comprised four Independent Non-executive Directors, namely,
Ms. Choy So Yuk, BBS, JP, Ms. Lam Yuk Ying Elsa, Mr. Leung
Man Chun, and Mr. Liu Kwong Sang. Mr. Liu Kwong Sang was
the chairman of the Audit Committee and applies his professional
qualifications in accounting and financial expertise in directing the
Audit Committee.

38 EVERSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED  kiEEEZERBER AR

ESHEANRBREXRRE
FBES(BEBIFNTES) BEEBREBK
ZEAESCHEEERAEEXEBIZE
BENZAESHEZEMEAN  BEFRQ
AEBEE BRRERF  URERESEZ—
R EERBEEML  URRKREZ D EHEE
RAFEREDRAT 2 BERAMAREER
R o AEBETREENSREMZI - UBRE
REMES B R KEE - jt%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬁ
AIEREHRAUREMEAEEER 2HHE
B DEREEEHERFEEERESR

FEESERARARMEE-T-RE+=
A=1T—-RLFEZHEIRLE - BE-FT—RX
F+-A=t—-RLFE EF2HREHEEE
BH - EERBR IBEURKREEES
FEEERE -

EREES
KATERAIAQARNBEREZEG((EREE
&) UREEESHMASERZESIHE
EMREHE - BEREZEECIERSEAEN
REBAREBR U TBERES - BIE
= ABEREREREESE R-_BE—1EF
+—BhB EBEEH— ?Eﬂﬁﬁiﬁéi‘“
EETHESE EReR-ZE—~F—HA—H
jZTﬁFaﬁﬂAZéf,ﬁﬁFﬁEﬂZ E<TRIEE
ZESBEEI ARBREERMSLUETAI
B HIEREZESED RBEREREZEL
& T ot A 0 B 74 Bl S AR 48 3 I X B 48k A {4
BE  REZE-ZE—ARF+A=+—HLHF
B BRZEEETHBE BRIERQATRIM
ERFIE2ERMRBFIISZEBMERE
fo RRARAARKLERZEERTHEEURBE
—E-RF+TZA=T-HLEFEZREZTF
EEETCLHERZESER -

HE_Z-—A"Et-A=1T—-HILEFE BX
ZEEHEUEBLFATESAR > 255
BREILLT  HLHEE  AF#HL MERK
T RNEREERBEERE - BEELES
BREEEIF  BERESTRIBEXS
H2EXER  REEREZETZEF -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ERELIRS

Mr. Liu Kwong Sang has resigned as the Chairman of the Audit
Committee with effect from the close of business on 31 December
2016 and Mr. Leung Man Chun has been appointed as the
chairman of the Audit Committee with effect from 1 January 2017.

4 meetings were held by the Audit Committee and the attendance of

the members of the Audit Committee at Audit Committee meetings
for the year ended 31 December 2016 is set out as follows:

Name of Audit Committee Members

EREEERENS

BELEEEBIERZEGEE  R-E—~
F+Z A=+ P& ERBERBEN ﬁ'ﬁ%
NEEECEZEAERZEEXRE  BZ
—tF—-A—H&EXK -

BE-Z—R"E+ZA=+—BHLFE X
ZESHETNRER  MEXZEERER

EREEESR 2 HERERIIMT

Attendance of
meeting held
FrBTaeR

Z HER

Mr. Liu Kwong Sang (Chairman) BEELE(EE) 4/4
(Resigned with effect from the close of business  (R=F—ANE+=H=+—HEHF
on 31 December 2016) I H3Z A & FE R AE R EBERL)
Ms. Choy So Yuk, BBS, JP BRIt WEHEES AFHL 2/4
Ms. Lam Yuk Ying Elsa MERLZL 4/4
Mr. Leung Man Chun RUBEE 4/4
(Appointed on 1 March 2016) (R=FB—ANE=F—HEZF)
Remuneration Committee FHESS
The Company has established a remuneration committee of the AARER-ZTZFLF+ANBKRILAREFH
Company (the “Remuneration Committee”) on 8 October 2007 MZEE(HMZEE )  HBEGKETHRE
with terms of reference no less exacting terms than the CG Code. BRI ZERER %ﬁmﬁﬁ B K&
The principle of the Remuneration Committee is to formulate and EERFTEBRAQNASHEEAE 2 FHBH

review the remuneration policies and other remuneration related
matters of the Directors and senior management of the Company
and to make recommendations to the Board as deemed necessary.
The terms of reference setting out the Remuneration Committee’s
authority, duties and responsibilities are available on both the GEM
website and the Company’s website. During the year ended 31
December 2016, the Remuneration Committee has discussed and
reviewed the remuneration policies of the Company, reviewed and
made recommendations with respect to the remuneration of Board
members for approval by the Board and made recommendations
with respect to the remuneration of the newly appointed Directors
during the year for approval by the Board. The Remuneration
Committee has adopted the operation model where it performs
an advisory role to the Board, with the Board retaining the final
authority to approve the remuneration packages of individual
Executive Directors and senior management.

ERAEMHFMEEEE  AERALEROE
SERHEESR - SIIHFHNEESSHED - B
BEREEzBESERAIZERBUERA R TH
HAHEE REEZZT-—RF+ZA=1+—
ALFE  FMEESCTRRBAEAQT 2
FHHE  MARESEMEZHHELRE
& UEE=EIE  URFANEEESRZ
FHRHES  URE=SHE - HFHESS
ERMPNESTREITRBBE CEEN - &
SERBHEBBBTESRSREEBAS
ZENBUR 2 BN ©
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As at 31 December 2016, the Remuneration Committee comprised
four Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Ms. Choy So
Yuk, BBS, JP, Ms. Lam Yuk Ying Elsa, Mr. Leung Man Chun and
Mr. Liu Kwong Sang. Ms. Choy So Yuk, BBS, JP is the chairlady of
the Remuneration Committee.

Mr. Liu Kwong Sang has resigned as member of Remuneration
Committee with effect from the close of business on 31 December
2016.

7 meetings were held by the Remuneration Committee and the
attendance of the members of the Remuneration Committee at
the Remuneration Committee meetings for the year ended 31
December 2016 is set out as follows:

Name of Remuneration
Committee Members

FMEESERELRS

RIE—ARE+=ZBA=+—H0 FHNZESE
RUEBYHNTESREILL 7452
FAFHL  MERELL - RPNBREERERE
ERE - BEFLT  WHLEHEE  LFHLEH
FHNEESERE -

BEELLECHEFHEESERE  B=F
—ARETZ A=+ -HEXERBEERBEN

BE-—Z-—R"E+-A=Z+—HLFE
ZESHETLRER  MFHESSHER
FHZEEEER 2 HERERIIANT

Attendance of
meeting held
FrBTasR

Z HEE

Ms. Choy So Yuk, BBS, JP (Chairlady) BRERLT ) HEHEE  AF#HL(ERE) 717

Ms. Lam Yuk Ying Elsa MERLZL 717

Mr. Leung Man Chun RUBEE 5/5
(Appointed on 1 March 2016) (RZFE—ANEF=H—HEZF)

Mr. Liu Kwong Sang BEE%E
(Resigned with effect from the close of

business on 31 December 2016)

Remuneration Policy for Directors and Senior Management
The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is determined
on the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance, experience, responsibility,
workload and time devoted to the Company and comparable market
statistics, for Board approval. Each of the Executive Directors is
entitled to a basic salary which is reviewed annually. In addition,
each of the Executive Directors may receive a discretionary bonus
as the Remuneration Committee may recommend. Such amount
has to be approved by the Board.

The Company has adopted the 2016 Share Option Scheme on 1
February 2016. The purpose of the 2016 Share Option Scheme is
to enable the Board, at its discretion, to grant options to selected
eligible participants to motivate them and to optimise their
performance and efficiency for the benefit of the Group.
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Nomination Committee

The Company has established a nomination committee of the
Company (the “Nomination Committee”) on 29 March 2012 with
terms of reference no less exacting terms than the CG Code. The
principle of the Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board, determining the re-
election of the Directors, and identifying individuals suitably qualified
to become Board members and assessing the independence of
Independent Non-executive Directors. On 2 September 2013,
the Board adopted a set of the revised terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee, which has brought in line with the new
GEM Listing Rules relating to Board Diversity with effective from
1 September 2013. The revised terms of reference setting out the
Nomination Committee’s authority, duties and responsibilities are
available on both the GEM website and the Company’s website.

Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Nomination Committee
will carry out the selection process by making reference to the
skills, experience, professional knowledge, personal integrity
and time commitments of the proposed candidates, including the
independence status in the case of an Independent Non-executive
Director, the Board Diversity Policy, the Company’s needs and
other relevant statutory requirements and regulations.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Nomination
Committee have reviewed the structure, size and composition
of the Board, the retirement and re-election of the Directors at
the forthcoming annual general meeting and considered the
appointments of new Directors. All of the newly appointed Directors
were appointed by going through the selection process stated as
above.
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As at 31 December 2016, the Nomination Committee comprised of
four Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Ms. Choy So
Yuk, BBS, JP, Ms. Lam Yuk Ying Elsa, Mr. Leung Man Chun and
Mr. Liu Kwong Sang. Ms. Lam Yuk Ying, Elsa is the chairlady of the
Nomination Committee.

Mr. Liu Kwong Sang has resigned as member of Nomination
Committee with effect from the close of business on 31 December
2016.

7 meetings were held by the Nomination Committee and the
attendance of the members of the Nomination Committee at the
Nomination Committee meetings for the year ended 31 December
2016 is set out as follows:

Name of Nomination
Committee Members

REZEEREHS

RIE—ARE+ZA=+—H REEEEH
NEZEBYHHTESHER  DIAREFL
T HEHEE  KFHL S MERLZE - RX
Eﬁi&@%&%ioﬁiﬁtiﬁ%%%é
Eiﬁ °

BEELECHEREZEENE B=F
—ARETZA=ZT-BZEERHEREE
R e

BE-—Z-—R"E+-A=+—HLEE RH
ZESHETLRER  MREZEEHER
REZESEZ 2HERERIINT :

Attendance of
meeting held
FrBTasR

Z HEE

Ms. Lam Yuk Ying, Elsa (Chairlady) MEHELZ L (EE) 717

Ms. Choy So Yuk, BBS, JP BERLT o HLEHEES  AFHL 717

Mr. Leung Man Chun RUBEE 5/5
(Appointed on 1 March 2016) (RZFE—ANEF=H—HEZF)

Mr. Liu Kwong Sang BEE%E 6/7

(Resigned with effect from the close of
business on 31 December 2016)

Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”)
setting out the approach to achieve and maintain diversity on the
Board in order to enhance the effectiveness of the Board.

Pursuant to the Policy, the Company seeks to achieve Board
diversity through the consideration of a number of factors, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and education background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service.

All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having due
regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.
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Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills and
knowledge. The ultimate decision will be made upon the merits and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

The Nomination Committee will review the Policy from time to time
to ensure its continued effectiveness.

Corporate Governance Function

All members of the Board are responsible for performing the
corporate governance functions. The terms of reference of
corporate governance functions was adopted by the Board at the
Board meeting held on 29 March 2012 and is in compliance with
paragraph D3.1 of the CG Code as set out in Appendix 15 to the
GEM Listing Rules. During the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Board has reviewed the policy of the corporate governance and the
corporate governance report of the Company.

Code of Conduct Regarding Securities Transactions by
Directors

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard as set out in the Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules. The Directors have confirmed, following specific inquiry by
the Company, that they have complied with the required standard
and code of conduct during the year under review.

Auditors’ Remuneration

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the appointment
of the external auditors and reviewing any non-audit functions
performed by the external auditors, including whether such non-
audit functions could lead to any potential material adverse effect
on the Company. During the year under review, the remuneration
paid or payable to Elite Partners CPA Limited, the auditor of the
Company, is set out below:

Rt 2 R

Services rendered

Audit
Non-audit services
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| o
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ERERBT T -

BB ET I &
ERZEEREETRIMNERBE 2 RME - UK
EF BB ET EEFZTHE(R
WZEFELTFSDEARD ABRAEMEL
ERTFEE) ROEFER  SAHEN
AARRBEB T ERSMEBAERAE
ZHEEFIMT -

Fee paid/payable
g2t ENER

HK$’000
FH
693

598

1,291
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Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The following statement sets out the responsibilities for the
Directors in relation to the quarterly, interim and annual financial
statements.

Annual Report and Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare financial
statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group and in presenting the quarterly,
interim and annual financial statements and announcements
to shareholders, the Directors aim to present a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Group’s position and prospects.

Accounting Records

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Group keeps
accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy the
financial position of the Group and which enable the preparation of
financial statements in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards as promulgated by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks, it is willing to take in achieving
the Company’s strategic objectives, and ensuring that the
Company establishes and maintains appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems. The internal control
system includes safeguard of the interest of shareholders and
the Group’s assets. It has been an important duty of the Board to
conduct a review of internal control to ensure the effectiveness
and adequacy of the system of the Group annually or at any time
necessary. The review covers all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls, as well as risk
management functions.

The Group has engaged Elite Partners CPA Limited as an
independent internal control review advisor to conduct the annual
review on the effectiveness of the internal control system. Review
of the Group’s internal controls covering major operational, financial
and compliance controls, as well as risk management functions of
different systems has been performed on a systematic rotational
basis on the risk assessments of the operations and controls. No
major issues on the internal control system have been identified
during the year ended 31 December 2016.

Going Concern

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that the
Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate
to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial
statements.
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Auditors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The statement of external auditors of the Company, Elite Partners
CPA Limited, about their reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report.

Investor Relations and Communication with Shareholders

The Company uses a number of formal communications channels
to account to shareholders and investors for the performance
of the Company. These include (i) the publication of quarterly,
interim and annual reports; (ii) the annual general meeting or
extraordinary general meeting providing a forum for shareholders
of the Company to raise comments and exchanging views with the
Board; (iii) key information of the Group available on the website
of the Company; (iv) the Company’s share registrars in Hong Kong
serving the shareholders in respect of all share registration matters;
and (v) corporate information and the articles of association of the
Company are made available on the Company’s website.

A shareholder’'s communication policy was adopted by the Board
on 29 March 2012 aiming at providing the Shareholders and
potential investors with ready and timely access to balanced and
understandable information of the Company.

The Company aims to provide its shareholders and investors with
high standards of disclosure and financial transparency. The Board
is committed to providing clear, detailed, timely manner and on
a regular basis information of the Group to shareholders through
the publication of quarterly, interim and annual reports and/or
dispatching circular, notices, and other announcements.

The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and enhancing
communication with the existing shareholders and potential
investors. It welcomes suggestions from investors, stakeholders
and the public. Enquiries to the Board or the Company may be sent
by post to the Company’s registered office at 16th Floor, Henan
Building, Nos. 90 & 92 Jaffe Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong.

BBETR A B RER 2 BT

RARINPEBEN BT E RSN E AR
DERAKEMBHRR 2 2REE2BAEAR
B RS o

REEBMRERERFER
AATRAZEEXNBARE  URBREKRIR
EERPAATZRE - WEREOE()TIZ
=E - PHREERS ) (NVBRTRRBEEAS
ERREFHIARE  AERATRRIBERLTR
REEESTRBEEZTA ; (ii)RADQ B R
BGEAEBZEEER ; (VEAQAFAREBZ
RIVBFERE  BAEROBCLCEERBER
R UR(V)ARERRAARNABANER
RATREIL AT HZE o

EEEN-Z-—_FZA-+ABRARRE
BREX  EEARRIREEREEDERKIN
BALEZEEAZES -

AAREEMERREBREERHSKTFESR
RERDBERE - EEEEGH  EBTIRE
B hHRFERSR/RFHBR - BAR
Hp i - B R EHERREHEEREE
2R RER

RABTEESEREEBRERINBERER
RREEREEZER - ARAEBLREE
FOERDNRRHER - ERAALTUEFTH
NREARRBEMPBIE (i B F B E (75
HEORR2FEHBAEI6R)AESTHAR
A& -

Annual Report 2016 —Z—X~FFi{K 45



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ERELIRS

Shareholders’ Rights

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary General
Meeting

Pursuant to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) and the Articles of Association, an EGM can be
convened by a written request signed by Shareholders, stating the
objects of the meeting, and deposited at the Company’s registered
office at 16th Floor, Henan Building, Nos. 90 & 92 Jaffe Road, Wan
Chai, Hong Kong.

Procedures for putting forward Proposals at a General Meeting

The procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at an
AGM or EGM include a written notice of those proposals being
submitted by shareholders, addressed to the Company Secretary
at the Company’s registered office at 16th Floor, Henan Building,
Nos. 90 & 92 Jaffe Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong. The detailed
procedures vary according to whether the proposal constitutes
an ordinary resolution or a special resolution, or whether the
proposal relates to the election of a person other than a Director
of the Company as a director. The procedures for shareholders to
convene and put forward proposals at an AGM or EGM (including
election of a person other than a Director of the Company as a
director) are available on the Company’s website or on request to
the Company Secretary.

Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries to the Board
Shareholders may at any time send their enquires and concerns
to the Board in writing through the Company Secretary at the
Company’s registered office at 16th Floor, Henan Building, Nos.
90 & 92 Jaffe Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong or send email to
info@8022hk.com.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the AGM
or EGM.
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Company Secretary

During the year ended 31 December 2016, Ms. Leung Pui Ki
(“Ms. Leung”) was one of the joint Company Secretary who is not
an employee of the Company’ and Ms. Lo Wing Wah Irene, the
financial controller of the Company, is the person whom Ms. Leung
can contact for the purpose of code provision F.1.1 of the CG
Code. On 8 September 2016, Mr. Chan Ming Kei (“Mr. Chan”) was
appointed as the other joint Company Secretary. Ms. Leung and
Mr. Chan have confirmed that for the year under review, she/he has
taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training. The
joint Company Secretaries supported the Chairman, the Board and
the Board Committees by ensuring good information flow and that
Board policy and procedures were followed. The joint Company
Secretaries advised the Board on governance matters and
facilitates the induction and professional development of Directors.
All Directors may call upon his/her for advice and assistance at
any time in respect to their duties and the effective operation of the
Board and the Board Committees.

Subsequently on 18 February 2017, Ms. Leung resigned as the
joint Company Secretary and Mr. Chan'’s position of joint company
secretary became the company secretary of the Company.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liabilities

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance covering the
liabilities of the Directors that may arise out the corporate activities,
which has been complied with the CG Code. The insurance
coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.

Looking forward

The Group will keep on reviewing its corporate governance
standards on a timely basis and the Board endeavors to take
the necessary actions to ensure the compliance with the code
provisions of the CG Code introduced by the Stock Exchange.
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PREAMBLE

The Group actively adheres to environmental and social
responsibilities. The Board is ultimately responsible for
leading the environmental, social and governance (“ESG”)
works, including establishing dedicated management teams
under the headquarters to manage ESG issues within each
business division. Designated staff are assigned to enforce and
supervise the implementation of relevant policies.

The Group is committed to making continuous improvements
in corporate environmental and social responsibility in order to
meet the changing needs of an advancing society. The Group is
pleased to present its ESG report this year to demonstrate its
efforts on sustainable development.

REPORTING PERIOD AND SCOPE OF THE REPORT

This ESG report covers the operational boundary of the Group
which including the core businesses of travel agent services,
commodities trading business and cemetery business. For
corporate governance section, please refer to the Group’s 2016
Annual Report pages 33 to 47. The reporting period of this
ESG report is for the financial year 2016, from 1 January 2016
to 31 December 2016 (“FY2016”), unless specifically stated
otherwise.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

To conduct of the Group’s materiality assessment in identifying
and understanding the main concerns and material interests
of stakeholders, the Group have engaged its stakeholders,
including employees, suppliers and customers. Stakeholders
are selected based on stakeholder influence and stakeholder
dependence on the Group. Stakeholders with high influence
and high dependence on the Group are selected by the
management of the Group. The selected stakeholders have
been invited to express their views and concerns on major
social and environment issues. The stakeholder engagement
has been conducted through online survey. For this report,
the Group has identified legal compliance on environmental,
employment and operating practices as material concerns to
stakeholders.

After assessing the feedback from internal and external
stakeholders through an online survey, the Group has reviewed
its sustainability strategies, practices and measures undertaken
in FY2016 and highlighted material and relevant aspects
throughout this report so as to align with the stakeholders’
expectations.
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IV. ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY

In recent decades, environmental protection issues are
becoming more and more important as a result of global
climate change, air and water pollution caused by human
activities. The Group has been paying great attention on
protecting the environment and taking the responsibility to curb
global warming. The Group strives to protect the environment
by integrating a range of environmental initiatives across the
business. The commitment to protect the environment is well
reflected by continuous efforts in promoting green measures
and awareness in daily business operations. The Group
encourages environmental protection and promotes awareness
towards environmental protection to the employees. The Group
adheres to the principle of Recycling and Reducing. The Group
will review its environmental practices from time to time and
will consider implementing further eco-friendly measures and
practices in the operation of the Group’s businesses to move
towards adhering the 3Rs — Reduce, Recycle and Reuse and
enhance environmental sustainability.

A.1.Emissions

The Group does not generated significant emissions
in terms of wastewater, waste pollutants, air pollutants
and hazardous waste due to its business nature which
is operating mainly in the office buildings. The Group
endeavours to operate in an environmental sustainable
manner to make contributions to curb global climate
change.

The main emissions include domestic wastewater and daily
trash generated in different offices by the Group’s staff,
and the Green House Gas (“GHG”) emission generated
from the purchased electricity consumed by the Group’s
daily operation. The Group has strictly followed the
emission standards of wastewater and domestic waste in
each operating office.

Although emissions from offices are insignificant in daily
operation, the Group continuously encourages the staff
to make contribution on carbon reduction and energy
saving. The Group is committed to ensure the best use of
water resource therefore to avoid unnecessary amount of
wastewater generated. The Group also encourages its staff
to bring lunch boxes instead of ordering take-away food
to avoid the generation of food waste and food packaging
waste. The Group is dedicated to protect the environment
by taking every simple action if feasible.
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To reduce the amount of carbon emission, the Group
implements several practical measures on saving energy as
further described in the next section “Use of Resources”.
With sound awareness on saving energy, along with the
effective implementation of the corresponding policies and
measures by employees, the Group targets to reach a
positive reduction of carbon emission progressively.

A.2.Use of Resources

The Group strives to save energy and resources through
persistent implementation of internal policies in order to
ensure resources are consumed in responsible manner.
The Group has been using office equipment carrying
Energy Label which is issued by the Electrical and
Mechanical Services Department in HK offices. To ensure
green policies are followed in daily operations, the Group
has encouraged the staff in areas such as saving electricity
and saving water resource.

The total electricity consumption of the Group was
approximately 115,835kWh in FY2016. All of its electricity
consumption is directly coming from the lighting, air-
conditioners, computers and other office equipment
in different offices. The Group is committed to saving
electricity saving in the office daily operation by
implementing the following measures:

* Post notices on electricity saving measures in every
working day;

+ Switch off all idle copy machine, fax machine,
computers and lights before the end of a working day;

+ Clean the office equipment regularly (such as
refrigerator, air-conditioner, paper shredder, etc.) to
ensure that they run efficiently; and

* Unplug equipment like printers and photocopiers
before long holidays to save energy consumption.

Water consumption by the Group is entirely coming from
the domestic use by its staff during the working hours
in office. Measures that the Group have taken on water
conservation are described as below:

* Remind staff to turn off water tap after use in order to
save water through email and notice; and

*  Present “Saving Water Resource” poster in prominent
places to encourage water conservation.
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A.3.The Environment and Natural Resources

The main natural resources consumed by the Group
include paper from its office printing machine and the daily
use of tissue by staff. The Group has made great efforts
on other simple actions to minimise the use of natural
resources described as below:

* Recycle used stationery whenever possible;
* Record the consumption of each staff by the use of
access card for printing or copying to maintain good

management of paper consumption;

* Preview documents to adjust page layout or margins
before printing with aim to save papers;

»  Print out the exact amount of copies to avoid wastage;

+ Use office automation system, e-mails or notice board
for internal documentation;

» Save and avoid waste of tissue; and

» Use the back of old documents for printing or as draft
paper.

V. SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY

Employment and Labour Practices
B.1. Employment

The Group treasures talent as it is the most valuable asset
and key for driving success and maintaining sustainable
development. The Group strives to provide the staff with
a safe and suitable platform for career development
and advancement. As at 31 December 2016, the Group
employed a total of 98 staff.
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The Group’s human resources policies strictly adhere to
the applicable employment laws and regulations in Hong
Kong and China including, the Employment Ordinance,
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, Minimum
Wage Ordinance, Company Law of the PRC (B2 A
3%), Labour Law of the PRC (FEI%58)5%), Labour Contract
Law of the PRC (FEI% & &[E5%), and the social security
schemes that are enforced by the State Regulations of the
PRC to provide employee benefits. The Group complies
with the Social Insurance Law (Bl &R kE5%) to support
employees' social security benefits, including the provision
of pension, medical insurance, unemployment insurance,
work-related injury insurance, maternity insurance and
housing provident fund. The Group has formulated the
“Employees’ Handbook” for standardised human resources
policy according to the above laws and regulations and
Human Resources Department reviews and updates the
relevant company policies regularly in accordance with the
latest laws and regulations.

The Group offers competitive and fair remuneration
and benefits based on individuals' education, technical
qualifications and experience. In order to motivate and
reward the existing management and employees, the
Group conducts regular compensation review with the
external market and job performance to ensure adequate
understanding and feedback on employee's performance.
Meanwhile, any termination of employment contract should
be based on reasonable and lawful grounds.

As an equal opportunity employer, the Group is committed
to create a fair, respectful and diverse working environment
by promoting anti-discrimination and equal opportunity in all
human resources and employment decisions irrespective
of their gender, race, age, disability, family status, marital
status, sexual orientation, religion beliefs, nationality or
any other non-job related factors in all business units.
Equal opportunities policy enforces zero tolerance to
any workplace discrimination or sexual harassment in
accordance to relevant government legislation, ordinances
and regulations such as Disability Discrimination Ordinance
and Sex Discrimination Ordinance. If there is any violation
of anti-discrimination incidents, employees can report
to Human Resources Department. Human Resources
Department investigates thoroughly and confidentially in
accordance with the guidelines on assessing, dealing with,
recording and taking disciplinary actions on such events.
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The Group determines reasonable working hours and rest
periods for the employees in line with local employment
laws and employment contract with employees. In addition
to statutory holidays stipulated by the employment law
of local government such as the paid annual leave,
employees may also be entitled to special leave such as
maternity leave and compassionate leave. To cultivate
employees' sense of belonging, additional employee
benefits include but not limited to hosting annual dinner
which help employees to relieve stress and served to
exemplify the Group’s corporate culture of the spirit of
solidarity and cohesion among its employees.

Furthermore, the effective two-way communication
between general staff and managerial staff is highly
encouraged. Employees maintain timely and smooth
communication with the management and colleagues
within the Group through emails and meetings. Those
interactive communication systems benefit the Group's
decision-making process and results in a barrier-free
employer-employee relationship.

B.2. Health and Safety

The Group undertakes to safeguard the health and safety
of its employees and expects employees to strictly observe
the Group’s health & safety policies set out in “Employees’
Handbook”. The Group’s safety and health policies are
in line with various laws and regulations stipulated by the
Government of Hong Kong and PRC, including Occupation
Disease Prevention Law of PRC (FHE AR X FMERER
Fi3&3%) and Hong Kong’s Occupational Safety and Health
Ordinance.
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The Group has established a comprehensive mechanism
in committing the workplace safety by incorporating a
range of occupational health and safety measures such
as prohibition on smoking, drinking liquor, drug or other
substance abuse by employees which will impair their
health, working efficiency and productivity. To ensure
adequate protection for employees against accidents,
instructions are issued to departments on safety policies
and procedures. Employees who suffer from injury arising
out of and in the course of employment are entitled to
compensation in accordance with the local laws and
regulations such as Hong Kong’s Employee Compensation
Ordinance, Labour Contract Law of the PRC (T B4 &&
[@7%) and the social security schemes. Employees follow
the safety and health measures set out in the operating
manuals such as Fire Safety Management Policy (GEF
ZE2EEEIE). Those measures remind employees to
minimise the risk of accidents and enhance the employees’
health and safety awareness. In addition, cleaning air-
conditioning systems and disinfection treatment of carpets
are performed regularly with an aim to maintain a clean,
tidy, smoke-free, non-toxic, non-hazardous, healthy
and safe working environment. Emergency exits are
unobstructed and unlocked from the inside at all times in
working place during working hours. The Group targets to
achieve accident-free workplace environment.

B.3. Development and Training

The Group offers different training and development
opportunities to its staff in order to strengthen work-related
skills and knowledge and improve operational efficiency
and productivity. The Group has implemented training
programme to executives and employees by considering
individual capacity and qualification. For newly recruited
staff, the Group provides staffs with relevant trainings with
regard to its corporate culture, enterprise's values, code of
conduct and business prospects. Ordinary staff have on-
job trainings which focus on the specific knowledge and
technical updates on different business units to improve the
overall working quality and meet a higher level standard of
work. Middle and senior management personnel trainings
mainly focus on professional knowledge and skills,
management skills and financial management.
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The Group strictly abides by the Employment Ordinance
of Hong Kong, Labour Law of the PRC, Labour Contract
Law of the PRC, Prohibition of Child Labour of the PRC
(PEZLEFEBEIRE) and other related labour laws
and regulations in Hong Kong and PRC to prohibits any
child and forced labour employment. To combat against
illegal employment on child labour and forced labour,
prior to confirmation of employment, human resources
staff responsible for recruitment requires job applicants
to provide valid identity documents to ensure that the
applicants are lawfully employable. Human Resources
Department is responsible to monitor and ensure
compliance of latest and relevant laws and regulations that
prohibits child labour and forced labour.

Operating Practices
B.5. Supply Chain Management

As a socially responsible enterprise, it is critical and vital
to maintain and manage a sustainable and reliable supply
chain. The supply chain management is consistent to
the Group’s sustainability in establishing a mutual trust
and understanding with its business partners. The Group
expects the suppliers to operate in compliance with local
environmental laws, ordinances and regulations, to reduce
ecological impacts. In selecting suppliers, comprehensive
assessment is performed over different criteria including
reputation in the industry, supplier's business compliance
with local laws and regulations, relevant business licenses,
services and products quality, after-sales services,
technical capacity and price.

The Group sets up a supplier selection panel and establish
the scoring system to select the appropriate suppliers. The
Group will also conduct on-site investigation for assess
potential suppliers if necessary. The potential supplier
can be qualified as an approved supplier by obtaining the
approval from the panel. The Group maintains a list of
approved suppliers and monitors the quality of suppliers on
a strict and continuous basis through conducting regular
evaluation by considering a number of factors such as the
number of complaints collected from the customers and
the responsiveness with suppliers in handling complaints
to assessing the service quality of the suppliers, quality
testing on the supply of goods and irregular on-site
inspection. The Group maintains at least two suppliers
for each supply goods in order to avoid the disruption of
services and prevent monopoly of suppliers. The above
measures effectively facilitate better cooperation and
communication with suppliers and maintain a long-term
strategic cooperation relation with the Group.
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B.6. Product Responsibility

The Group precisely grasps the trend for customers’ need
on product and service quality from different channels.
With regard to the Group's product health and safety,
advertising and labelling, the Group is strictly in compliance
with the related rules and regulations as stipulated in
China including but not limited to Tourism Law of the PRC
(hE AR EMBEMRFEE), National Funeral Management
Regulations (BIREZ S %), Cemetery Management
Approach (REE %) and Advertising Law of the PRC
(PEARLMBEESE). The Group conducts regular
evaluation to review the compliance on relevant laws and
regulations.

The Group pays great importance on product quality and
commit to offer high-quality services to the market. For
travel agency business, the Group ensures to provide
clear and accurate information before customer purchasing
travel products and protect consumers by prohibiting false,
misleading or incomplete trade descriptions, information
and misstatements in respect of goods and services. The
Group prohibits any imply forced consumption matters
in tour packages. If there is any problem, tour escort
will communicate with the service providers to resolve
the issue. For commodities trading business, provides
seamless connectivity from time to time to ensure that the
trading process is dealt with in the utmost ethical manner.
For cemetery business, the Group commits to meet the
local rules and regulations in business operation in order to
provide a clean and tidy environment. The burial plots are
in good condition for grasp the demand for legitimate burial
with limited supply in the local market.

The Group’s business manager visits the customers
regularly to collect customers’ opinions. Customer services
department records the details of the complaint, if any;
monitors the handling and progress of the complaint and
records the results in travel agency business. Through the
internal and external communication channels, the Group
obtains first hand and intimate knowledge from customers
which enhances and strengthens the product offerings and
service quality, and consequently enable the Group to stay
competitive in the market.

The Group closely monitors released marketing materials
and product labelling to prevent inappropriate or
exaggerated advertisement. If there is any noncompliance
with internal guideline, the Group would consult external
legal adviser and carry out corrective action immediately if
necessary. In addition, the internal guidelines have been
regularly updated with the latest regulations released by
the government.
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The Group commits in abiding by the Personal Data
(Privacy) Ordinance, Law on Protection of Consumer
Rights and Interests of the PRC (T EIH & &R REE)
and related laws and regulations on consumer data policy
to ensure that customers' rights are strictly protected.
Information collected would only be used for the purpose
for which it has been collected and customers would be
told about how the data collected would be used. The
Group prohibits the provision of consumer information to
a third party without authorisation from the customers.
All collected personal data is treated confidentially and is
kept securely, accessible by designated personnel only.
Through the internal training and confidential agreements
with employees, the Group emphasises on confidentiality
obligations and the legal consequences for the breaches of
obligations.

. Anti-corruption

To maintain a fair, ethical and efficient business and
working environment, the Group strictly adheres to the
laws and regulations relating to anti-corruption and bribery
as set out by the government of the PRC and Hong Kong
including Law of the PRC on Anti-money Laundering (#
B [ %$85%) and Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (5L
BR1%451). Besides, the Group has formulated and strictly
enforced anti-corruption policy as stipulated in operation
manual namely Confidential Whistleblowing Policy (%
K2R BIEE) and Employees Handbook to manage any
fraudulent practices such as accepting bribes or rebates,
misappropriating or engaging in illegal economic activities
that the Group will not be tolerated any form of corruption.

The Group has developed and formulated internal
whistleblowing policy to enable employees to report and
complaint in writing any suspicious activities including but
not limit to criminal offense, contravening the law, unlawful
or inappropriate or fraudulent behaviours involving internal
control, account and financial matters, acts which endanger
the health and safety of persons, violation of the Group’s
code of conduct or rules and regulations; improper conduct
or unethical conduct which may prejudice the Group’s
reputation and deliberately concealing the above matters
to Human Resources Department, Company Secretary
or Audit Committee. They would conduct investigations
against any suspicious or illegal behaviour upon receipt the
report and ensure all the relevant information is kept intact
and completely recorded.
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The Group advocates a confidentiality mechanism and take
reasonable steps to protect the whistle-blowers without
fear of threatens or harassments and any disadvantage to
the whistle-blowers’ employment relationship. Breaching
of the rules will be disciplined, including termination of
employment and may be prosecuted under local laws and
regulations relating to anti-corruption and bribery where
criminality is suspected after investigation.

COMMUNITY

B.8. Community Investment

The Group places great emphasis on cultivating social
responsibility awareness among the staff and encourages
them to participate in charitable activities. The Group
believes that undertaking socially responsible initiatives
is truly a win-win situation. Not only will the Group be
attractive to socially conscious consumers and employees,
but it will also make a real difference in the world by
contributing love and care.

The Group has been continuously fulfilling their social
responsibility through sponsoring local community and its
employees. From the year 2015 to 2016, the Group was
awarded as the Caring Company in Hong Kong. The Group
has established sound medical care scheme for employees
to guarantee the best benefit for their health issues. The
Group has been accumulating appropriate amount of
money for sponsoring the charity dinner activities among
employees.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B BENERE

TO THE MEMBERS OF EVERSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS
LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Evershine
Group Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out
on pages 67 to 163, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2016, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and note to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2016, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“‘HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”) together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of consolidated financial statements in
Hong Kong, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.
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B ZBENRE

Key audit matter

HARETER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EBERR ZRERE

Impairment of trade receivables

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had trade
receivables of approximately HK$72.2 million which
were mainly arising from its trading segment. The
Group generally offer a credit period of 30 days to 180
days to its customers.

The key associated risk was the recoverability of trade
receivables. The management regularly review the
recoverability of trade debtors on individual basis and
make judgement for impairment based on historical
repayment records and any significant change in credit
quality for each of the debtors.

We have identified impairment of trade receivables as
a key audit matter because management’s judgement
was significantly involved in the determination of the
recoverability of the trade receivable.
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Our major audit procedures relating to the impairment
of trade receivables included the following:

» We reviewed the management’s receivables
provision policy and tested the accuracy of the
ageing of the receivables balances on sample
basis.

» We analysed the receivables provision focusing
on any unusual payment terms and review of
customer payment history.

*  We examined material individual aged receivable
balances and obtained the rationale for
management’s provisioning decisions by reference
to payment patterns during the year.

* We assessed the level of recoverability after the

year end on receivable balances to consider any
additional provisioning required.
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B BENERE

Key audit matter

RRETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EBERRZRERE

Fair value of investment properties

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group
acquired investment properties in Hong Kong which
were recorded in the consolidated statement of financial
position by using fair value model. As at 31 December
2016, the fair value of the investment properties was
approximately HK$51.9 million.

The Group appointed an independent professional
valuer to determine the fair value of investment
properties as at 31 December 2016. The valuation
model adopted for the valuation was market
comparison approach.

We have identified the assessment of fair value of
investment properties as a key audit matter because
significant judgement was involved in the determination
of the fair value of the investment properties.
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Our major audit procedures relating to the fair value of
investment properties included the following:

*  We discussed with management and independent
valuer engaged by the Company in relation to the
methodology applied and assumptions being used
in arriving the fair value of investment properties.

» We checked the accuracy and reliance of the
source data used in the valuation.

* We assessed the competency of the independent

external valuer taking into account its experience
and qualifications.
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Key audit matter

HARETER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EBERPZRERE

Impairment assessment of goodwill and intangible assets in relation to mobile application segment

As at 31 December 2016, before the impairment
assessment, the Group has goodwill of approximately
HK$11.0 million and intangible assets of approximately
HK$14.7 million which were allocated to the Group’s
mobile application segment (“Mobile Application CGU”).

For the purpose of assessing impairment, the Group
appointed an independent valuer to assess the
recoverable amount of the Mobile Application CGU,
which were determined by management based on
the higher value-in-use and fair value less costs of
disposal. The valuation requires significant judgement
by management in valuing the Mobile Application CGU.

As a result of the impairment assessment, due to
the unsatisfactory performance of mobile application
segment, the Group recognised an impairment loss
of approximately HK$11.0 million and approximately
HK$14.3 million for goodwill and intangible assets,
respectively.

We have identified the impairment assessment of
goodwill and intangible assets as a key audit matter
because the estimates of the recoverable amount of
the Mobile Application CGU are complex, subjective
and highly judgmental, in particular, assumptions and
judgements made by management in arriving at the
cash flow forecasts of the Mobile Application CGU.
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Our major audit procedures relating to the
management’s impairment assessment of goodwill
and intangible assets relating to the mobile application
segment included the following:

* We obtained and reviewed cash flow forecasts
of the related cash-generating units prepared by
management and approved by the directors of the
Company.

*  We discussed with management and independent
valuer engaged by the Company in relation to the
methodology applied, bases and assumptions
being used in arriving at the forecasts (e.g. sales
growth rate, operating profit margin and discount
rate).

*  We checked, on a sample basis, the accuracy and
reliability of the input data used.

* We assessed the competency of the independent
external valuer taking into account its experience
and qualifications.

* We performed sensitivity analysis on key
assumptions being used in the forecasts (e.g. using
a range of higher discount rates and lower revenue
growth rate).
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Key audit matter

RRETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EBERRZRERE

Impairment assessment of intangible assets in relation to cemetery segment

As at 31 December 2016, included in tangible assets
was an operating rights of cemetery of approximately
HK$118 million which were allocated to the Group’s
cemetery segment (“Cemetery CGU”).

For the purpose of assessing impairment, the Group
appointed an independent valuer to assess the
recoverable amount of the Cemetery CGU, which
were determined by management based on the higher
value-in-use and fair value less costs of disposal.
The valuation requires significant judgement by
management in valuing the Cemetery CGU.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, no impairment
loss had been recognised on the Group’s intangible
assets in related to cemetery segment.

We have identified the impairment assessment of
intangible assets related to cemetery segment as a key
audit matter because the estimates of the recoverable
amount of the Cemetery CGU are complex, subjective
and highly judgmental, in particular, assumptions and
judgements made by management in arriving at the
cash flow forecasts of the Cemetery CGU.
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Our major audit procedures relating to the
management’s impairment assessment of goodwill
and intangible assets relating to the cemetery segment
included the following:

*+ We obtained and reviewed cash flow forecasts
of the related cash-generating units prepared by
management and approved by the directors of the
Company.

*  We discussed with management and independent
valuer engaged by the Company in relation to
the methodology applied, basis and assumptions
being used in arriving at the forecasts (e.g. time of
completion, operating profit margin and discount
rate).

*  We checked, on a sample basis, the accuracy and
reliability of the input data used.

*  We assessed the competency of the independent
external valuer taking into account its experience
and qualifications.

» We performed sensitivity analysis on key
assumptions being used in the forecasts (e.g. using
a range of higher discount rates and lower revenue
growth rate).

EEUHEEBEARAES BB ERENEE ZRE
AEH 2 EEETREFEBETIISE

- EECHSYERHERERERA BELQAE
SHERRREELENZRSRERA

ESEHEEER BORMEREBEEMT®
EHZETNRA T EARTER 2 EE KRR
Rl TR » EERNRRHER) o

« BECHERERERBABB CERERTEE -

- RERBUIBGEMERKER BEEFEH
BS{ERES o

- BECHARRAMEREIERRETHRREDIN
(BlanERRS 2R RRBE 2 WHIERREE)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B ZBENRE

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee are responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B BENERE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. The report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

* ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B ZBENRE

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

» Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with audit committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated audit committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chan Wai Nam William with practising certificate
number: P05957.

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 24 March 2017

10th Floor,

8 Observatory Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

RealEgx
iy = ﬂ For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE_—Z—A<E+-ZA=+—HIFE

2016 2015
—NE “Z-EHF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TET TBT
(Re-presented)
(&=E71)
Continuing operations RERSEER
Revenue g 4813 135,462 72,900
Cost of services BRAE A (130,576) (69,263)
Gross profit EA 4,886 3,637
Other income, gains and losses, net HAWA ~ WS K E a4 5 6,403 495
Impairment loss on intangible assets B EEZAEEE 16 (14,309)
Impairment loss on goodwill BB ZREEE 17 (10,997) (617)
Operating and administrative expenses RERITHEY (41,987) (31,652)
Loss from operations REEE (56,004) (28,137)
Finance costs RE R 6(a) (12,542) (1,729)
Loss before taxation BRBiRIE R 6 (68,546) (29,866)
Taxation B 7(a) 916 228
Loss after taxation from continuing operations ~ HES & %56 2 RHi B EE (67,630) (29,638)
Discontinued operations BARIEER
Profit/(Loss) from discontinued operations BRIEERET(BE) 11 2,706 16,108
Loss for the year REEFER (64,924) (13,530)
Attributable to: BER
Shareholders of the Company AAFRR
— From continuing operations — REFELCEER (68,436) (28,948)
— From discontinued operations — RECKRIEER 11 3,037 16,952
(65,399) (11,996)
Non-controlling interests FERES
— From continuing operations — REBESEES 806 (690)
— From discontinued operations — REBK LK 11 (331) (844)
475 (1,534)
Loss for the year rEEEHR (64,924) (13,530)
(Loss)/Earnings per share SkR(E8E)BF 12
From continuing and discontinued operations ~ REIHE KL £H K ORI EH
Basic and Diluted HEAREE (4.49) centsiB{ll  (1.42) centsiEl
From continuing operations REFELCEEY 12
Basic and Diluted BEAR#E (4.70) centsiE{ll  (3.43) centsiE{lL
From discontinued operations RECHKILEK 12
Basic and Diluted HEAREE 0.21 centsi#l 2.01 cents3& Al

The accompanying notes form part of these consolidated financial

statements.

BEM MRS RS

Annual Report 2016

S i

BEmREPE D

67



T

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

reiAaRAMREREER
lﬁ: = ﬂ ﬂ For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE_—Z—A<"E+-ZA=+—HILEFE

2016 2015
—B-RE —E-fF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FEx FEx

(Re-presented)
€ <3=271))

Loss for the year KEERKIE (64,924) (13,530)

Other comprehensive expense for the year ZAFEEH2EEIX

ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to AIRERHEBEEH S EE

profit or loss: Bm2IER
Exchange differences on translation of BREFINGE A R RE

financial statements of overseas subsidiaries  Z[E 5 Z%8 (4,252) (737)
Share of exchange differences of associates 2 {hEf= A B Z B K =48 (65) —
Other comprehensive expense for the year ARFEEH 2 HEBIX (4,317) (737)
Total comprehensive expense for the year ZAFEE2HEBIXEEE (69,241) (14,267)
Attributable to: BB

Equity shareholders of the Company RATRE (69,553) (12,761)

Non-controlling interests IR 312 (1,5086)
Total comprehensive expense for the year ZAFE2HEFIZERE (69,241) (14,267)

The accompanying notes form part of these consolidated financial — BEMiH3I B Z SRS MIFRRE P IS
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

FeMBERnE
iy = y) At 31 December 2016 R=—ZE—XxE+=-A=+—A

2016
—E—RE

HK$°000
Tz

2015
—E-REF
HK$’000
FExT

Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M~ BERRE 14 53,812 1,165
Investment properties REYE 15 51,900 —
Intangible assets B ERE 16 118,351 144,260
Goodwill S 17 — 10,997
Interests in associates i AN 18 60,418 19,272
284,481 175,694
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 20 3,518 14,984
Trade and other receivables B 5 KR EMERIIE 21 119,112 65,160
Deposit for acquisition of subsidiaries ~ WEBKB A Tk S 19 — 10,000
Restricted bank deposits ZIREIERITER 22 2,406 2,550
Cash and cash equivalents HERBESEEY 23 12,406 40,188
137,442 132,882
Current liabilities wREAE
Trade and other payables B R EMENTIE 24 40,433 23,200
Short-term loans BHIERK 25 52,000 2,000
Promissory notes A EE 26 27,508 27,170
119,941 52,370
Net current assets RBEEFE 17,501 80,512
Total assets less current liabilites EEABRRBERE 301,982 256,206
Non-current liabilities ERBARS
Promissory notes A EE 26 83,152 —
Convertible notes IR E 2 27 24,348 38,523
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIEEE 28 — 916
107,500 39,439
NET ASSETS EEZE 194,482 216,767
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
ﬁéﬂﬁﬂkiﬂi At 31 December 2016 R=ZF—~<F+=-A=+—H

2016 2015
—E—XF —E—fF
Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000
Jiorz FET FE&T
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRR#E
Share capital [i% 29 959,333 908,401
Reserves & 29 (777,518) (700,335)
Total equity attributable to AN T B R PEAL
shareholders of the Company S 181,815 208,066
Non-controlling interests FEiERER 12,667 8,701
TOTAL EQUITY RSB 194,482 216,767

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 24
March 2017.

Chan Ming Kei
PR ERE
Director

EF

The accompanying notes form part of these consolidated financial
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
-ﬁ‘:g’ﬂ ﬁﬁg § For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE=Z—X<E+=A=+—HLLFE

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

ROERRRE
Convertible Accumu- Non-
Share  Exchange  Statutory notes Other [ated controlling
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve losses  Sub-fotal interests
TR E 37
RE ENRE  OiERRE  RERE  BtEE R gt B
Notes HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
3 fér  TiEn Tén Tién Tén B TEn  TEn
At1 January 2015 “E-1%-f-A 755,030 752 53 - 44 (699,486) 56,393 (19,657) 36,736
Loss for the year FhEE - - - - — M%) (1% (15%)  (135%0)
Exchange difference on translationof ~ BEEHNHELF
financial statements of overseas kR
subsidiaries EXZE - (765) - - - - (765) 28 (737)
Loss and total comprehensive expenses  EREER 2 EREXL%E
forthe year - (%) - - (M) (2761) (1505 (14267)
Issue of convertible notes BITRRSE 27 - - — 11063 - - 11063 - 11083
Issue of ight shares BfRRG 2 81927 = = = - - W - W
Isstie of placing shares BARERR 2 71444 - - - - - 144 — 144
Acquisition of subsidiaries WERELF kil - - - - - - — 1270 12740
Disposal of subsidiaries LENEAF 2 — — - - - - — 14 M
At 31 December 2015 WoE-EE+=AZ1-B 908,401 (t3) 53 11063 M (TM48) 8066 8T 216767
(Loss)/Profit for the year ER(EE) /5 - - - - —  (65399)  (65,399) 415 (64,924)
— share of exchange —HMEBEDFZ
difference on associate EXZE - (65) - - - - (65) - (65)
Exchange difference on translation BERMNEAR
of financial statements of overseas 15,56
subsidaries ExzH — 8 - - - — ) () (2%
Loss and total comprehensive EREERZE
expenses for the year RxAE - (a154) - - - (65399)  (69,55) M2 (69,241)
Capitalinjection from non-controllng Mg
inferest bis- - - - - - - - 45 45
Issue of convertible notes BITRREE a - - - 3433 - - 3433 - 3433
Issue of shares upon RETRRZEERTRG
conversion of convertible notes 27 50,932 - - (11,063) — — 39,869 — 39,869
Disposal of subsidiaries LENEAT 32 - - - - - - - 3,600 3,609
At 31 December 2016 RZB-~"E+ZB=1-H 959,333 (4,167) 53 3433 4 (176881) 181,815 12,667 194,482
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

TRE&RER
lﬁ: = i ')ILE For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE-ZE— R E+-A=1+—HILEE

2016

HK$’000

TR

2015
—E-1EF
HK$'000
TR
(Re-presented)
(&&5)

Operating activities Fd-3S
(Loss)/Profit before taxation BRBEAT (B518) /%R
from continuing operation REFELEER (68,546) (29,866)
from discontinued operation RECKIEER 2,706 16,108
Adjustments for T
Depreciation of property,plant and equipment WE  BEREETE 1,782 195
Bad debt written off b - 1,200
Gain on bargain purchase on BB g AT
acquisition of an associate ETEEE 2 hE (2,416) —
Fair value gain on investment properties RENME 2 AFENE (6,981) —
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEEH 11,600 11,600
Impairment loss on intangible asset B EEZRERSE 14,309 =
Gain on extinguishment of financial liabilities EHeRHaEzhE (2,811) -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HENE BERREESE - 14
Gain of disposal of subsidiaries HEMBLA Rz (3,534) (19,483)
Interest income FIEBA (57) (51)
Finance costs B R AR 12,542 1,729
Impairment loss on amount due from an associate FEl — RIS A BFE 2 REEE 6,000 —
Impairment loss on goodwil HMERESE 10,997 617
Operating loss before changed in working capital EEESEHA CEER (24,409) (17,937)
Decreasel(increase) in inventories =ERY /(M) 11,466 (14,984)
Increase in trade and other receivables EEYE et (54,747) (58,671)
(Decrease)fincrease in trade and other payable ESREMENTECHD) /B (19,351) 8,769
Decrease in asset held for sales HEHEERRYD — 1,723
Cash used in operating activities RELEFMAZESE (87,041) (81,100)
Tax paid - PRC tax EABE - RERE - (133)
Net cash used in operating activities REXBRMAZESFE (87,041) (81,233)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FARSRRE
lﬁ: = "IL E For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—ZE—RE+-A=1+—HILEE

2016
e i
HK$°000

TR

2015
—E-1F
HK$'000
TR
(Re-presented)
(&E5)

Investing activities RETHE

Cash effect on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARZHEFE (15) 58,894

Deposit paid for acquisition of subsidiaries WEEHBARE &S - (10,000)
Refund of deposit paid for acquisition of subsidiaries BEREMBARE %S 10,000 =

Cash effect for acquisition of subsidiaries WEMBARIzReFE (4,900) (29,991)
Payment for purchase of property, plant and equipment ~ BEBEEY% - BERRENH (9,863) (394)
Advance to an associate o] — & A BB - (13,272)
Interest received EHFIE 57 51

Net cash (used) in/generated from investing activities X&EE (FTA),/ BB & FE (4,721) 5,288

Financing activities METE

Proceeds from issue of convertible notes BITURRREMEIE 25,800 =
Capital injection from non-controlling interests kRS 45 =
Change in restricted bank deposits ZRFRTEREE - (772)
Interest paid BAFIE (3,633) (856)
Proceeds from short-term loans REENAEHNE 52,000 =
Repayment of a short-term loan BEEHER (2,000) -
Repayment of promissory notes BEANEE (4,815) (43,000
Issue of share through right issue ZRURBTRG — 81,927

Issue of shares through placing FREERTRG — 71,444

Net cash generated from financing activities RETBREZRLTE 67,397 108,743

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents BE&REEZEY 2 FERD), /i (24,365) 32,798

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R-—A—BREAERREZEY 40,188 7,163

Effect of foreign rate changes ERgBHoE (3,417) 227

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December Rt-ZA=+—-HAZBEERBLEEY 12,406 40,188
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁéﬂﬁ#ﬁiﬁi %.I For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE_—ZE—A~E+-A=+—HI&EE

74

GENERAL INFORMATION

Evershine Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a public
limited company incorporated in Hong Kong with its shares
listed on the Growth Enterprise Market (the “GEM”) Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The address of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are at 16th Floor, Henan Building, 90
& 92 Jaffe Road, Wan Chai Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The subsidiaries and associates of the Company are engaged
in the provision of travel agency services, mobile application
business, trading business, property development and
investment business, cemetery business.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (HK$), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“"HKICPA”) and accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁ:éﬂﬁiﬁiﬁi %I For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE=-—Z—A~"F+=-A=+—ALFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

(c)

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis, except for
investment properties which are measured at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of
making the judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Application of new and revised Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (HKFRSs)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for
the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied a number
of amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA) that are
mandatorily effective for an accounting period that begins
on or after 1 January 2016. These amendments have
been applied by the Group for the first time in the current
year unless otherwise specified. The impact of these
amendments are described below.

a) Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS
28 Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation
Exception

The amendments mainly clarify that the exemption
from preparing consolidated financial statements
is available to a parent entity that is a subsidiary
of an investment entity, even if the investment
entity measures all its subsidiaries at fair value in
accordance with HKFRS 10. The Company is not an
investment entity. Also, given that the Company is a
listed entity, the consolidation exception set out in the
amendments will not be applicable to the Company
and hence the application of these amendments has
had no material impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
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(c) Application of new and revised Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (HKFRSs) (Continued)
Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for
the current year (Continued)

b) Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions

c)

EVERSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

of Interests in Joint Operations

The amendments provide guidance on how to account
for the acquisition of a joint operation that constitutes
a business as defined in HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations. Specifically, the amendments state
that the relevant principles on accounting for business
combinations in HKFRS 3 and other standards should
be applied. The amendments also require that a joint
operator to disclose the relevant information required
by HKFRS 3 and other standards for business
combinations. The amendments require prospective
application; prospectively in annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2016. The Group did not
have any such transactions in the current year and
hence the application of these amendments has
had no impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

The amendments clarify that an entity need not
provide a specific disclosure required by a HKFRS
if the information resulting from that disclosure is
not material (even if the HKFRS contains a list of
specific requirements or describes them as minimum
requirements). The amendments also give guidance
on the bases of aggregating and disaggregating
information for disclosure purposes. The amendments
emphasize that an entity should consider whether
to provide additional disclosures when compliance
with the specific requirements in HKFRSs is
insufficient to enable users of financial statements
to understand the impact of particular transactions,
other events and conditions on the entity’s financial
position and financial performance. Furthermore,
the amendments require that an entity’s share of the
other comprehensive income of associates and joint
ventures accounted for using the equity method should
be presented separately from those arising from the
Group, and should be separated into the share of
items that, in accordance with other HKFRSs: (i) will
not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss; and (ii)
will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when
specific conditions are met.

The application of these amendments has had no

material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c) Application of new and revised Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (HKFRSs) (Continued)
Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for
the current year (Continued)

d)

e)

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification of
Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation

The amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit entities from
using a revenue-based depreciation method for items
of property, plant and equipment. The amendments
to HKAS 38 introduce a rebuttable presumption that
revenue-based amortisation is not an appropriate
basis for amortisation of an intangible asset. The
amendments states that such a presumption can only
be rebutted in the following two limited circumstances:

« when the intangible asset is expressed as a
measure of revenue; or

* when it can be demonstrated that revenue and
consumption of the economic benefits of the
intangible asset are highly correlated.

With regard to the Group’s property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets, the Group did not use
revenue-based depreciation method and hence the
amendments have not have any impact on the Group’s
financial position and financial performance. Rather,
the Group has been using the straight-line method for
depreciation and amortisation for its property, plant
and equipment, and intangible assets respectively.

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 Agriculture:
Bearer Plants

The amendments define a bearer plant that is a living
plant that:

a) is used in the production or supply of agricultural
produce;

b) is expected to bear produce for more than one
period; and

c) has aremote likelihood of being sold as
agricultural produce except for incidental scrap
sales.

The amendments require that biological assets
that meet the definition of a bearer plant should be
accounted for as property, plant and equipment in
accordance with HKAS 16, instead of HKAS 41. The
product growing on bearer plants continues to be
accounted for in accordance with HKAS 41.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

78

(c) Application of new and revised Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (HKFRSs) (Continued)
Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for
the current year (Continued)

e) Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 Agriculture:

f)

EVERSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

Bearer Plants (Continued)

The application of these amendments has had
no impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements as the Group is not engaged in agricultural
activities.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014
Cycle include a number of amendments to various
HKFRSs, which are summarized below.

Firstly, the amendments to HKFRS 5 introduce
specific guidance for when an entity reclassifies an
asset (or disposal group) from held for sale to held for
distribution to owners (or vice versa). The amendments
clarify that such a change should be considered as
a continuation of the original plan of disposal and
hence requirements set out in HKFRS 5 regarding the
change of sale plan do not apply.

Secondly, the amendments to HKFRS 7 provide
additional guidance to clarify whether a servicing
contract is continuing involvement in a transferred asset
for the purpose of the disclosures required in relation
to transferred assets.

Thirdly, the amendments to HKAS 19 clarify that
the rate used to discount post-employment benefit
obligations should be determined by reference to
market yields at the end of the reporting period on high
quality corporate notes. The assessment of the depth
of a market for high quality corporate notes should be
at the currency level (i.e. the same currency as the
benefits are to be paid). For currencies for which there
is no deep market in such high quality corporate notes,
the market yields at the end of the reporting period
on government notes denominated in that currency
should be used instead. The Group did not have any
defined benefit scheme.

The application of these amendments has had no

material effect on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

* has power over the investee;

* is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

* has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the profit or loss from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the shareholders of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the shareholders of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if
this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EXEHHEMEE)
(CONTINUED)

(e) XBEHt

(e) Business combinations

80

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition date fair values
of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

« deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 “Income taxes” and HKAS 19 “Employee benefits”
respectively;

« liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
“Share-based payment” at the acquisition date; and

+ assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are
measured in accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
(if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If,
after reassessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts
of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and
the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in
the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately
in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(e)

()

(9)

Business combinations (Continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may
be initially measured either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

The choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-
by-transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling
interests are measured at their fair value or, when
applicable, on the basis specified in another HKFRSs.

Acquisition of assets

For the acquisition of assets effected through a non-
operating corporate structure that does not represent a
business, it is considered that the transactions does not
meet the definition of a business combination. Accordingly
the transaction is accounted for as the acquisition of asset
and such transaction does not give rise to goodwill.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business less any accumulated impairment losses, if any,
and is presented separately in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the relevant cash-generating units (or
groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently whenever there is an indication that the unit
may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before
the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount
of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit
and then to the other assets of the unit a pro rata on the
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly
in the profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EXEHHEMEE)
(CONTINUED)

(h) REEE QT 2R

(h) Interests in associates

82

Associates are entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 49% of the voting rights.
Investments in associate are accounted for using the
equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, the
investment is initially recognised at cost and the carrying
amount is increased or decreased to recognised the
investor’s share of share of profit or loss of the investee
after date of acquisition. The Group’s investments in
associates include goodwill identified on acquisition. Under
the acquisition of the ownership interest in an associate,
any difference between the cost of the associate and the
Group’s share of net fair value of the associates identifiable
assets and liabilities is accounted for as goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to income statement
where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is
recognised in the income statement, and its share of cost-
acquisition movements in other comprehensive income
is recognised in other comprehensive income with a
corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the
investment. When the Group’s share of losses in an
associate equal or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and
its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to
share of profit of investments accounted for using equity
method’ in the income statement.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h) Interests in associates (Continued)

1)

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream
transactions between the Group and its associate are
recognised in the Group’s financial statements only to the
extent of unrelated investor’s interests in the associates.
Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates
are recognised in the income statement.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation (including property under
construction for such purposes). Investment properties
are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
measured at fair value. All of the Group’s property interests
held under operating leases to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation purposes are accounted for as investment
properties and are measured using the fair value model.
Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in which the
property is derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
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1)

(k)

EVERSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of

items of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated

residual value, if any, using the straight-line method, over

their useful live as follows:

Land and Building Shorter of remaining lease
term or useful life

Furniture, fixtures and 5 years
equipment

Motor vehicles 10 years

Leasehold improvement 20 years

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued
operations

Non-current assets or disposal groups are classified as
held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than
through continuing use. This condition is regarded as
met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset
or disposal group is available for immediate sale in its
present condition. The Group must be committed to the
sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition
as a completed sale within one year from the date of
classification.

Non-current assets or disposal groups classified as held for
sale are measured at the lower of the asset’s or disposal
group’s previous carrying amount and fair value less costs
to sell.

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group
(i.e. the operations and cash flows of which can be clearly
distinguished from the rest of the Group) that either has
been disposed of, or is classified as held for sale, and
which represents a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations, or is part of a single
co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line
of business or geographical area of operations, or is a
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(k) Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued

U]

operations (Continued)

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon
disposal or when the component meets the criteria to be
classified as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5, if
earlier. It also occurs when the component is abandoned.

When an operation is classified as discontinued, a single
amount is presented in the statement of profit or loss,
which comprises:

— The post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation; and

— The post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or on the
disposal, of the assets or disposal group constituting
the discontinued operation.

Intangible assets

(i) Intangible assets acquired separately
Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at costs less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. The estimated useful lives and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effective of any changes in
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

(ii) Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
The cost of intangible assets acquired in business
combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Intangible assets are derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset are measured at the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and are recognised in profit or loss in the period
when the assets are derecognised.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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(CONTINUED)

(m) Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Group estimate the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocate to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
to disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss.
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(n) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition.

(i) Financial assets
The Group’s financial assets are mainly classified as
loans and receivables.

— Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument
and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the debt
instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective
interest basis for debt instrument.
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2.

88

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(n) Financial instruments (Continued)
(i)  Financial assets (Continued)
— Loan and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent
to initial recognition, loans and receivable
including trade and other receivables, restricted
bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents
are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any identified impairment
losses.

— Impairment of loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are assessed for indicators
of impairment at the end of the reporting period.
Loans and receivables are considered to be
impaired where there is objective evidence that, as
a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition, the estimated future cash
flows have been affected. Objective evidence of
impairment could include:

+ significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

+ breach of contract, such as default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;
or

* it becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of loans and receivables, such as
trade receivables that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment
on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment
for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s
past experience of collecting payments and observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(n) Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

The amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate. If, in a subsequent period, the amount
of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment losses was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had
the impairment not been recognised.

The carrying amount of the loans and receivables is
reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial
assets with the exception of trade receivable, where
the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of
the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
When a receivable is considered uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

— Equity instrument
An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of an
entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Group are recognised at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
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(n) Financial instruments (Continued)
(ii) Financial liabilities (Continued)

EVERSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

Equity instrument (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective
interest basis.

Other financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other
payables, promissory notes and short-term loans
are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Convertible notes

Convertible notes issued by the Group that
contain both the liability and conversion
option components are classified separately
into respective items on initial recognition in
accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument. Conversion
option that will be settled by the exchange of a
fixed amount of cash or another financial asset
for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity
instruments is classified as an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing
market interest of similar non-convertible debts.
The difference between the gross proceeds of the
issue of the convertible notes and the fair value
assigned to the liability component, representing
the conversion option for the holder to convert the
notes into equity, is included in equity (convertible
notes equity reserve).
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(n) Financial instruments (Continued)
(ii) Financial liabilities (Continued)

— Convertible notes (Continued)

In subsequent periods, the liability component of
the convertible notes is carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. The equity
component, representing the option to convert
the liability component into ordinary shares of
the Company, will remain in convertible notes
equity reserve until the embedded option is
exercised (in which case the balance stated in
convertible notes equity reserve will be transferred
to share premium). Where the option remains
unexercised at the expiry date, the balance stated
in convertible notes equity reserve will be released
to the retained profits. Neither gain nor loss is
recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or
expiration of the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible notes are allocated to the liability and
equity components in proportion to the allocation
of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating
to the equity component are charged directly to
equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability
component are included in the carrying amount of
the liability portion and amortised over the period
of the convertible notes using the effective interest
method.

(iii) Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liability when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or expire. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

92

(o) Leasing
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating lease.

(i)

(if)

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially
recognised as assets of the Group at their fair
value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the
present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in
the consolidated statement of financial position as a
finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance
expenses and reduction of the lease obligation
so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses
are recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless
they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in
which case they are capitalised in accordance with the
Group’s general policy on borrowings costs.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expenses on a straight line basis over the term of
the relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable
as in incentive to enter into an operating lease are
recognised as a reduction of rental expenses over the
lease term on a straight line basis.

(p) Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined on
weighted average method. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated
costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(q) Cash and cash equivalents

(r)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable demand and form an integral of the
Group’s management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and bank balances comprise cash on hand
and at banks which are not restricted as to use.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and cost, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in profit or loss as follows:

i) Service income — service income is recognised when
the related services are provided.

ii) Interest income — interest income is recognised as it
accrues using the effective interest method.

iii) Rental income — rental income is recognised on
a straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant
leases.

iv) Sales of goods — revenue from sales of goods is
recognised when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyer.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EXEHHEMEE)
(CONTINUED)

(r) WARRE)
v) EHEBEERFEERKE - ARE

(r) Revenue recognition (Continued)
v) Online game and mobile game revenue — The Group

94

operates its online games that allow players to play for
free. Players can purchase virtual currency to obtain
in-game items and premium features, commonly
known as virtual items, to enhance their game-playing
experience. Players can pay for virtual currency using
different payment platforms. The third-party payment
platforms are entitled to the relevant service fees which
are withheld and deducted from the gross proceeds
of virtual currency collected from the players, with the
net amounts remitted to the Group. The consideration
received for the purchase of the virtual currency
or virtual items is non-refundable and the related
contracts are non-cancellable. Such consideration
received is initially included in deferred revenue on
the consolidated statement of financial position. The
Group recognizes revenue on a gross basis and
treats the relevant service fees as cost of sales in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The virtual items are considered value-added services
and rendered over a pre-specified period. The revenue
from these virtual items is recognised either upon
consumption or ratably over the practical usage period
predetermined in the game or throughout the estimated
user life of paying players as appropriate.

(s) Employee benefit
(i) Retirement benefits costs

The Group contributes to a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme Ordinance for all employees in Hong
Kong. Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ relevant income and are charged to
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed in the MPF Scheme.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁ:éﬂﬁiﬁiﬁi %I For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE=-—Z—A~"F+=-A=+—ALFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(s) Employee benefit (Continued)

(i)

(if)

Retirement benefits costs (Continued)

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries which
operate in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) are
required to participate in a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of its payroll costs to the central pension
scheme. The contributions are charged to profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the central pension scheme.

Share-based payment transactions

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair
value is measured at grant date using a Black-
Scholes Option Model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the options were granted.
Where the employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to the
options, the total estimated fair value of the options is
spread over the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any adjustment
to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years
is charged/credited to profit or loss for the year of
the review, unless the original employee expenses
qualify for recognition as asset, with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve. On vesting date,
the amount recognised as an expenses is adjusted
to reflect the actual number of options that vest (with
a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market price of the
Company’s shares. The equity amount is recognised in
the capital reserve until either the option is exercised
or the options expires.

(t) Borrowing cost
Borrowing costs which are not directly attributable to
expenditures on qualifying assets are recognised as
expenses in profit or loss in the period which they are
incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁéﬂﬁ#ﬁiﬁi %.I For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE_—ZE—A~E+-A=+—HI&EE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

96

(CONTINUED)

(u) Income tax

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from the amount as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because it excludes items
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years and it further excludes items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary difference
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁ:éﬂﬁiﬁiﬁi %I For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE=-—Z—A~"F+=-A=+—ALFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(u) Income tax (Continued)

(v)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary items,
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in the
profit or loss for the period.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and
expenses items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the year, in which case, the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of currency translation reserve (attributed
to non-controlling interest as appropriate).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

98

(w) Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)

(b)

EVERSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person,

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group; or

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the

other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow

subsidiary of the other entity);

(iif)

the entity and the group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an

entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii)a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, providers key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁ:éﬂﬁiﬁiﬁi %I For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE=-—Z—A~"F+=-A=+—ALFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(x) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided regularly
to the Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type or
class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

3. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The Group’s management makes assumptions, estimates and
judgements in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies that affect the assets, liabilities, income and expenses
in the consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs. The assumptions, estimates and judgements
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. While
the management reviews their judgements, estimates and
assumptions continuously, the actual results will seldom equal
to the estimates.

(a) Critical accounting judgements in applying the
Group’s accounting policies
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following accounting
judgements:

() Useful Lives of Property, Plant and Equipment and
Intangible Assets
Management determines the estimated useful lives
of and related depreciation/amortisation charges
for its property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets. This estimate is based on the actual useful
lives of assets of similar nature and functions. It could
change significantly as a result of significant technical
innovations and competitor actions in response
to industry cycles. Management will increase the
depreciation/amortisation charges where useful lives
are less than previously estimated lives, or will write-
off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS 3. 2HAERYEE)

(CONTINUED)

() ERASEETRERAMEHZEER
SETHIE (E)
() PrigdiRAEEFE

(a) Critical accounting judgements in applying the
Group’s accounting policies (Continued)
(ll) Income Taxes and Deferred Taxation

100

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax issues based on estimates
of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions
in the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and certain tax losses are recognised
as management considers it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised.
Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such differences will impact the recognition
of deferred tax and tax in the periods in which such
estimate is changed.

(lll) Investment properties measured using the fair value

model

At 31 December 2016, investment properties are
stated at fair value based on the valuation performed
by the independent professional valuers. The valuers
have determined the fair value based on a method of
valuation which involves certain estimates. In relying
on the valuation report prepared by the valuers,
management has reviewed the valuation including the
assumptions and estimates adopted.

The fair values of investment properties are
determined by independent valuers on an open market
for existing use basis. In making the judgment, the
Group considers information from a variety of sources
including:

(i) current prices in an active market for properties of
different nature, condition or location (or subject
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(ii) recent prices of similar properties in less active
markets, with adjustments to reflect any changes
in economic conditions since the date of the
transactions that occurred at those prices.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty
Key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(1

(1

Impairment of Assets

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of the assets
at the end of each reporting period to determine
whether there is objective evidence of impairment.
When indication of impairment is identified,
management prepares discounted future cashflow to
assess the differences between the carrying amount
and value in use and provided for impairment loss.
In determining the value in use of certain assets
and liabilities, the Group makes assumptions of the
effects of uncertain future events on those assets and
liabilities at the consolidated statement of financial
position date. These estimates involve assumptions
about such items as risk adjustment to cash flows or
discount rate used, future changes in salaries and
future changes in prices affecting other costs. The
Group’s estimates and assumptions are based on
the expectations of future events and are reviewed
periodically. Any change in the assumptions adopted
in the cash flow forecasts would increase or decrease
in the provision of the impairment loss and affect the
Group’s net asset value.

An increase or decrease in the above impairment loss
would affect the net profit in future years.

Estimated Impairment of Goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating
units to which goodwill has been allocated. The value
used in the calculation requires the Group to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from cash-
generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value.

Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise.

(lll) Allowance for Impairment of Bad and Doubtful Debts

The Group makes allowance for impairment of bad
and doubtful debts based on an assessment of the
recoverability of trade and other receivables and
deposits. Allowances are applied to trade and other
receivables and deposits where events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the balances may
not be collectible. The identification of allowance for
impairment of bad and doubtful debts requires the use
of judgement and estimates. Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, such difference will
impact carrying value of receivables and allowance for
impairment in the period in which such estimate has
been changed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁ:éﬂﬁiﬁimﬁi For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE=Z—AF+-A=+—HILFE

4. REVENUE 4. W=

The Group’s revenue comprises the provision of travel agency AEBZzWBZRBREMRERERKE - F
services, mobile application business, trading business and HEREBAXER BSEBRRHBEERA -
rental income. The cemetery business and the money lending REXEBRRHEEBECRBE_Z—XRF
business have commenced operation during the year ended 31 TZAZT-HLEFEERKBEE - AMRK
December 2016. However, no revenue has been generated for BE_E—R"F+-B=1+—HLEET
the year ended 31 December 2016. Advertising and marketing BEAEARE - BERMSHEREREK
services income was included in discontinuing operations for ABREBE_ZE—R"FE+-A=+—HL
the year ended 31 December 2016. FEFACKRILET -

The amount of each significant category of revenue recognised RER > REEBEHEIZEHEIEZRS
in turnover during the year is analysed as follows: HRISEINWOT :

2016 2015
—E-RE —E-HE
HK$°000 HK$'000

TExT TExT
Note (Re-presented)
Bt (#2&E51)

Continuing operations FHERE X

— Revenue from travel agency — hRiEC IR BRSNS
services 19,358 40,348
— Service income from mobile — FH#FE AR RIEUA
application 86 2,103
— Trading business — B 5K 115,185 30,449
— Rental income —HEERA 833 —
135,462 72,900
Discontinued operations BARIEER 11
— Advertising and marketing ~ — EE R IS HEERE
services 2,106 872
— Rental income —HERA — 1,573
2,106 2,445
137,568 75,345
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁ:éﬂﬁiﬁiﬁq %‘I For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE=Z—AF+-A=+—HILFE

5. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES, NET 5. HfhlwA - WEREBEFHE
2016 2015
—B-AE —E—RF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FBT
(Re-presented)
(#E5)
Interest income from banks TRIEWA 57 51
Sundry income ”‘EIELBIA 138 444
Gain on fair value change of REWFE 2 AT EZE RS
investment properties 15 6,981 —
Gain on extinguishment of KHEeMBE2RE
financial liabilities 26 2,811 —
Impairment loss on amount due FEUX — RE# = A G5B 2
from an associate BEEE (6,000) —
Bargain purchase on acquisition Uk B8 — BBk N T]3#1T
of an associate EEWE 18 2,416 —
Gains, net Wz EE 6,403 495
6. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 6. BRBLATEE
Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging: BREAIEIRE R T HI &R -

Continuing operations Discontinued operations Total

BREERE BRLEH it

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
“E-3F CE-nf ZE-xE ZE-RfF CE-RE 0 ZE-1f

HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK§'000
TR TEn TEn Tn TEn TEn

(Re-presented) (Re-presented) (Re-presented)
(&Z3)) (&Z3)) (&E5)
(a) Finance costs RERA
Interest on promissory notes RREEZHE 6,820 1,197 - = 6,820 1,197
Interest on convertible notes TRRRE RIS 2,702 53 - - 2,702 53
Interest on short-term loans REETZFIE 3,020 - - = 3,020 =
12,542 1,729 - — 12,542 1,729
(b) Staff costs (including Directors' ~ EIHA
remuneration) (afFESHS)
Contributions to defined contribution  E&E{tERKar 2 21
retirement plans 209 53 14 98 223 151
Social security costs HBRERA I£] 2 - - €] 2
Salaries, wages and other benefits %4 + TEREMER 8,917 353 298 1972 9.215 5508
9,205 3,612 312 2,070 9,517 5,682
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁ:éﬂﬁiﬁimﬁi For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE=Z—AF+-A=+—HILFE

6. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (CONTINUED) 6. MRBIAIEREE)
Continuing operations Discontinued operations Total
KEREER BRLER gt
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
283 ZE-RF ZB-NF 0 ZE-RF ZR-R"F CE-EF
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tén T Thn Tén Tén T
(Re-presented) (Re-presented) (Re-presented)
(&&3)) (&=7) (&&7))
(c) Otheritems EftER
Depreciation i 1,782 195 - 497 1,782 692
Auditors’ remuneration i il -
— current year —REE 965 646 - 14 965 660
— under provision in prior year —BAFERETR - 2% - - - %
Operating lease charges in respect of YIRS AEHE
property rental 53 2174 1,055 - 1,858 2,174 2913
Bad debts written off ZEME - 1,200 - = - 1,200
Loss on disposal of property, plantand (£ E41% + BE R
equipment BB - 14 - - - 14
Amortisation of intangible assets ~ EJ/&%E
B 11,600 11,600 - - 11,600 11,600
Impairment losses HEEE
— Goodil —Hg 10,997 617 - - 10,097 617
— Intangible assets —BWEE 14,309 = - = 14,309 =
Costs of inventories BERA 13,022 8 - = 13,022 8
Rental received less outgoing from RS HRENEHX
investment properties (833) — - — (833) —
7. TAXATION 7. BiE
(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss (a) FREBBERAZBIERE
represents:
Continuing operations  Discontinued operation Total
BFESEEK BRILER @t
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
- ¥ ZB-IF ZB-F -“T-RFf ZB-~F —E-1f
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TEx TAR TER THExT TER TER
Current tax BERE
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax ~ — Bl FTEH - — — — — —
— Hong Kong Profit Tax —BBHER - 133 - — — 133
Deferred tax ELHE (916) (361) - — (916) (361)
(916) (228) — — (916) (228)
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Hong Kong Profits Tax has been calculated at 16.5% (2015:
16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong for both years. PRC subsidiaries are subject to PRC

Enterprise Income Tax at 25% for the year (2015: 25%).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁéﬂﬁﬁiﬁq %‘I For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE=Z—AF+-A=+—HILFE

7. TAXATION (CONTINUED) 7. BIEE)
(b) The tax expenses for the year can be reconciled to (b) FABEMTHEGSZEKBERATR
the loss before taxation per consolidated statement of BMRBIAIESE 2 HEROT

comprehensive income as follows:

Continuing operations Discontinued operations Total
RESERY BALER a3t
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
283 ZE-BfF ZB-AF ZE-RF ZR-RF BB

HK§'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
TEn TERL TEn TiEn T Tin

(Re-presented) (Re-presented) (Re-presented)
(E5) (E5) (&=5])
Profit befre taxaton BEEA (68546)  (29866) 2706 16108 (65840  (137%9)
Taxation charge at the BEBRIEH
Hong Kong Profits Tax rate $i%16.5%
of 16.5% STERERY (11,310) (4.921) 446 2,658 (10,364) (2.269)
Tax effect on non-deductible expenses AR E% 2Hi%
G 9,731 4,948 - 145 9,731 5,093
Tax effect of non-taxable BERRIBAZBE
income g (2702 ©) (540) (294 (324 (2.950)
Taxeffect of unused tax losses ot~ KR ABEH AR HE
recognised e 3,816 (227) 94 139 3910 (88)
Effect of different tax rates HEBARRE M
of subsidiaries operating in other AHEESE
jurisdictions Hz£EyE (451) (14) - — (451) (14)
Actual tax credts ERUEES (916) (228) - = (916) (228)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁ:éﬂﬁiﬁimﬁi For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE=Z—AF+-A=+—HILFE

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

106

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, Part 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)

Regulation and the GEM Listing Rules are as follows:

8. EEM=

REBEBQFRPIZE83(1)F ~ RE(KE
ESAHER) RAIE 2R RAIER LR
BIFfR R 2 EEME T

Directors’
fees

EZHE
HK$°000
TER

Salaries,
allowances
and benefits
in kind

¢ 28
RENFR
HK$°000
TART

Retirement
scheme
contributions

BIRETEIFEK
HK$'000
TER

Total

@t
HKS$'000
TER

2016: ZE-RE:
For the year ended BE-Z-5F

31 December 2016: TZA=t-HLEE:
Executive Directors HTES
Biilent Yenal (note i) Biilent Yenal2% 4 (#iti) - - — -
Chan Ming Kei (note i) BRERE (Hitii) 14 - 2 143
Ling Ko Yin Jason (note i) WA Lii) 5 - - 5
Lau Yu (note iv) W=E(Hitiv) - - - -
Ang Lai Kuen (note v) WBIR (A 170 - 6 176
Alternative Director REEZS
Hung Tat Chi Alan (note vi) HEE (ftvi) 300 — 15 315
Independent Non-executive BUFHT

Directors Bz
Choy So Yuk (note vii) w2 X (fztvii) 120 — — 120
Lam Yuk Ying Elsa (note viii) WEZE(Hztvii) 120 - - 120
Liu Kwong Sang (note ix) BEE (fiztix) 120 - - 120
Leung Man Chun (note x) R (Hiztx) 100 - - 100

1,076 — 23 1,099
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁ:éﬂﬁiﬁiﬁq %‘I For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE=Z—AF+-A=+—HILFE

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONTINUED) 8. EEMe#)

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’  and benefits scheme
fees inkind  contributions Total
e 2E
EZHe REVAE  BAGEIER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL FEx TAR FET
2015: —E-1%:
For the year ended Bz-z-If
31 December 2015: +ZA=+-HLEE:
Executive Directors HTES
Ang Lai Kuen (note v) HEBE (i) 327 — 8 335
Lin Yan Jenny (note x) Wk (Hfitx) — 190 8 198
Wu Wenbei (note xi) R Hrztxi) - 265 - 265
Independent Non-executive BAUFHT
Directors Bz
Choy So Yuk (note vii) B2 X (fztvi) 87 — - 87
Lam Yuk Ying Elsa MER 140 — — 140
Liu Kwong Sang (note viii) BREE(Htvii) 140 — - 140
He Qinglong (note xii) TEEE (Hratxii) 57 — — 57
751 455 16 1,222
Notes: Mt -
(i) Bllent Yenal, appointed as executive director on 11 January 2016. (i) Bllent YenalA=ZZE—R<F—A+—HEZE
AHITES -
(i) Chan Ming Kei, appointed as executive director on 7 November 2016. (i) FRBER-ZT—RF+-—ALHEZETRHT
BB
(iii) Ling Ko Yin Jason, appointed as executive director on 16 December (i) MEAR-E—RE+-A+-BEZEAEH
2016. TEE -
(iv) Lau Yu, appointed as executive director on 12 May 2015 and a (iv) MFR=—ZE-—EFEAT_ARZEAHTE

chairman of the Company on 19 June 2015 and resigned as executive
director and a chairman of the Company on 9 December 2016.

ERR-ZE-AFEARATIAEZRERERAT
EF BRCZB-—ARFT-ANERENITE
BRAQFERE -
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8.

108

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)
Notes: (Continued)

(v) Ang Lai Kuen, appointed as executive director on 26 June 2015 and
resigned as executive director on 18 April 2016.

(vi) Hung Tat Chi Alan, appointed as alternative director to Bulent Yenal
on 11 January 2016 and appointed as executive director on 22 March
2017.

(vii) Choy So Yuk, appointed as independent non-executive director on 12
May 2015.

(viii) Liu Kwong Sang, resigned as independent non-executive director on
31 December 2016.

(ix) Leung Man Chun, appointed as independent non-executive director on
1 March 2016.

(x) Lin Yan Jenny, resigned as executive director on 10 June 2015

(xi) Wu Wenbei, retired as executive director and the chairman of the
Company on 19 June 2015.

(xii) He Qinglong, retired as independent non-executive director on 19 June
2015.

There was no amount paid to any directors as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office. Mr. Lau Yu has agreed to waive his remuneration for
the years ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015.
Save for the above, there was no arrangement under which a
director waived or agreed to waive any remuneration for the
year ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

Salaries, allowance and benefits in kind paid to or for the
executive directors are generally emoluments paid or
receivable in respect of those persons’ other services in
connection with the management of the affairs of the Company
and its subsidiaries.
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8. EEM=#®)

Bist : ()

(v) ABBER-Z-AFASASTAEEZERH
TEE  AR-E-AFEA+NBBEHT
B

(viy HEER=_Z-—<E—B+-—BEZTA
Bulent Yenalt £ 2 RIBESE - BR-_Z—+t
FZRZ+_HEZEAITES -

(vii) EEER-Z-AFREA+-RAEZERBY
FHTES -

(vii) EBER=Z—ARF+-A=+—HBBEIBI
FHTES -

(ix) BNER-E—ARF=A—HEZEABIH
PITES -

(x) MBR=—ZT-HFARA+HEBHINITES -

(xi) RXHFR=Z-AFASA+AAREFHNTES
RADNAER ©

(xii) AEER-ZE—AF<ATIBEREBILIEH
TEE-

BERTMNESZSEMARE  EABE
TN AR E B s A M AN B 0 2 2 B R 1k
BEREE MFLLECEAERERNE
E2_F-RF+ZA=+—HERZZ—1
F+ZA=+t—HLEEEZHM& - BRLEX
FriEss  BEZE—RNERZZE—HF
TZA=+—HLEFE  BEFENED
BERETMMNE 22 -

BHTEEXNRERSAEEFHE 2
BEREMABEDRRERR DR REKNE
REBHERRMACEMRBM AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁ:éﬂﬁiﬁiﬁq %‘I For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE=Z—AF+-A=+—HILFE

9. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 9. REFMAL
The emoluments of the five individuals with the highest IEZBeFMA LT 2ABE(ZZE—RF :
emoluments, None (2015: two) are directors, whose MBRES  BEZHMESRNWESEE -
emoluments are disclosed in note 8. The aggregate of the ARALTZNEHEEENT ¢

emoluments for the five individuals are as follows:

2016 2015
—E-RE —E-hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHBT
Salaries and other emoluments HehEMmE 2,781 1,975
Retirement scheme contributions RIRGTEIER 86 55
2,867 2,030
The emoluments of five (2015: three) individuals with the AE(ZE-HF ZR)BaFHALTZ
highest emoluments are within the following band: BeNFUTEHR :

2016 2015
—E—RF —E-RF
Numbers of Numbers of

individuals individuals

AB AE

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z%1,000,0007 7T 5 &)

10. LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF 10. &xA TR RELEE

THE COMPANY
The consolidated loss for the year attributable to shareholders KARRRECAFEREBBEBEEE
of the Company includes a loss of HK$97,219,000 (2015: loss B97,219000 B T (= —HF : FE
of HK$98,200,000) which has been dealt with in the financial 98,200,000/ 7T) » ZEEEEARATMKE
statements of the Company. HMERANEIE o

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 1. BERIEER
Creative Star Group BEEE
On 30 March 2016, the Company disposed of its entire equity NZZB—REZA=+H  ARFHEH
interest in Creative Star Limited and its subsidiaries (“Creative REEERLAAREWELAR(TEZESE
Star Group”). With effect from completion of the Disposal, the B2 E BHESEERENK
Group will cease to carry on the business of advertising and B AEESTEREESERTSERER
marketing services. B o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁ:éﬂﬁiﬁimﬁi For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE_—ZE—A~E+-A=+—HI&EE

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (CONTINUED) 1. BRIEEK(E
For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE-—E—XRE+=-A=1+—HLEE
Profit/(loss) from Discontinued Operations DRIEEIE ZBR,(BE)
The analysis of the Profit/(loss) from the Creative Star Group BEEEEZRF(BR)IMHRERS
presented as discontinued operations in accordance with SR EXEESEFEHEZERBE
HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued ERCALFEKIZACHRLEERNT

Operations” is as follows:

Creative Star Group
2EEE
2016 2015

—E—REF —E—AEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

Profit for the year from Discontinued F & #& 1F #7535

operation
Revenue s 5 4 2,106 872
Cost of sales SHERZA (2,513) (546)
Gross (Loss)/profit (F8) EF (407) 326
Operating and administrative expenses £ & 17 BI X (421) (1,978)
Loss before taxation from discontinued 2R EH 2 &K IE 7>
operations BREATEE (828) (1,652)
Taxation FiE — _
Loss from discontinued operations RiGEEERERRE
recognised in the consolidated BRIFER 28
statement of profit or loss (828) (1,652)
Gain on disposal of subsidiary HEMB AT Z W 32 3,534 —
2,706 (1,652)
Profit/(loss) attributable to: LU A FE(G3%R,
(E518) -
Shareholders of the Company PN 3,037 (1,005)
Non-controlling interests RS (331) (647)
2,706 (1,652)
Net cash used in operating KEEBMTARS TR 373 376
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e M H R
iy = [ ] For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE—ZE—A~E+-A=+—HI&EE

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2015

Fountain City Group

During the year ended 31 December 2014, pursuant to the
agreement entered between the Company and Diwang
Limited (the “Vendor”) in connection to the acquisition of the
51% equity interest of Fountain City Holdings Limited and its
subsidiaries (“Fountain City Group”) dated on 7 October 2010,
the Vendor irrevocably granted to the Company the put option
exercisable at any time and from time to time during the option
period by notice in writing to the Vendor to require the Vendor
to purchase all the option shares from the Company at the
option exercise price.

The Company may only exercise the put option on the
conditions that:

(i) the gross profits of the Fountain City Group for the first
period shall be less than HK$15,000,000; or

(ii) the gross profits of the Fountain City Group for the second
period shall be less than HK$30,000,000.

The Vendor has acknowledged to the Company that the actual
gross profits of rental business for the second period was
less than HK$30,000,000. The put option was exercised by
the Company on 28 December 2012 at the pre-agreed option
exercise price of HK$58,650,000.

11. BRI EE (&)

HE_Z-AF+-A=1+t—HLFE

RFEE
BE_Z-—NF+-A=+—HILEEFE -
REXAQAFEFTHEERATTES DA
BARBERHERERATARENB QA
(TRWEE NS1%REMTLBHPA=-ZT
—ZSF+ At AzHE EFRHESRE
AT B S % S B R AT S i 3R F A A B A
FITEREEE - AA T LUERBAKE
ABBEBANES » EREHFIRPETEER
BEARQATFEHERY -

RRBERERATIRFE » HATER
iR

() RAEEEEAEZ2ENEIR
15,000,0008 7T ; =X

(i) REKEE_BEHEZENEDR
30,000,000/ T °

BREOARAEIE _EHNEEEE
% 2 B EF 2 530,000,000 7T © LD
AR-ZE—_F+-AZ+N\BEELH
E 2 HA#E1T f£1858,650,00078 TITEHEE
wooh R o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁ:éﬂﬁiﬁimﬁi For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE_—ZE—A~E+-A=+—HI&EE

1. BRIEEK (&
BE-—ZE-AF+-A=1+—HLEEE)

R (E)
HERREENEECHRBE-S—1F
TZA=1T—HLFERHK

BRILFBZEFIRFFHESE
RWEBZBEREIMIRBEEBUBRE
ZRESH FEHEZERBDEERT K
X I2FIBEAREEBNT -

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Continued)

Fountain City Group (Continued)
Disposal of Fountain City Group has been completed during
the year ended 31 December 2015.

Profit from Discontinued Operations and Assets Held for Sales
The analysis of the loss from the Fountain City Group
presented as discontinued operations in accordance with
HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued

Operations” is as follows:

Fountain City
Group
RIGERE
2015

—ET-EHF
HK$'000
TBxT

Loss for the year from Discontinued operation F£REX&IE¥KEE
Revenue &= 1,573
Gross Profit EF 1,573
Operating and administrative expenses KERITHEAX (3,296)
Loss from operation K EE (1,723)
Loss before taxation from discontinued operations 38 B 2 #& L ¥ 7& = B AT 12 (1,723)
Taxation BiE =
Loss from discontinued operations recognised in  RESEHRERZRH
the consolidated Statement of profit or loss ERIEEKZEE (1,723)
Gain on disposal of subsidiary HEME A Rz 19,483
17,760
Profit/(loss) attributable to: LU A T EAEER(B518) -
Shareholders of the Company RATPR 18,604
Non-controlling interests FEiER R (844)
17,760
Net cash generated from operating activities RETBMEBRSTFHE 53
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12. LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to the shareholders of the Company is based on
the following data:

Continuing and discontinued operations

12. BREE

DT RIS RER R BB AT
TS

FRECERCRIEER

2016 2015
—g-xF —2-Ef
HK$°000 HK$’000
FTHET FHBT
(Re-presented)
(#=E5)
(Loss)/earnings (EE) BR
(Loss)/earnings for the purposes of BEREAREEEEMNS
basic and diluted loss per share 2B BRI (ARARRR
(Loss)/earnings for the year BERFEREBF)
attributable to the shareholders
of the Company)
— from continuing operations —REFESEER (68,436) (28,948)
— from discontinued operations —REBKRIEER 3,037 16,952
Loss for the purposes of basic and HERER
diluted loss per share REEEEN S 2FH18 (65,399) (11,996)

2016
—E—RE

’000 shares
T

Number of shares R EE
Weighted average number of share for FEREARBEHEMS 2
the purposes of basic and diluted B InREF 98,

loss per share

1,457,114 843,519

The diluted loss per share for the years ended 31 December
2016 and 2015 is the same as the basic earnings per share as
there were no dilutive potential shares outstanding during both

BE=Z—<ER=F-_FET=
St-ALEESRETEERERE
ARFIAR - oI A

years.

AEER A o
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12.

13.

114

LOSS PER SHARE (CONTINUED)

From continuing operations

Loss B8

Loss for the purposes of basic and BEREAREEEEMNS
diluted loss per share ZEE
From continuing operations REFELSEFER

12.

BREEGE
REFECEER
2016

—E—RE
HK$’000

2015
—E—hEF
HK$'000
FExT
(Re-presented)
(#2E51)

FERT

(68,436) (28,948)

The denominators used are the same as those detailed above
for both basic and diluted loss per share.

From discontinued operations

Basic and diluted earnings per share from discontinued
operation is HK0.21 cent per share (2015: basic and diluted
earnings per share of HK2.01 cent per share), based on the
profit for the year ended 31 December 2016 from discontinued
operation attributable to the shareholders of the Company of
HK$3,037,000 (2015: HK$18,604,000) and the denominators
detailed above for both basic and diluted earnings per share.

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its business by divisions. The reportable
segments are in a manner consistent with the way in which
information is reported internally to the Group's most senior
executive management for the purposes of resources allocation
and performance assessment.

In 2016, the Group had five (2015: five) continuing business
segments, namely (i) travel agency services; (ii) mobile
application; (iii) trading; (iv) property development and
investment (newly commenced during the year ended 31
December 2016); (v) cemetery and (vi) advertising and
marketing services (discontinued for the year ended 31
December 2016):

— Travel agency services: this segment engaged in the
provision of tourist routes and tour related services.
Currently the Group’s activities in this regard are carried
out in the People's Republic of China (the "PRC").
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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13.

SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

Mobile application: This segment is engaged in the
operating rights of "Ninja in Barrel" and mobile application
business of "Patalogue”. Currently the Group's activities in
this regard are carried out in the PRC and Hong Kong.

Trading: This segment is engaged in trading of goods
including, but not limited to steaming coal and chrome ore.
Currently the Group's activities in this regard are carried
out in the PRC.

Cemetery: This segment is engaged in the construction
and operation of cemetery. Currently the Group's activities
in this regard are carried out in the PRC.

Property development and investment: This segment is
engaged in building construction, properties development,
trading of construction materials through its interest in an
associate and leasing of property. Currently the Group's
activities in this regard are carried out in Turkey and Hong
Kong.

Advertising and marketing services: This segment is
engaged in the provision of product advertising and
promotion, marketing agency and planning, function
organization and media project services. Currently the
Group's activities in this regard are carried out in Hong
Kong for the year ended 31 December 2015. Advertising
and marketing services income was included in
discontinuing operations for the year ended 31 December
2016.
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13. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

2y
-I For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE_—Z—A<E+-ZA=+—HILFEE

13. D EBRE (4

Segment revenue and results PEM R EE
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results UTAREERAUBRELEDHBED 2K
by reportable and operating segment: mREEDN

116

2016
Z3-7E

Discontinued

Continuing Operations operation

REERY BRLERH

Property Advertising

Travel development and

agency Mobile and marketing
services  application Trading  investment Cemetery Sub-total services Total

NEBER RER
HERERE FHEREL g3 R NE Nt HEERRHE st
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THn TEn TiEn Tn TR Tin TR Thn

Segment revenue from MPEE A BE

external customers 19,358 86 115,185 833 - 135,462 2,106 137,568
Segment (loss)! profit A8(EE)/EH (1,780) (37,109) (5,561) 9,679 (2,650) (37.421) 2,706 (34,715)
Unallocated corporate income FABAAYA 2817 - 2817
Unallocated corporate expenses FABATHX (21,460) - (21,460)
Finance costs BERA (12,542) - (12,542)
Loss before tax BHaER (68,546) 2,706 (65,840)

Continuing operations Discontinuing operations
HEgeRy BRILER

Advertising

Travel and

agency Mobile Marketing
services  application Trading Cemetery Subtotal services  Entertainment Total

BER
HEAERE FREAEL g5 NE Nt OERERE  REEH @t
HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn Tin Tin T Thn Tin Fin Tin

Segment revenue from NPEE 2 A BE

external customers 40,348 2103 30449 - 72,900 872 1,573 75,345
Segment (loss)/ profit Ai(ER) /%7 (82) (12,030) 188 (260) (12,184) 17,831 (1,723) 3924
Unallocated corporate income AABAARA 495 = = 495
Unallocated corporate expenses AARATHR (16,448) - - (16,448)
Finance costs HERA (1,729) - — (1,729)
Loss before tax REAEE (29,866) 17,831 (1,723) (13,758)
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13. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 13. D EPFRE (&
Segment revenue and results (Continued) o EBUN R R SR (4E)
The accounting policies of the operating segments are the BEDW2ETHREM T2 2 A EE
same as the Group's accounting policies described in note 2. SHBERAER - 2 (BER) IEFIEES
Segment (loss)/profit represents the profit (loss from)/earned WATESE (BB) FEER YRS EFR
by each segment without allocation of central corporate income RABWAURBEZREERZ o 1LTiME
and expense and finance costs. This is the measure reported BReTHEBABREERMES B R R
to the most senior executive management for the purposes of Rz AZTERR -
resource allocation and performance assessment.
Segment assets and liabilities PEHEEREE
The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities UTAEREERAREKEIHE D &
by reportable and operating segments: ERBEI:
Segment assets Segment liability
PHEE PHEE
2016 2015 2016 2015
“E-XRE “E-1F —E-5 —E-1F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TRT TRT FHET TR
Continuing operations BELEER
Travel agency services HeB AR R 21,115 13,159 (19,521) (9,633)
Mobile application FHERRR 592 39,666 (3,233) (3.132)
Trading g5 88,205 49,831 (11,490) (799)
Cemetery AE 128,945 120,154 (2,091) (724)
Property development and investment ~ #)ERERIRE 99,096 — (26,454) —
Sub-total Nt 337,053 222,810 (63,689) (14,288)
Discontinuing operations BARIEER
Advertising and marketing services BER MG HEERE 819 1,629 (7,962) (7,943)
Total segment assets/liabilities wanEE/8F 338,772 224,439 (71,651) (22,231)
Unallocated corporate assets/liabilites ~ RABATEE
8 83,151 84,137 (155,790) (69,578)
Consolidated assets/ liabilities GREE/8f 421,923 308,576 (227,441) (91,809)
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13. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 13. D ERE (&)
Other segment information HippIER
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
HEAERK BALER
Property Advertising
development and
Travel agency Mobile and marketing
Other segment information services  application Trading  investment ~ Cemetery  Unallocated Sub-total services Total
i IESEES BER
EtaBEs ¢ ! g7 k&% nE AR Nt mERRRSE szt
Y ded 31 December 2016 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BECR-RETZA=T-ALEE 7 TR TR TR TR TR TR TR TR
Amounts included in the TARBEES A AR
measure of segment result TREH:
or segment assets:
Addion to plant and equipment ~ FEBERRE 93 - - - 3814 5956 9,863 - 9,863
Additon to land and building FAUE-FNELE
through acquisition of FELBRET
a subsidiary - - - - - 44,763 44,763 - 44763
Addition to investment properties  EBWE-BHELR
through acquisttion of a subsidiary ~ FEREYE - - - 44919 - - 4919 - 4919
Depreciation & (58) (76) - (7123) (126) (799) (1782) - (1,782)
Amortisation i - (11,600) - - - - (11,600) - (11,600)
Impairment of intangible asset BYEERE - (14,309) - - - - (14,30) - (14,309)
Gainon changes infairvaleof ~ RENEATERENE
investment properties - — - 6,981 - — 6,981 - 6,981
Impairment loss recognised HE B RERE
in respect of goodwill - (10,997) — — - — (10997) - (10,997)
Interest in associates REEN T ER - - 13272 47146 - - 60418 - 60,418
Share of profitof associates MEBENTRR - - - (65) - - (65) - (65)
Bargain purchase of acquision of an B -EEEAR
assoclate ETRENE - - - 2416 - - 2416 - 2416

Continuing operations Discontinued operation
FELEER BRILER
Advertising
Travel and
agency Mobile marketing
Other segment information services  application Trading  Cemetery  Unallocated Subtotal services Entertainment
EfhABER fBRE  ERER g5 NE AR Nt TERERE  REER
Year ended 31 December 2015 HK$'000 i HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
BE-E-REt-A=t-HLFE T BT TR TR THT T T
Amounts included in the TARREEL I HEE
measure of segment TEZEE:
result or segment assets:
Addition to plant and equipment  FEMERZE 336 — 49 9 — 394 — — 304
Depreciation & (54) - - (5) (136) (195) - (1,205) (1,400)
Amortisation B = (11,600) - - - (11,600) - - (11,600)
Bad debt written off b4 = - - - (1,200) (1,200) - - (1,200)
Loss on disposal of plant and HEBERREZEFR
equipment - - (14) - - (14) - - (14)
Impairment loss recognisedin BBz BRRESSE
respect of goodwill - (617) - - (617) - - (617)
Interest in associates REEDAZER - - 13272 - 6,000 19,272 — — 19,272
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13. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 13. D EBERE (&)
Geographical Segments B &R
The Group operates in three principal geographical areas — REERTE - BEERTEEANME( =
the PRC, Hong Kong and the Republic of Turkey (“Turkey”). EH)ZAXBEHELE - TRARME
The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s revenue Bz AEBRENMPEEFZRAREE
and asset from external customers by geographical location: DR
Revenue from
external customers Non-current assets
RENPEF 2B FrRBEE
2016 2015 2016 2015
S S G i
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET TRT FERT TR
Continuing operations FEREXY
—PRC — Hi 134,543 72,900 122,408 138,535
— Hong Kong — &8 919 — 109,759 37,159
— Turkey —+EE — — 52,314 _
135,462 72,900 284,481 175,694
Major customers FEEF
The information in respect of the Group’s sales attributable to RAMBEENEBETERFELAEE
the major customers during the financial year is as follows: ZHEHERBRINMT ¢

Percentage of
the group’s total Sales

EHREEZEDL
e
2016 2015
—E-RE —E-RE
The largest customer 31% 40%
SN
Five largest customers in aggregate 85% 43%
AREF 24
At no time during the year have the directors, their associates KABZES - HEZHBBEATIEMR
or any shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge RUBESIAEE AR QA TS%E FHITRNG
of the directors owns more than 5% of the number of issued UEZRR)BERFATARERTZE
shares of the Company) had any interest in these major FERF 2R -
customers.
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

120

14. Y% - BERRE

Furniture,
Landand  Leasehold fixtures and Motor  Construction
Building improvements  equipment vehicles  in progress Total
HENE U
1HEET ®B  RERRE af: HRIE @t
HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Tin Tén Thn T T
Cost: A
At 1 January 2015 R=Z-55F-5-F - 588 1121 398 = 2107
Exchange adjustments [k - © (25) (35) - (69)
Additions hE - 196 10 88 - 39
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEEHEAR - - = 258 = 258
Disposals e - - (16) - - (16)
At 31 December 2015 and R-E-RE+ZA=1-H
at1 January 2016 R=E-7~E-R-H = 775 1,190 709 — 2674
Exchange adjustments EiAR - (13) (36) (60) (154) 263)
Additions HE - 1,299 690 4430 3,444 9,863
Addition through acquisiton ~ WEE—RIKBAF
of a subsidiary ZIRE kil 44,763 = = = - 44763
Disposals e - - (194) - - (194)
At 31 December 2016 RZE-~E+ZA=1-A 44763 2,061 1,650 5079 3,290 56,843
Accumulated depreciation and ZHTER
impairment; AE:
At 1 January 2015 R=E-%f-F-B - 122 924 313 — 1,359
Exchange adjustments B A% - ) (22) (1) - 43)
Charge for the year ERxH - 3% 123 % = 19
Written back on disposals HEREE - - ? = = 2)
At 31 December 2015 and REE-RE+ZA=1-H
at 1 January 2016 R=E-~E-A-H - 154 1,023 332 - 1,509
Exchange adjustment EjA% — (6) (32) (28) — (66)
Charge for the year Q% 6(c) 723 118 124 817 - 1,782
Writen back on disposals HERRM - - (194) - - (194)
At 31 December 2016 RZE-~ETZA=1-A 723 266 921 1,121 — 3,031
Carrying amount; B
At 31 December 2016 RZE-~E+ZA=1-A 44,040 1,195 729 3,958 3,290 53812
At 31 December 2015 R-2-RF+ZR=t-H - 621 167 3 - 1,165
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

The land and building are situated in Hong Kong and are held
under medium term leases. The land and building has been
pledged as security for a short-term loans granted to the Group
amounts to approximately HK$26,000,000 as at 31 December
2016 (31 December 2015: Nil) (note 25).

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

As at 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015

14. ¥ - MERRXE(E

THREFMNAES  BUTHEEE
B -RZIE—R"F+ZA=+—8B &*&
ECEFLIHEEFURRERERY
26,000,000 T (ZE—HFE+=ZA=+—
B - #)(FizE25) °

15. IREYE

Investment
properties

REME

HK$'000
FET

Notes
Kz

RZBE-HFE-—F—HB ZZ—HF

and 1 January 2016 +ZA=t+—HAR=-ZE—RF
—A—H —
Addition through acquisition of a subsidiary Wi —REMHB AT ZRE 31 44,919
Fair value change on investment properties ~ REW ¥~ A FEEE) 5 6,981
As at 31 December 2016 R-ZZBE—-ARE+=ZA=+—H 51,900

Investment properties represent a commercial unit located in
Hong Kong.

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties at 31
December 2016 have been arrived at on the basis of a
valuation carried out on that day by International Valuation
Limited, an independent qualified professional valuer that is not
connected with the Group.

The fair value was determined based on the “Direct Comparison
Method”, where the value is assessed by reference to the
comparable properties of similar size, character and location,
factoring in all the respective advantages and disadvantages
of each property in order to arrive at the comparison of capital
value.

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes were
measured using the fair value model and were classified and
accounted for as investment properties.

REMEE —BAURE B ZBEREN

AEBR-ZE—XR"E+ZA=1+—H2zZE&
EYMENTFEDHEAEETERFE 2B
MNEBREEGEMBIRTLEERL TR
ERZEEEE -

DNHETE EEEBOR [EE - MEME
D2RENERE  BRHEREEZTELR
MHEFE  LEEBZYE 2 —YHEER
BMRRUEHERBEZLE -

AEERANEERE R AWRESHGT
BEAFEZDEDULAFERAGFE - B
EERIBRARIMEREDE -
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15.

122

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

At 31 December 2016, the investment properties in the Group
has been pledged to secure a short-term loans granted to
the Group amounts to approximately HK$26,000,000 (31
December 2015: Nil) (note 25).

The carrying amounts of investment properties shown above
comprise:

FE L :
RIS

Land in Hong Kong:
Medium-term lease

15. REWME (&)

NZZB—RE+=ZA=+—8  A&EEIK
IR E Y ¥ LUE I = B B 57 4926,000,000
%i&%—£$+:ﬁz+—arﬁﬂw
$$25) °

PLEFRR 2 REYIFRREERRE

31.12.2015
—E—-RF
+=B=+—8H
HK$'000
FET

31.12.2016
—B—AE

+=A=t+-—H

HK$°000
Tz

51,900 —

The fair value measurements for all of the Group’s investment
properties are categorised as level 2. The following table
gives information about how the fair values of the investment
properties as at 31 December 2016 are determined (in
particular, the valuation techniques and inputs used), as well as
the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurements
are categorised level 2 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements is observable.

Valuation
technique &
key input
RERITR
FERABE

Direct comparison
method

Fair value

Properties hierarchy inputs

IES AVEER

Property —located in ~ Level 2
Hong Kong Island,
Hong Kong
The key input is price
per square foot

Significant
unobservable

EXFTEE
BAHE

Price per square foot, using
market direct comparable
and taking into account
location and other individual
factors such as age and

REBRBERENE 2 A VFEFEEDE
REZR - TREBNAEEREWER
—E-R"E+ZA=t-RZAVEZE
BRI RMAFTRM K AR 2| ABIE) -
URREAFEFERABB 2 TEER
g%ﬁ@¥ﬁﬁ§ﬁ%@¥ﬁ%ﬁ%%:

Relationship of
unobservable
inputs to fair value
TABRERARE
HALEZER

A slight increase in the price
per square foot will increase
significantly the fair value

location of the property,
approximately HK$20,521
per square foot as at 31
December 2016

NE-UREBBE HF-R BEELBE

FEQAMBABYS
RER

AT ERTELBYEY
at R R E A fERIE =
(BIAAIR MR E K 1020) 1§
W2 S FRRER  BR=

B¥HEREFEM LFHEKRIR
BNAYE

E—RFE+ZHA=1+—-HE
SEHIR4920,52158 7T

During the period ended 31 December 2016 and year ended
31 December 2015, there were no transfers between level 1
and level 2, or transfers into or out of level 3.
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16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. BLEE

Travel Operating

agency  Operating Mobile rights of

licenses rights  application Cemetery Total
HEREHR Reg FRERRL NEREE st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TiEx TR TR THET
Note (Note a) (Note b) (Note c) (Note d)
izt (Mfita) (MizEb) (Mfztc) GIED)

Cost: B
At 1 January 2015 RZZE-H1F—-A—H 965 30,000 8,000 — 38,965
Additions through acquisition of  YiBE—FEIMEAF
a subsidiary 2B — — — 118,000 118,000
At 31 December 2015, RZE-R#F
at 1 January 2016 and +=A=t-R"
31 December 2016 —E-R"F-A—-H
R=E-~E+ZA
Er=[E 965 30,000 8,000 118,000 156,965
Accumulated amortisation ~ 23ti#es
and impairment loss: REEES
At 1 January 2015 N-ZE-1%—-A—H 965 — 140 — 1,105
Charge for the year FREH - 10,000 1,600 - 11,600
At 31 December 2015 and RIZE-HE
at 1 January 2016 +ZA=+-Ak
—Z-5E-A-H 965 10,000 1,740 — 12,705
Impairment loss REEE 6(c) = 9,649 4,660 = 14,309
Charge for the year FR%E 6(c) — 10,000 1,600 — 11,600
At 31 December 2016 RIE-—RE
+=-A=t—-H 965 29,649 8,000 — 38,614
Carrying amount: REE
At 31 December 2016 RIE—RF
+=RA=+—H — 351 — 118,000 118,351
At 31 December 2015 RIE-HE
+=R=t-H — 20,000 6,260 118,000 144,260
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16.

124

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(a) Travel agency licenses represent the rights to operate travel agency
business within and outside the PRC. The useful life of travel agency
licenses is 10 years.

(b) Operating rights of a mobile game apps, which was acquired through
acquisition of a subsidiary, represent the PRC operating rights of
a mobile game app of the name “Ninja in Barrel”. The useful life of
operating rights is 3 years.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, due to the unsatisfactory
performance of operating rights of a mobile game apps, the Group
recognised an impairment loss of approximately HK$9,649,000 (2015:
Nil).

(c) Mobile application, which was acquired through business combination,
represented an application specifically built for mobile device user
named “Patalogue”. The useful life of mobile application is 5 years.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, due to the unsatisfactory
performance of mobile application, the Group recognised an
impairment loss of approximately HK$4,660,000 (2015: Nil).

(d) The operating rights of cemetery were issued by the relevant
authorities in Henan for the legal right to operate a cemetery in
Zhecheng county (“Cemetery”). The corresponding operating permit is
renewable every year at minimal costs that the Group would renew the
permit continuously and has the ability to do so. The useful life of the
Cemetery will end on 1 July 2050.

The operating rights will not be amortised until it becomes available
for use. Instead, it will be tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they
might be impaired. During the years ended 31 December 2016 and
2015, Group’s management determined that there was no impairment
of operating rights.

The recoverable amounts of the operating rights are determined from
value in use calculations. The key assumptions for the value in use
calculations are those regarding the discount rates, growth rates and
expected changes to selling prices and direct costs during the period.
Management estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the operating rights. The growth rates are by reference to
industry growth forecasts. Changes in selling prices and direct costs
are based on past practices and expectations of future changes in the
market.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group performed
impairment review for the operating rights based on cash flow
forecasts derived from the most recent financial budgets for the period
of the useful life of the Cemetery approved by management using
discount rate of 23% which reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the operating rights.
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(b) EBWE—EHEQRNES 2 FRESERRE
AEEREBRARDE | FRIBEHERR
Rz hEEEE - e ERFHA=F -
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FM|) o

(c) EBRERSHESZFHREARINEREATF
HRERAPBEERIRGR IZEARN - &%
FHRERBX 2 EAFH/TF -
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17. GOODWILL 17. B8
2016 2015
—E—RF —E-—FEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FHBT
Cost: A :
At 1 January and 31 December N—B—HBER+=ZA=+—H 32,016 32,016
Accumulated impairment losses: ZFRESSE :
At 1 January R—B—AH (21,019) (20,402)
Impairment loss for the year AEERERE (10,997) (617)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H (32,016) (21,019)
Carrying amount: BRIEIME :
At 31 December R+=A=+—H — 10,997

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the entire amount of
goodwill were allocated to mobile application cash-generating
unit (“CGU”)

The Group conducted impairment review on goodwill
attributable to CGU operating in the mobile application
business at the end of the reporting period by reference to its
estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of the
CGU has been determined based on a value-in-use calculation.
Impairment loss amounting to approximately HK$10,997,000
was recognised in respect of the CGU operating in mobile
application business for the year ended 31 December 2016 due
to the continuous deterioration of performance (year ended 31
December 2015: HK$617,000). The recoverable amount of the
CGU, determined by using value-in-use, was zero as the CGU
will cease the current operation. As such, no financial projection
in relation to its future performance is prepared. For the year
ended 31 December 2015, the impairment calculation used
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
the directors of the Group covering a five-year period, with pre-
tax discount rate of 15.69%. The cash flows beyond the five-
year period were extrapolated using a steady growth rate of
2.396% per annum. The growth rate was based on the relevant
industry growth rate forecast and does not exceed the average
long-term growth rate for the relevant industry.

REB-RER-ZE-—HF+ZRA=1—
A BEz2HcEEIREFHERRE
AREELENV(REELEM]) -

RIPERR  FXEERLEFHRERRER
¥R R SELEBENEMZHESEME
AU E & REEITRERS c ZBREELE
BluznWE B NRFEAEEFELSE
BT BRRREFEEE  HE-Z-—X
F+ A=+ RLEERELEFHER
EXEB R SELENERAREFEL
10,997,000/ 8 T (BEZE=E—HFE+=H
=+—HLEE :617,00087T) - ARZ
REELBNBFEILREEE  REERE
SEABENZAIRESE(TRAEAER
EE)ABT Bt MEFRERRRRERER
Bi&TER - BE—E—HE+-_A=+—
HIEFE  BEFEFEZERAREEAEEE
ERERELFHE U EEEREZ
REREFEA > HAIBIIRESR15.69% © &
FHBBECRERENFEABEFER
2 306%HHE  WRETIRBEBEITEZ
BRERIEHIEE r Y RBBEMAETEZTF
HREERE -

Annual Report 2016 =Z—REEHR 125



i

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁ:éﬂﬁiﬁiﬁi %I For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE=-Z—~"F+=-A=+—ALFE

18.

126

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

18. REEZE N B 2=

2016
S

2015
—E-HF
HK$'000
FExT

HK$’000
TEx

Unlisted shares, at cost RETMRG » R 44,795 30,709
Bargain purchase on B — B E A BT
acquisition of an associate REWE 5 2,416 —
Share of post-acquisition loss DB EEERBER
and other comprehensive expense, HRBRE%
net of dividend Hitt2EAX (65) (2,115)
47,146 28,594
Amount due from associates FEWEE N B RIE 13,272 21,326
60,418 49,920
Impairment loss recognised ERRREEE — (30,648)
60,418 19,272

Pursuant to the sales and purchase agreement entered into
between Ottoman Evershine ingaat Proje Ticaret Anonim
Sirketi (“Ottoman Evershine Construction”), a company
incorporated in Turkey and an indirect wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, and Mr. Osman Boyraci on 7 December
2016, Ottoman Evershine Construction acquired 30% of the
share capital of Boyraci Yapi insaat ve Taahhut Gayrimenkul
Yatirim Anonim Sirketi (“BBCC”), a company incorporated
in Turkey and is specialised in elite urban transformation
projects and earthquake resistant buildings, at a consideration
of US$5,780,000 (equivalent to HK$ 44,795,000) satisfied
by a promissory note of principal amount of US$5,780,000
(equivalent to HK$ 44,795,000) issued by the Company on
30 December 2016 as set out in note 26. The promissory
note carries interest rate of 5% per annum and matures on
30 December 2018. The acquisition was completed on 30
December 2016. Upon acquisition, a bargain purchase of
HK$2,416,000 was recognised as set out in note 5.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, Star Most Limited,
an amount due from associate of the Group with carry amount
of HK$6,000,000 was impaired.

EVERSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED  kiEEEZERBER AR

iR & Ottoman Evershine ingaat Proje
Ticaret Anonim Sirketi ( [ Ottoman
Evershine Construction] R+ EHF
MRL2ARREABZEEZTENE
AT)EOsman BoyraciE4AERZ=ZF— N
F+-ALAFTZZEEHZ » Ottoman
Evershine Construction#&BoyraciYapi
insaat ve Taahhut Gayrimenkul Yatirm
Anonim Sirketi([BBCCJ > —ER+EH
Tz AE  HEMAESRH T X
EHAREEFEE)%RAE  RE
5,780,000 T (FH5571844,795,00058 7T ) LA
KARRZZE—ARET+TZA=ZTHBITR
T %0 735,780,000 3 7T (165 7444,795,000
BI) ZESEBREMS (RIINKEE26) °
AEEBRFRR%TE  BRZF—N
F+ZA=1THEH - WEBR_ZF—XRF
TZA=tTHREK - WiEER  BIRBEEWR
#82,416,00078 TTH R MIEES ©

BE_Z—AR"FE+ZA=1+—HILELEFEE
FEUR & B — [E BRHI{E.46,000,00078 7Tt 2
GE NBEERRABRZAEDHRME -
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18. REE&E DT 2R (4

EWERENFRESHEER  RERER
B -

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Amounts due from associates are unsecured, interest-free and
have no fixed terms of repayment.

SETREBRZBPMNT

The movements in accumulated impairment loss is summarised

as follow:

2016 2015

—g-xE  —T-Ef

Hong Kong and PRC HK$’000 HK$'000
HBKH FExT FExT
At 1 January mn—B—H 30,648 30,648
Written back on disposals HERERE (30,648) —
At 31 December R+=—BA=+—H — 30,648

(c) Details of the associates are as follows: (c) BERTZFBUT ¢

Proportion of ownership interest
Gt L =]
Group's effective holding
ARERRGE
Particulars of issued!/
registered and

Place of incorporation/
establishment

Name of company

ARER Seny

and operation

HRRL/RIR

paid up capital
BR1/2RE
BRAGE

Principal activity

IERH

Star Most Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares of HK$1 each — 30%  Investment holdings
EXRRAF & 10000REMAE (ndrect) ~ BEZR
1B EER (@)
Leading Global INC Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares of HK$1 each 30% 30%  Investment holdings
ERERAT Bk 10,000RSREE BT 2 EBR (Direct) (Direct)  RERR
(B%) (B%)
Yongyao Technology (Jiang Xi) PRC Registered capital of HK$7,000,000 30% 30%  Trade of Clothing
Co. Ltd EF SMERT 0000008 (Indirect) (ndrect)  FEE%
KEME (IE) RHERAT () (B)
Boyraci Yapi Insaat ve Taahhut Turkey Registered capital of 30% —  Building construction

Gayrimenkul Yatirim Anonim Sirketi £ 5 & TRY21,000,000 (Indirect) properties development
SMER21,000,000L EEEH (Ei%) and trading of
construcation materials
BRRE  NRFER
BEMNEERH
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18.

19.

128

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

(d) The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information of the Group’s associates:

Hong Kong and PRC

BEBERF

Assets EiE
Liabilities af&
Revenues g
Losses 518

18. REEE N TF 2R (&

(@) TRMLAEEYS A2 HER
ap

Assets BE
Liabilities =0

2016 2015
=F—NF i
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET THAT
14,831 13,085
14,137 31,213
10,641 —

43 31

2016 2015
—E—REF —E—AEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
231,355 —
73,645 —

DEPOSIT FOR ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 14 December 2015, the Company entered into
memorandum of understanding (“MOU”) with two independent
third parties, to acquire the entire equity interests in Color
Bridge Industrial Company Limited (“CBI”) and 90% equity
interests in Color-Bridge Printing & Packaging Company
Limited (“CBPP”). CBI is a company incorporated in Hong
Kong with limited liability and is principally engaged in property
investment. CBPP is a company incorporated in Hong Kong
with limited liability and is principally engaged in color printing
works.

Upon signing of the MOU, the Company paid to the two
independent third parties the sum of HK$10,000,000 as
deposit, which will be fully refunded subject to the terms
and conditions of the MOU. During the year, the MOU has
been lapsed and the deposits has been fully refunded to the
Company.

EVERSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED  kiEEEZERBER AR

19. BB ATES

R-ZZ2-AF+ZF+WA  AQFER
BB E =T LR E TR ([ R E S
FNAWBEREEXARIA(TREE
XD EMREREBONBERAT (FB
7% 1)90% R - ERBER —RRNE
BEMAY 2 BRAE - TBRBWHER
& XROBR KRB BEMRILZE
RAT  EBRBXEHR T -

BERBBETRE  FARFACAZMEE
M =T F%%10,000,0008 STAERET
® 0 7 BRRREREE TR IR RARME
2EURE - TR RBETHROERY
el EERBRETARQT °
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20. INVENTORIES

20. &

2016 2015
—E-AE  —Z-HE

HK$°000 HK$'000
FET T

Merchandise Em

3,518 14,984

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

21. B R HMEWRE

2016 2015

—E-X%F  —B-AfF

HK$’000 HK$°000

FET FHExT

Trade debtors (note a&b) FEWBRFR (fatakeb) 72,215 38,479
Other receivables HibEWERIE 15,547 4,605
Rental and other deposits HEREMRES 20,806 20,742
Prepayments FE{IFRIE 10,544 1,334
119,112 65,160

(a) Ageing analysis
An ageing analysis of trade debtors at the end of respective
reporting period is as follows:

(a) FRERDHT

FE W BR SR & R 5 R o2 B 0 4 4N
T

2016 2015

—E—REF —E—AEF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHT T8t

Within 1 month —EAR 22,359 8,112
More than 1 month but within BE—EAER=EARN

3 months 7,695 30,101
More than 3 months but within BiB={EAERSERR

6 months 5 16

More than 6 months BB NE A 42,156 250

72,215 38,479

Trade debtors are generally granted with credit terms
ranging from 30 days to 180 days. The Group may, on a
case by case basis and after evaluation of the business
relationship and creditworthiness, extend the credit period
upon customers’ requests.

FEW BR R —RER T F30 R £180
Az EEH - AEETZER 1R K
REFEEBEARREERETFER

Annual Report 2016  —Z—XFFHR 129



T

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁ:éﬂﬁiﬁimﬁi For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE=Z—AF+-A=+—HILFE

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

(b) Trade debtors that are not impaired
The ageing analysis of trade debtors that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired are as
follows:

21. BEZ R EMBWRR(E)

(b) 3 FIRME 2 FE U AR K
I 42 {8 1 = H {48 4F 2 B 2 FE W AR
FERE OMAT -

2016
S

2015
—E-HF
HK$'000
TBT

HK$’000
TET

Neither past due nor impaired B AN R (E 30,059 38,229

Past due but not impaired and EEHBILERER
past due within 6 months BEA DR AEA 42,156 250
72,215 38,479

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a wide range of customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Management closely monitors
the credit quality, based on past experience, management
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary
in respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances are
still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances.

22. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS

Restricted bank deposits solely represent {E&REE(RIEE =
a statutory deposit for travel agency BREEESEZ
quality guarantee FRFERITER

B 42 380 5 7 S RN (B 2 FB WORR IR S e R
SN BIER LB 2B -

SEEEREBREHESRS S
HEAEEERFERLECZBYR
F-BEEREREEER  ER
BELR ANMSEERTELRE
REERBEERDBARS TR
Bl WEBERRBARXSERE
HRERE - AEEIEHZEEER
FEEMRRR -

22. ZREBITER

2016
—E—RE

2015
—Z-HF
HK$'000
T

HK$°000
TR

2,406 2,550

23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range from
0.01% to 0.35% per annum (31 December 2015: 0.01% to
2.86%).
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24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

24. BEZ R HMBNRIR

2016
S

HK$’000
TET

2015
—E-HF
HK$'000
FExT

Trade creditors (note a) FE{FBRRX (B/ata) 13,971 7,976
Other payables Hib eS8 3,963 4,449
Amounts due to a related person B —RBEEAL
(note b) ER9E (D) 36 2,987 3,659
Financial liabilities measured REHA AT EZ
at amortised cost E@asE 20,921 16,084
Accrued charges EE A 3,115 2,086
Other taxes and government HEAHER
surcharges payables BT RS N EE 192 3
Receipts in advance (note c) TR IE (K1 ac) 16,205 5,027
40,433 23,200

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled

within one year or are repayable on demand.

(a) Ageing analysis
The ageing analysis of trade creditors at the end of the
reporting period is as follows:

FEES KR AMBNFRERR—FRE

(a) FRERDHT

FEAT RN IR E AR 2 BRE DTN T

2016 2015

—E-A&  —B-HE

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FBT

Within 1 month —{ER R 9,141 1,900
More than 1 month but within BE—ERER=EARN

3 months 647 4,283

More than 3 months BiBR={EA 4,183 1,793

13,971 7,976

(b) As at 31 December 2016, the balances represent amounts
due to Lau Yu, a director of the Company who resigned
as director of the Company on 9 December 2016. The
amounts are unsecured and non-interest bearing.

(c) The amounts represent prepaid service income from
customers, for which the related services are expected to
be rendered within one year from the end of the reporting
period.

(b) R=ZF—R"E+=A=+—0H  #&
ERGAQXTDESNF(R-F—ARF
TZAABRBRERARAES) ZH
H o ZHIARBERFREE

(c) ZEHERREEF Z2BNRBYA -

R BERES B REMARET —F
AR o
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25. SHORT-TERM LOANS 25. SEHAIE R
2016 2015
—B-AF T—hHF
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) HK$’000 rate (%) HK$’000
BERIR B RIE
(%) T (%) T
Current: BIHA
Loans from non-financial JERNTEHERE HKD Best 52,000 6% 2,000
institutions — secured EX — BEA Lending
Rate plus
4.75%
per annum
FREH
BLIRES
FE 0
4.75%
On 1 September 2016, two secured and guaranteed loan R-ZZB-XRFLA—B  FEEZEERERN
facilities amounting to HK$26,000,000 each have been HEEFEREERERME MEEAS
granted to the Group (the “Loans”). The Loans were secured 26,000,000 T ((ER]) » ERUTIIE
by (i) a corporate guarantees for HK$26,000,000 each to be A (1) 4 2 7 5t & 18 £26,000,00058
given by the Company; (i) an unlimited personal guarantee TZEFEATER ; (IVARLATHITES
to be given by Mr. Hung Tat Chi Alan, an executive director of HHER SRR EPRBAER ;5 (i) AW
the Company; (iii) mortgages by the way of first legal charge ZHEREERAE —EERTZ2HAER
for all monies over the properties; and (iv) assignments of BRGV)EBEMF14RIGEBRE2ERSE
rental on the properties as disclosed in Notes 14 and 15. The E o FRERBATS%MBTRERRE -
interest rates are 4.75% over HKD Best Lending Rate per
annum.
26. PROMISSORY NOTES 26. RHEE
2016
—E—XF
HK$’000
FHET
At 1 January R—A—A (@) 27,170 43,000
Promissory notes issued BEITERAERE
- PN4 — AR BN (a) — 26,829
—PN5 —ARRER (b) 19,684 —
—PN6 —EREEA (b) 20,430 _
- PN7 —EGRREE (c) 44,795 —
Repayment of promissory notes BEAEEE (4,815) (43,000)
Interest paid [EEEE[=S (613) (856)
Interest charge FNEEH 6,820 1,197
Fair value changes NEEZE (a) (2,811) —
At 31 December Wt+=—A=+—H 110,660 27,170
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26. PROMISSORY NOTES (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(a)

(c)

On 16 June 2014, the Company issued a promissory note in the
principal amount of HK$20,000,000 (the “PN 1”). The PN 1 is
unsecured and it bears an interest of 30% per annum and fall due on
15 September 2014.

Together with the interests for the period from 16 September 2014
to 31 January 2015 of approximately HK$2,300,000. The principal
amount of PN 1 was fully settled on 10 February 2015.

On 17 November 2014, the Company issued a promissory note in the
principal amount of HK$18,000,000 (the “PN 2") upon the completion
of the acquisition of Patalogue Limited. The PN 2 is unsecured and it
bears interest at 2% per annum and fall due on 17 November 2015.
The Company repaid the principal amount of HK$18,000,000 on 13
February 2015 and the noteholder agreed to waive any accrual interest
payable.

On 17 December 2014, the Company issued a promissory note in the
principal amount of HK$5,000,000 (the “PN 3”) for general working
capital. The PN 3 is unsecured and it bears an interest of 24% per
annum and fall due on 16 February 2015. The principal amount of the
PN 3 was fully settled on 23 February 2015.

On 30 November 2015, the Company issued promissory notes in the
principal amount of HK$30,320,000 (the “PN 4”) for acquisition of
entire issue share capital of Fortune Ford Limited. PN 4 are unsecured
and bear an interest of 2% per annum and fall due on 30 November
2016. The fair value of PN 4 approximately HK$26,829,000 at the date
of initial recognition.

On 1 December 2016, the Company and the promissory note holder
agreed to extend the maturity to 30 November 2017 with other
terms remain the same. The fair value as at the date of extension
was approximately HK$27,509,000. Hence, a gain on fair value
change in relation to the extension for the maturity of approximately
HK$2,811,000 was recognised.

On 27 June 2016, the Company issued 2 promissory notes in the
principal amount of approximately HK$23,765,000 (the “PN 5") and
HK$24,667,000 (“PN 6”) for acquisition of entire issued share capital of
Spring Hero Developments Limited and Sharp Pick Ventures Limited
from independent third party, respectively. Both PN 5 and PN 6 are
unsecured and bear an interest of 6% per annum and falls due on 27
June 2018. As at the date of issue, the fair value of PN 5 and PN 6
was approximately HK$19,684,000 and HK$20,430,000 respectively.
On 11 October 2016, the Company partially redeemed for principal
of approximately HK$4,815,000 and renewed the principal amount
of the promissory note to approximately HK$19,101,000 which bears
the same an interest of 6% per annum and falls due 27 June 2018.
The effective interest rates for both promissory notes are 16.287% per
annum.

On 30 December 2016, the Company issued a promissory note in
the principal amount of US$5,780,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$44,795,000 (the “PN 7”) for acquisition of 30% issue share capitals
of Boyraci Yapi Insacet VeTaahhut Gayrimenkul Yatirim Anonim
pre-prevanson . PN 7 is unsecured and it bears interest of 5% per
annum. and fall due on 30 December 2018. The fair value of PN 7 was
approximately to its carrying value at the date of initial recognition.

NE+ZA=+—RHILLEE
26. RH R (E)
Bat -
(@ R-ZT—MNFEARB+~A - XQAFBTES
%ﬁmomom&iZﬁE%Eﬂﬁﬁ%%
—1)e E«%my’i—%%iﬁﬁ  BIRFIRGE
30%stE  WR—E—WFAB+EBRIE -
H-ZE-—NEABt+~BEZE=Z—H%—A
—+ AER - @Hﬂ%% 52,300,00058
c AR EE—ASBENR-_ZE-RF=-A+AH
3%5&%11;1\10

()

RoZ-—NE+—-A+tA  KQERGTESE
#%318,000,00038 7T 2 75 5 1% ([ 7R 5 R g
ZDURRBIBRSSERA R  RHRE—
REIRM - DRARGE2%HE AR=F
—BEFt AT LRS- ARFER=-Z
—hEF = A+ =HMHEEA$%%18,000,000
BRMRESEARERREARN T H2F

R-B-mE+=g++A  RADRTES
#5,000,0003% 7% 2 7 3 48 (R 5 F I8 = ))
fER— MRS - FIRB=ARES
BAFSE2%HE YR —F—EF—F
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E-A=+=B2BHEN -
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$07¥<R?€flﬁ% LR ME% E’éiz%
:'t' 8, WH= /\%"' A=
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REZB-REXAZ+LB  ARAFUE
& ##923,765,0008 T (A HZEHR |) K
24,667,000/ 7T ([ K R EE S |) BATMIEAS
=i Lo BIBEBE=AWESpring Hero
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27. CONVERTIBLE NOTES

134

EVERSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

27. TRARERE

2016 2015
—2-xE —T-EHE
HK$’000 HK$000
F#ET FET

Carrying amount at the beginning FH)ZREE
of the year 38,523 —
Issuance of convertible notes BT AR AR I 22,367 37,991
Interest charge FEEH 2,702 532
Conversion of convertible notes HRBTBRREE (39,244) =
Carrying amount at the end of the year FRZRHEE 24,348 38,523

(@) On 30 November 2015, the Company issued 2%

unsecured convertible notes in the principal amount
of HK$49,680,000 as a part of consideration for the
acquisition of Fortune Ford Limited (note 31). The
convertible notes are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
The notes entitle the holders to convert them into shares
of the Company at any time between the date of issue of
the notes and their settlement date on 30 November 2017
at a conversion price of HK$0.138 per convertible note. If
the notes have not been converted, they will be redeemed
on 30 November 2017 at par. Interest of 2% will be paid
annually up until the settlement date.

The Company may at any time before the convertible
notes maturity date to redeem the convertible notes (in
whole or in part). The fair value of the redemption right was
insignificant as at the issue date.

The convertible notes contain two components, liability and
equity elements. The equity element is presented in equity
heading convertible notes equity reserve. The effective
interest rate of the liability component is 16.789% per
annum. The equity element is presented in equity heading
“Convertible notes reserve” amounting to HK$11,063,000.

On 20 January 2016 and 15 March 2016, the note holders
exercised of conversion rights attaching to the convertible
notes at the conversion price of HK$0.138. The Company
issued and allotted 181,159,420 and 178,840,580 of new
shares.

KIEEEZRRERAF

(a)

RZZE-AF+—-A=+H 4A27F
1T $%8%49,680,00078 7T 2 2% &
ERITBRRREE - ERKRERXSE
PR Tz 8 RE (BIEE31) o Al
SELBREE - ZBBTEFEA
BANRBERITEHEIRBEH (=
—tF+—-A=1RH)LTBEKERE
R RIB0.138 B T2 IR E R
BHREB|ABADERD o i R ARE
R AR =_F—tF+-A=+
HEREERER - 8F82%2F
EEEXWKEH -

ANB) AR TR IRZE I H B ATRE A
RO 2D TRBRRE - RBAT
AHEEEs A FELTEK -

TRREESERMEDRD - EERE
wmHD BEFINEZATRRE
BEZRERRY - BEH I 2ER
FIZRBEE16.789% o #EFHE I D A FE
mA[ TR EERFEEITEY > 58
#11,063,0008 7T °

RZE—RE—AZ+HRZZ—R
F=ZA+HRA ZEEAEARIEBRE
0.138E 1T A IR 4B Frb A1 AR
FE o NN T B (TR ERE$181,159,420 %
178,840,580 % ET AR 1D ©
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27. WA EE (&
(b) R=Z—ARERA+HB » KAFM

27. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (CONTINUED)

(b) On 16 May 2016, the Company issued an unsecured

zero coupon convertible notes in the principal amount
of HK$30,000,000 at HK$25,800,000 by cash, applied
towards appropriate acquisition and investment
opportunities and general working capital of the Group.
The convertible notes are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars. The notes entitle the holders to convert them
into Conversion Shares (the “Conversion Shares”) of
the Company at any time between the date of issue of
the notes and their settlement date on 16 May 2018 at a
conversion price of HK$0.4 per Convertible Share.

The convertible notes contain two components, liability
and equity elements. The effective interest rate of the
liability element is 15.62% per annum. The equity element
is presented in equity heading “Convertible notes reserve”
amounting to HK$3,433,000.

28. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

(a) The following is deferred tax liabilities recognised and

movements thereon during the year:

As at 31 December 2014

RZZE—MNFE+=-A=+—H

I 425,800,000 8 TRITALES
30,000,0008 T 2 BMIRHZEE AR
ZiE UEARAEEZABRER
BREMBUR -—REEES - WiIaR
ZELBTHE - ZBRFEBEA
EANEERTAREXWBEH (==
—NERA+8) L HEERIRER
ARIRRD04B T2 RBABEERR
BERNT 2 BB (ZRIiRB D) -

THRREESEMERD  BED
TREDAD c BEIND 2ERF
MED15.62% ° EH B D REZHE A
[MEREERE T2 8B
3,433,000/ 7T °

28. EEFHIEEE
(@) &R CHRREEHEEEREEZH

T :

Intangible
assets

— Mobile
application

BVEE

- FHRERRN
HK$'000
TERT

and 1 January 2015 kK=—Z—H%—H—H 1,277
Credited to the consolidated statement of RERFTAZE
profit or loss during the year BEx (361)

As at 31 December 2015
and 1 January 2016

Credited to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss during the year BmE

RERTTALZS

R-ZE—HF+=-A=+—H
E=ZT—XRFE—HA—H 916

(916)

At 31 December 2016

RZEBE—ARE+=B=+—H _
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28. EIEBIBEE (&

28. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

(b) The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets
in respect of estimated tax losses of approximately
HK$47,180,000 (2015: HK$36,059,000) as it is not
probable that future taxable profits against which the
losses can be utilised will be available in the relevant tax
jurisdiction and entity.

29. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVE

(b) AREBERBEREEER BEILEE

BB AR R RERF R -
WARENARERERGHHIEEE
ZIEFERL BB E #947,180,000/8 T (=
ZT—FHF : 36,059,000 7T) °

29. RAK A

Number of
shares Amount
BB x|
000 HK$’000
T FiET
Issued and fully paid ERITRAZE
At 1 January 2015 N=ZT—-HF—H—H 560,137 755,030
Issue of new shares in connection with BATERHAR G R 2 AR 1D
the rights issue (note (i) (1) 280,068 81,927
Issue of placing share (note (i) BATECE IR (M (i) 112,026 34,207
Issue of placing share (note (iii)) ETELERAD (BEL (i)
190,446 37,237
At 31 December 2015 and R-ZE—HF+-A=+—HRK
at 1 January 2016 —E-RE—F—H 1,142,677 908,401
Issue of shares upon conversion of SRR EEREITRG
convertible notes (note (iv)) (HiEE(iv)) 360,000 50,932
At 31 December 2016 R-ZB—RF+=A=+—H 1,502,677 959,333
Notes: BrEE -

(i) On 9 February 2015, the Company issued and allotted 280,068,452
shares at a price of HK$0.3 per share by way of rights issue. The
details were disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 14
January 2015.

(i) On 22 April 2015, the Company issued and allotted 112,026,000
shares at a price of HK$0.31 per share by way of placing pursuant to
the placing agreement dated 14 April 2015.

(iii)  On 27 November 2015, the Company issued and allotted 190,446,020
shares at a price of HK$0.198 per share by way of placing pursuant to
the placing agreement dated 12 November 2015.

(iv) On 20 January 2016 and 15 March 2016, the Company issued and
allotted 181,159,420 and 178,840,580 of new shares respectively at a
price of HK$0.138 per share by way of exercise of conversion rights.
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(i)

(iii)

(iv)

RZE-AFZAAA  ARAEREBRUE
R AR 17 0.378 JT 2 [B4& 31T R Bt 3 280,068,452
B - BEFERALATAARA-S—HF
—ATNAZEREZERHE -

R-ZZE-AFNA=+=H REBHBH=
T-AFMATMAZERERE  AARE
PBEELUSRRH0.31B T ZEBEBTRER
112,026,0008% B 17 ©

R-ZE—RBF+—A=++tH REBHE=
Z-AF+-A+-AZEBRERE  KXOFE
BEELUERIRH0.1988 T 2 BHREITRE
££190,446,020RIR17 ©

RZE-—RFE-—B=Z+HARZZE—~F=A
THEA > RNDTEBITEARREEATH
A4 IR HE LU S BR0.13838 T 2 Bl 3% 1T K o 3%
181,159,420 178,840,580 8% £ BR 19 °
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29. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVE (CONTINUED)

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity of the annual
report.

()

EXCHANGE RESERVE

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the consolidated
financial statements of foreign operations. The reserve is
dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies set
out in note 2.

(Il) STATUTORY RESERVE

Transfers from 10% of net profits to statutory reserve
fund were made in accordance with the relevant PRC
rules and regulations and the articles of association of the
Company’s subsidiaries established in the PRC and were
approved by the respective boards of directors.

Statutory reserve fund can be used to make good previous
years’ losses, if any, and may be converted into paid-up
capital provided that the balance of the statutory reserve
fund after such conversion is not less than 25% of their
registered capital.

The Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC are required
to transfer a minimum of 10% of their net profits, as
determined in accordance with the PRC accounting rules
and regulations, to the statutory reserve fund until the
reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered capital. The
transfer to this fund must be made before distribution of
dividends to shareholders.

(Ill) CONVERTIBLE NOTES RESERVE

The convertible notes reserve represents the value of
the unexercised equity component of convertible notes
issued by the Company recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for convertible notes in note 2.

Distributable reserves
As at 31 December 2016, there was no reserves available for
distribution to equity shareholders of the Company (2015: Nil).

29. RAR i (&

FEEFEEERENAFERBEFE
ZEB2FINAFRGSRBREBR -

() EZ#E

ERREEERESIER 2REY
BMRAELEZFIAEREZH - %8
RBIREBENF2AE 2ETFTHRE
I# o

() ZEFE

(1)

BEMARNZ10%EEZEREETIRE
B AE B R B R AR B LA R A8 A B A R
BIRK M 2 (Y N B 2 A A T AR AR A
17 WERABESSHE -

EEREBETTAFEHERTIFESE
(A) » FAEREEHRAE - HER
BHERE EERBETEBRIED
REMEARZ25% °

AABZHENBARARETHE
HRAIRRG - AR 2 & D10%E
BELIERES  HEERBHEREER
HEMEARZ50% AL c BEZESE
RERERD IR S ATET

AR5 1

AR R IE B AR B 2P R ]
MREERNETEE  BALD
BT 2 AR R 2 RIT DS
Mo 2EE -

D IREE
RZBE—XRE+ZA=+—8 - #8TM

AR FAARRBEEAZEEB(=F
—HEE)o
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30.

138

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION

Share Option Schemes

On 1 February 2016, the 2011 Share Option Scheme was
terminated and a new share option scheme was adopted
(the “2016 Share Option Scheme”). The purpose of the 2016
Share Option Scheme is to enable the Company to grant
share options to a certain eligible participants as defined
below (“Eligible Participants”) as incentives or rewards for their
contribution to the long term development of the Group and
to provide the Group with a more flexible means to reward,
remunerate, compensate, attract, retain and/or provide benefits
to the Eligible Participants. The 2016 Share Option Scheme
was adopted for a period of 10 years commencing from 1
February 2016 and will remain in force until 31 January 2026.

Eligible Participant under the 2016 Share Option Scheme
includes any full-time or part-time employees, consultants
or potential employees, executives or officers (including
executive, non-executive and independent non-executive
directors) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries and any
suppliers, customers, consultants, agents and advisers who, in
the opinion of the directors, will contribute or has contributed to
the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries.

The subscription price shall be determined by the directors
in its absolute discretion but in any event shall be at least the
higher of:

(i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong on the date of grant which must be a business day;
and

(ii) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the
daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant.

Upon acceptance of the options, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00
to the Company as consideration for the grant. The acceptance
of an offer of the grant of the option must be made within 14
days from the date of grant. Unless otherwise determined by
the directors in the relevant offer letter to a grantee, there is
no minimum period for which any option must be held before it
can be exercised and no performance target which needs to be
achieved by a grantee before the options can be exercised. An
option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
2016 Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as the
directors may determine which shall not exceed ten years from
the date of grant subject to the provisions of early termination
thereof.

There is no outstanding option and there is no options have
been granted under the option scheme since its adoption.
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31. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH ACQUISITION 3. ZBYEHB QKRB RE
OF SUBSIDIARIES

(@) In June 2016, the Company acquired 100% property (@) R=ZEBE—AREXRA AL FEBWE

interests in 15th and 16th Floor of Henan Building, Nos. 90
and 92 Jaffe Road and Nos. 15-19 Luard Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong through the acquisition of 100% equity interest
in Spring Hero Developments Limited and Sharp Pick
Ventures Limited. The consideration of HK$53,332,000
has been satisfied by the issue of promissory notes with
principal amount of approximately HK$48,432,000 (fair
value of HK$40,114,000 as at the initial recognition) and
cash of HK$4,900,000. At the date of acquisition, the
Group recognised investment properties of HK$44,919,000
and land and buildings included in property, plant and
equipment of HK$44,763,000 based on the floor areas
leased out to other lessees and occupied by the Group
respectively.

The total net assets of Spring Hero Developments Limited
and Sharp Pick Ventures Limited at the date of acquisition
are as follows:

Spring Hero Developments Limited
Sharp Pick Ventures LimitedZ &R
EWEEBEFHEBIOR2IEE
HE15195E BB RAE1SER16EZ
IV ERER © X1E53,332,00078 T
BEBBITARERLN 548,432,000/
T (R LR A FEAH40,114,000/8
7U) 2 B R IE £4,900,0007% 5T
ZHFXEM - RRBAE > RIEOH
ARBARAEEGRZEEEE
AEB S B EFRE 44,919,000
BIUURETAYE BERERB2ZL
#th R A2 £544,763,00058 7T ©

Spring Hero Developments Limited &
Sharp Pick Ventures Limited AU S B
BB EEFENT

Spring Hero Sharp Pick
Developments Ventures
Limited Limited

Fair value Fair value Total
NS AFE st
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
T FET TET

Asset acquired and liabilities ERBEEEREER

recognised/consideration 8B RE 22,134 22,880 45,014
Consideration satisfied by the fair LA T 5I&18

value of ATFEEF2KE

— Cash -BE 2,450 2,450 4,900

— Promissory notes - R EE 19,684 20,430 40,114

22,134 22,880 45,014

Analysis of the net outflow RERRSEEYRE

of cash and cash equivalents FEED M

Cash consideration paid ENEESRE 2,450 2,450 4,900

Net cash outflow BeRb B 2,450 2,450 4,900
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31.

140

ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH ACQUISITION 31.
OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Fortune Ford Group

(b) On 30 November 2015, the Group completed the
acquisition of 100% equity interest in Fortune Ford
Limited and its subsidiaries (“Fortune Ford Group”)
from an independent third party. The consideration
of HK$110,000,000 was satisfied by the issue of the
promissory note in the principle amount of HK$30,320,000
(note 26), convertible notes of HK$49,680,000 (note 27)
and cash of HK$30,000,000.

Fortune Ford Group has not carried out any significant business
transactions on acquisition date. In the opinion of the directors,
the acquisition did not constitute an acquisition of business in
substance. The acquisition of the intangible assets was then
considered as acquisition of assets through acquisition of
subsidiaries.

The net assets of Fortune Ford Group at the date of acquisition
are as follows:

FERWBHE R RWBYIR(E

BKEEER

(b) R=E—HF+—-HA=+H x&H
BE—BBIUR=FRWBEXKSE
RARIREMBAR(RAXEER]D
IR AFER © 1X2110,000,0005%8 7T
EE B TS5 530,320,00058 T
ZE G EE (MfsE26) ~ 49,680,000
TTZABRREE (M27) RESRE
30,000,000 JT& 1t o

BRSEERWE R BEEETEMNEKR
EBRG - EFRR  WESHELTHERK
BEAZEBWE BIEEEZWESEEE
REAREBIBEHNBARMEBEE -

RUE AR XSEEEEFENT ¢

Total
Foh
HK$000
FBT
Asset acquired and liabilities recognised BEWBEERCHEIRERE 118,623
Non-controlling interest RS (12,740)
Consideration RE 105,883
Consideration satisfied by the fair value of: UTFEEALEEMZRE
— Cash —B4 30,000
— Convertible bonds — AR ES 49,054
— Promissory notes —RHEE 26,829
105,883
Analysis of the net outflow of cash and ReRBEEEY
cash equivalents: TR
Cash consideration paid 2EENE (30,000)
Cash and cash equivalent acquired ESHEERESEEY 9
Net cash outflow RERmHFEE (29,991)
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32. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 32. HEMBAR
(@) On 30 March 2016, the Group completed the disposal of (@) RZE—XRE=ZA=1+H  ~&EER
the entire issued share capital of Creative Star Limited for RHEEZEARATS R RITR
a cash consideration of HK$8. & e REESET o
Note HK$’000
Mzt THExT
Account and other receivables FE W AR TR R ELAth FE U SR IE 804
Cash and cash equivalents RekRBESZEEY 15
Accounts and other payables FEASBRFN R HL At FE T FRIE (7,962)
Net liabilities disposed EHEZEEFHE (7,143)
Non-controlling interest R R (3,609)
(3,534)
Consideration satisfied by cash DEERF2RE =
Gain on disposal HE W 11 (3,534)
Analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash BRERREZEEYHREFED
equivalents: ro:
Total Cash Consideration BEESRE —
Cash and cash equivalents disposed BEHEZRERESEEY (15)
Net cash outflow REMEFHE (15)
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32. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

32. HEWB AR (@)

(b) On 31 December 2015, the Group completed the disposal
of 51% equity interest of Fountain City Group.

b) REB-HE+-F=+—0  &&
EEEHEER RN ERZ51%8AR
3 o

The cash flow and the carrying amount of net assets of the
subsidiaries sold at the date of disposal were as follows:

REERHHNEARCHEZEEF
EBEzREREREEENT :

142

HK$’000

T

Property, plant and equipment M > BERREE 655
Account and other receivables FEUS AR R HL At FE UK R I8 6,738
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 125
Assets classified as held for sales PEARBEHEZERE 7,518
Other payables Hth S FRIE (37,883)
Liabilities classified as held for sales PEABFEHEZEE (37,883)
Net liabilities disposed EHEEEFE (30,365)
Non-controlling interest IR R 17,126
(13,239)

Consideration satisfied by cash DBRERF2RE (58,894)
Less: Financial asset — put options W EREE - RLERE 52,650
Gain on disposal HE k= (19,483)
Analysis of the net outflow of cash RekBESEEYRLFE

and cash equivalents: DA

Total cash consideration BIERE 64,894

Less: cash received in prior year W BEFEEWREIRE (6,000)

Cash consideration received during the year FREWEIRERE 58,894

Cash and cash equivalents disposed (note) B HEZRERBEEBEY (FE) —

Net cash inflow RERANFEE 58,894

Note:

The cash and bank balances is grouped into “Assets classified as held
for sales”, therefore, it was excluded in the calculation of cash and

cash equivalents being disposed.
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Financial instruments by category
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of each reporting period are as
follows:

Financial assets

33. ¢@mIA
(a) BERIS/EZ2ERMTE

RERERRZTER 2 M T ARE

BT :

2016
=
Loans and

receivables

BRR
PEWS R IE
HK$°000

Tz

2015
—E-HF
Loans and
receivables
BRR
FEUFRIE
HK$’000
FET

Trade and other receivables 5 R EMERIIE 108,568 63,826
Restricted bank deposits ZRRHIERITIER 2,406 2,550
Cash and cash equivalents RERBESEEY 12,406 40,188
123,380 106,564
2016 2015
—E—XRE —E—FE
Financial Financial
liabilities at liabilities at
amortised amortised
cost cost
Bi7G: 3 DR By G; 51 DN
TEZ ez
Financial liabilities SHEEaE ==l
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Trade and other payables B 5 RAEMEMATIE 20,921 16,084
Promissory notes 7R S 110,660 27,170
Short-term loans EHIER 52,000 2,000
Convertible notes EIE:EE 24,348 38,523
207,929 83,777
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

144

(b) Financial risk management
Exposure to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risks arises
in the normal course of the Group’s business. These risks
are mitigated by the Group’s financial management policies
and practices described below.

(A) Credit Risk

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss
to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation
by the counterparties is arising from the carrying
amount of the respective recognised financial assets
as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual
credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of
making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to
the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. Trade
receivables are due within 30 to 180 days from
the date of billing. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from customers. The impairment
losses on bad and doubtful debts account are within
management’s expectation.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer. The default risk of the industry and country
in which customers operate also has an influence
on credit risk but to a lesser extent. At the end of
reporting period, the Group does not have significant
concentration of credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosure in respect of the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from trade and
other receivables are set out in note 21.

In respect of deposits with banks, the Group mitigates
its exposure to credit risk by placing deposits with
financial institutions with established credit ratings.
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(A) EERE
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RRBYEFREBITEIMESR
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FEGEAUERARFREEHE
REMEEZREE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁ:éﬂﬁiﬁiﬁq %.I For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE—ZE—A~E+-A=+—HI&EE

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management (Continued)

(B)

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able
to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The
Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure,
as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, without
incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the
Group’s reputation.

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the parent company’s board
when the borrowings exceed certain predetermined
levels of authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly
monitor its liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and readily realisable
marketable securities and adequate committed lines
of funding from major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of each reporting period of
the Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities,
which are based on contractual undiscounted cash
flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current
at the statement of financial position date) and the
earliest date the Group can be required to pay:

2016
—8EF

33. &M IAE)

(b) BATSELBEE (1)
(B) HBIE 2R

RBETEREAEETERE
HREITEVREE AR - &
SEEERDES CHHARET
R -EABRHBABES -
DENSHIINEE mMAEELE
THRAZBEIRELAEERE
Z R e

AEBETENEEEREER
BeRLER  SRERSBEHE
HRE  REERERUENSED
BEa®ER  HEEEBHETHE
ERBEAY  AARBLRES
SitE AEBBRSEME
BEERBDESTEREERET
EXRE  BREFERRSMH
BRAMKEZER CHEESFUR
BEEMBEBEEEHC A
B EUARNEEHRER
HZRBEESHER -

TRENAKEFRTESREE
REBEHRZRBES NI
B MEDESITHARMERS
RE(BFERASHFRLMET
BAR BRUBRRRABE
BRI 58 2 R BATR) AR A&
BUREANRZBERRHMAEE

5

2015
“E-1E

Total
Contractual
undiscounted
cash flow
BRRER
HK$'000
TERT

Total
Contractual
undiscounted
cash flow

More than
1 year but
less than

2 years
BA-F
BORWE
HK$'000
TEL

More than
1 year but
less than
2 years
BR-F
BORWE
HK$'000
TiET

Within

1 year oron
demand
R-FR
HK$'000
TR

Within

1 year oron
demand
R—%R
FEER
HK$'000
TR

Carrying

Carrying

amount amount

IREE
HK$'000
TR

KR
HK$'000
T

Trade and other payables 25 R EMREMFHE 38,241 38,241 38,241 - 18,170 18,170 18,170 =
Promissory notes REZHE 110,660 131,946 31,347 100,599 27,170 26,829 26,829 -
Short-term loans RHER 52,000 52,000 52,000 - 2,000 2,000 2,000 =
Convertible notes TEREE 24,348 30,000 - 30,000 38,523 38,523 = 38,523
225,49 252,187 121,588 130,599 85,863 85,522 46,999 38,523
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁ:éﬂﬁiﬁimﬁi For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE=Z—AF+-A=+—HILFE

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management (Continued)
(C) Market Risk
(i) Currency risk
The Group has transactional currency exposures.
Such exposures arise from sales, purchases or
expenditure by operating units in currencies other
than the units’ functional currencies. The following
table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the
reporting period to a reasonably possible change
in the exchange rates of the HK dollar (‘HK$") and
Renminbi (“RMB”), with all other variables held

33. &I AE)

(b) BIEERER(E)
(C) TR

(iy E¥ER
AEBAZZIZHEBR
Mo WS EMKREEBEEN
MRZEMNIHEEE R LI E B
BET2BEEREY - THRE
NEREHMEEHIETE
ZERT  AEBERBED
RZBRBAIBE(ZEBEE
REBATVESETE)HE

constant, of the Group’s loss before tax (due to T(EB T REARE(TAR
changes in the fair value of monetary assets and M EXTREGELR 2%
liabilities). By BUREE ©
Increase/
(decrease) in
loss before
Increase/ tax and
(Decrease) in  accumulated
exchange rate loss
BREBLATE 1A
BE = RR:TEE
2, (B @i, (D)
HK$’000
FExT
2016 —E—KREF
If HK$ weakens against RMB mBTHAREERE 5% 106
If HK$ strengthens against RMB #0387t 7 A RETHE (5%) (106)
2015 —E-HF
If HK$ weakens against RMB mBTHARKERE 5% 1,102
If HK$ strengthens against RMB 8 T i A REEFE (5%) (1,102)

(i) Interest rate risk
The Group is primarily exposed to cash flow
interest rate risk in relation to variable-rate interest
bearing receivables and payables, including bank
balances and borrowings. The Group’s fair value
interest rate risk relates primarily to promissory
notes and convertible bonds. The Group currently
does not have an interest rate hedging policy in
relation to fair value interest rate risk and cash flow
interest rate risk. However, management of the
Group monitors interest rate exposure on an on-
going basis and will consider hedging significant
interest rate exposure should the need arise. The
Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial
liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk section of
this note. The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk
is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of HKD
best lending rate.
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management (Continued)
(C) Market Risk (Continued)

(i) Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis
The management determines that the Group’s
exposure of interest rate risk was not significant
and hence no sensitivity analysis is prepared.

(D) Fair Values

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in
time and are based on relevant market information
and information about the financial instruments.
These estimates are subjective in nature and involve
uncertainties and matters of significant judgment
and therefore cannot be determined with precision.
Changes in assumptions could significantly affect the
estimates.

For financial reporting purpose, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or
3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the
fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement
in its entirety, which are described as follows:

* Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

* Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and
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33.

34.

148

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management (Continued)
(D) Fair Values (Continued)
* Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

None of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities are calculated in level 1,2 and 3 during the
reporting period.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets
and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated
statement of financial position approximate their
respective fair values.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and
services commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a
sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets
to reduce debt.

The Group manages capital by regularly monitoring its current
and expected liquidity requirement rather than using debt/
equity ratio analysis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁéﬂﬁﬁiﬁq %‘I For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE=Z—AF+-A=+—HILFE

35. COMMITMENTS

(a) Operating lease commitments and arrangements
As lessee
The Group had total future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating lease falling as follows:

35. &g

(a) REHEERERZH
TERAEA
AEERBEZIBO AT HBLEE
ERARKEEEEMNRENT -

2016 2015

—g-xE  —T-Ef

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHT T8

Within one year —FR 1,249 1,099
In the second to fifth years E_FZEERF 8,468 352
9,717 1,451

As lessor

The Group had total future minimum lease receivable
under non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants
falling due as follows:

ERH A

AEBEEEEFRER N TH
HEEHEARREREAERRRIE
W

2016 2015

—E—XREF —E—FF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTET FHET

Within one year —FR 853 —
In the second to fifth years F_FEERF 114 —
967 —
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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35. COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Capital commitment
The Group had the following capital commitment:

BRI EREE

Contracted but not provided for
— Capital injection of a subsidiary

— —ENELREE

35. &g (&)

(b) BEAEYE
REBBUTEAREE

2016
—E—RE

2015
—ZT-HF
HK$'000
FET

HK$’000
TExT

1,164 3,583

36. MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH
RELATED PARTIES

(a) Key management personnel compensation
Remuneration for key management personnel of the
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s directors
as disclosed in note 8 and certain of the highest paid
employees as disclosed in note 9, is as follows:

36. EXBEEALRE KRR

(a) TEEBAE2HE
AEBTEEEASHS (BIEHES
B NIAARES 2 BRI

FREENETRSHEEZEE) W

T

2016
S

2015
—E-HF
HK$'000
TET

HK$’000
FERT

Short-term employees benefits  EHHMESEFI 2,131 1,332
Post-employment benefits EIREF] 18 8
Amount due to a related person FE{T—ZREEA T FIE 24 2,987 3,659

5,136 4,999

(b) Transactions with other related parties
Other than those transactions disclosed elsewhere in
the consolidated financial statements, the Group has no
transactions or balances with other related parties during
the year ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁ:éﬂﬁiﬁiﬁi %I For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE=-—Z—A~"F+=-A=+—ALFE

37. HEMBREER
(a) REE—RBRERERD(R=-F—LF

37. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

(a) Placing of shares under general mandate (issued on

19 January 2017)

Subsequently to the reporting period, pursuant to the
placing agreement dated 19 January 2017, the Company
appointed the placing agent to procure, on a best effort
basis, placees to subscribe for up to 100,000,000 shares
of the Company at a price of HK$0.420 per share. On
19 January 2017, the Company issued and allotted
100,000,000 shares at the net placing price of HK$0.42
each to not less than six allottees. The closing market
price was HK$0.51 per share of the Company on the
date on which the terms of the issue were fixed. Up to the
date of this Report, the net proceeds was approximately
HK$41,160,000 (approximately HK$0.412 per share) and
i) approximately HK$30,000,000 was used to partially
repay outstanding promissory notes; (ii) approximately
HK$8,000,000 was lent out for the money lending business;
and (iii) remaining proceeds were used as general working
capital as at the date of this announcement.

Details were disclosed in the Company’s announcements
dated 9 January 2017 and 19 January 2017.

— A+ B#T)

RERR REAPA-ZT—tF—
BT+hBzEERHZE  NATEEE
EREBIRBHI| N EEREERBAE
BRBM0420BTHNERIBRES
100,000,000 f2 3 - R=F—tF—
B+AB  AATRFEEEERR
120.42 BRLBEARD RSN BRBE AT
2 E2$100,000,0008% B 17 © 2D T BR
PREERTHRRBHAZUTEAS
fR05178T - EEAREBY - Fi8
FIERELN 541,160,000 7T (WER
BR130.41285T) » MARAQAHEE -
(i)#930,000,0003% 7T FAEEBER D &
BEANESE ; (ii)48,000,0007% 7T
ERBERMER . R(ii)T rgsuE
AE—REEES -
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37. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD (CONTINUED)

152

(b) Placing convertible notes under general mandate

(c)

EVERSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

(issued on 23 March 2017

Subsequently to the reporting period, pursuant to the
placing agreement dated 3 March 2017, the Company
appointed the placing agent to procure, on a best effort
basis, placees to subscribe for up to convertible notes of
the Company up to principal amount of HK$86,000,000
at the initial conversion price of HK$0.43 per conversion
share. The maximum number of Conversion Shares
issuable upon conversion of the convertible notes shall be
subject to the threshold of 200,535,471 Shares (subject
to consolidation or subdivision) or such number of shares
which may be permissible to be issued under the general
mandate. The Company intended that i) approximately
HK$30,000,000 be used to settle the consideration in
relation to the acquisition of 40% issued share capital
of First Surplus Investments Limited; ii) approximately
HK$30,000,000 will be lent as loans to customers under
the Group’s money lending business; iii) approximately
HK$10,000,000 will be used for procurement of inventories
of the commodities trading business; and iv) the remaining
net proceeds will be used as general working capital
including, among others, staff costs, legal and professional
fees and other operating costs. On 23 March 2017, the
Company issued convertible notes of principal in aggregate
of HK$86,000,000 and the net proceeds of approximately
HK$83,420,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$0.417 per
conversion shares) was received by the Company.

Acquisition of 40% issued share capital of First
Surplus Investments Limited

On 9 January 2017, Ottoman Evershine Holdings Limited
(“EGH"), a direct wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
and an independent third party of the Company (“FSI
Vendor”) entered into a sales and purchase agreement
(“SPA”), pursuant to which EGH would conditionally
acquire 40% of the issued share capital (“Sale Shares *) of
First Surplus Investments Limited (“FSI”) at consideration
of HK$80,000,000 (“FSI Consideration”) and satisfied
by (i) HK$30,000,000 by cash upon completion and (ii)
HK$50,000,000 by way of issue of the promissory note to
the FSI Vendor or his nominee(s) upon completion.

KIEEEZRRERAF

37. REMREH )
(b) RE—REEEETRREB(R=-F

(c)

—tF=A=+=A%1T

HEPE REBHA-_ZT—LF=
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37. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD (CONTINUED)

(c) Acquisition of 40% issued share capital of First

Surplus Investments Limited (CONTINUED)

Pursuant to the SPA, the FSI Vendor irrevocably and
unconditionally guarantee to EGH that the audited
consolidated net profit after taxation (excluding unusual
or extraordinary items) of the Target Group for the year
ended 31 December 2017 (the “Actual Profit”), which is (i)
based on the financial statements prepared in accordance
with the HKFRS (the “Audited Financial Statements”); and
(i) to be audited by auditor(s) assigned or agreed by EGH,
shall not be less than HK$14,000,000 (the “Guaranteed
Profit”). Pursuant to the SPA, in the event that the Actual
Profit is less than the Guaranteed Profit, EGH shall be
entitled to require the FSI Vendor to compensate in one of
the following manner:

(i) compensation of amount in respect of the shortfall (the
“Compensation Sum”) calculated in accordance with
the following formula:

Compensation Sum = (Guaranteed Profit — Actual
Profit) x Guaranteed Profit

For the avoidance of doubt, the maximum amount of
Compensation Sum payable by the FSI Vendor shall
be HK$50,000,000; or

(i) EGH shall have the right during the period from the
issue of the Audited Financial Statements to 30 June
2018 (both days inclusive) and at its full discretion to
sell the Sale Shares to the FSI Vendor at the price
equivalent to the FSI Consideration, whereupon the
FSI Vendor shall have the obligation to purchase the
Sale Shares at such price (the “Put Option”). For the
avoidance of doubt, no additional premium or other
money is payable for exercise of the Put Option by
EGH.

On 17 March 2017, all the conditions precedent of the
acquisition of the Sale Shares have been fulfilled and FSI
became an associate of the Company.

Details were disclosed in the Company’s announcements
dated 20 January 2017, 20 February 2017 and 17 March
2017.
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

38. BRI &R

2016 2015
—g-xE  —T-Ef
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT T8t
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M > BERRZE 48 60
Interests in subsidiaries NN E 200,172 152,149
200,220 152,209
Current assets REEE
Other receivables and deposit paid HitnfEWRER B[RS 336 10,038
Amount due from associates FEUR B E N B FRIE 13,249 19,250
Cash and cash equivalents HeRESEEY 3,502 19,167
17,087 48,455
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables HAh (SRR 3,636 3,868
Convertible notes GIE:) &2 — 38,523
Promissory notes R ENE 27,509 27,170
31,145 69,561
Net current liabilities REEERE (14,058) (21,106)
Total assets less current liabilities ZEEABRRSEE 186,162 131,103
Non-Current Liabilities FREBEE
Promissory Notes 7 E 83,176 —
Convertible Notes AR EE 25,800 —
108,976 —
NET ASSETS EEFE 77,186 131,103
EQUITY AND RESERVES Rk #E
Share capital B 959,333 908,401
Reserves ffE (882,147) (777,298)
TOTAL EQUITY RSB 77,186 131,103

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

24 March 2017.

Chan Ming Kei Ling Ko Yin Jason
(CF 728 mER
Director Director

EE EE
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

The reserve of the Company is as follow:
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38. BA#ARR & ()
RABREOT -

Convertible
notes Accumulated
reserve losses Total
CIE-Ji
SEM#E 25TE#R it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TExT FExT FEx
At 31 December 2014 and R=Z-WFE+=A=+—H
at 1 January 2015 E-Z2-R&E—f—A —  (690,161)  (690,161)
Issue of convertible notes BITARIREE 11,063 — 11,063
Loss for the year FREE — (98,200) (98,200)
At 31 December 2015 and R-Z2-FF+=-HA=+—H
at 1 January 2016 R—E-~&—F—H 11,063  (788,361)  (777,298)
Issuance of New Share due to conversion of [H &R AIARZE
Convertible Notes mEATHARAD (11,063) — (11,063)
Issuance of new convertible bonds BATHAARES 3,433 — 3,433
Loss for the year FREE — (97,219) (97,219)
At 31 December 2016 RZE-—RE+ZB=+—H 3,433 (885,580) (882,147)
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 39. REEMB AT 2=

The details of principal subsidiaries are set as follows: FEWNBARZFHBEHRINNOT ¢

Proportion of ownership interest

iRt 4 3-hd]
Place of incorporation/  Particulars of issued/registered
establishment and and Group's effective holding
Name of company operation paid up capital rEEERES Principal activity
HMEL/HIR B&f/EMRR 2016 2015
NAER Tenl BAREHE —B-RF “E-1F  IEEE
Mega Field International Limited ~ Hong Kong 1 share of 100% 100%  Fashion Garment
ERERERAF 55 HK$1 each (Direct) (Direct) ~ FssfR%:
1REETET RS (B%) (E%)
Argos Enterprise Management ~ PRC Registered capital of 100% 100%  Investment holdings
Consultant (Nanjing) Limited & RMB4,000,000 (Indirect) (Indirect) ~ BEER
(note i) FMERARE (1) (B)
Bt EEER (F) ARLT 4,000,007
(Wit
Xuzhou China International Travel PRC Registered capital of 90% 90%  Provision of tour services
Service Limited (note ii) il RMB1,500,000 (Indirect) (Indirect) and transportation
BNREERRTHARAT AMERARE () (B RESERERES
(i) 1,500,0007¢
Ottoman Evershine Insaat Proje  Turkey Paid up capital of 100% 100% Investment holdings
Ticaret Anonim Sirketi TEH US$50,000 (Indirect) (Indirect) ~ REFRMR
B RAS50,000% 7T (E#) ()
Ottoman Evershine Finance Limited Hong Kong 1 share of 100% 100%  Money Lending
RS HEERAT A HK$1 each (Indirect) (indiect) &
1REE1ET RS (E#) (B%)
Solution Gold Limited British Virgin Island 1 share of 100% 100%  Investment holdings
RERLHE US$1 each (Direct) (Direct)  REER
1REE1%T (E%) (E%)
R4
Pro-King Corporation Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares of 100% 100%  Investment holdings
BHERAR Bh HK$1 each (Direct) (Direct) K&K
10000R S REE (ER) (BR)
)l v
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39. RERMBR B 2 = (&)

39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)
Proportion of ownership interest
iRt 4 3]
Place of incorporation/  Particulars of issued/registered
establishment and and Group’s effective holding
Name of company operation paid up capital rEEERKE Principal activity
HMAL/RLR BE#fT/ERR 2016 2015
DLET aE4Y ESEAHE SN C3-5F XM
EREARES (B BRAF  PRC Registered capital of 100% 100%  Trading
H RMBS,000,000 (Indirect) (indiect) &5
&R A KHS,000,0007T (E#%) ()
Prosperous Link Investments British Virgin Island 50,000 ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Investment holdings
Limited ABELHE US$1 each (Direct) (Direct)  BEER
50,0008 B REE (%) (E%)
122 EBR
Worthy Victory Limited British Virgin Island 1 ordinary share of 100% 100%  PRC operating rights of
ABELEE US$1 each (Direct) (Direct) ~ mobile application
1REE (E%) (Bf) FRERRA<HELSER
122 EBR
Patalogue Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares of 100% 100%  Mobile application business
KELERAR Bk HK$1 each (Direct) (Direct) ~ FHEREFH
10,000R B REE (E%) (E%)
1T ZRH
Vital Fortune International British Virgin Island 50,000 ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Investment holdings
Investment Limited RBELEE US$1 each (Direct) (Direct) ~ BEER
BEERREERAR 50,000REREE1 X2 EBR (BE%) (BE%)
Fortune Ford Limited Hong Kong 10,001 shares of 100% 100%  Investment holdings
BABERAR 0 total HK$10,492,837 (Indirect) (Indrect) ~ KEER
10,001 R4 (Bif) (B#%)
(5410492837 T0)
SNRZBEESERAT PRC Registered capital 100% 100%  Investment holdings
EF' US$1,000,000 (Indirect) (Indrect)  REER
EER1,000,000% 7 (i) (B#)
HBERRER AR PRC Registered capital 90% 90%  Construction and development
G RMB1,000,000 (Indirect) (Indirect) of Cemetery
ERERARE1,000,0007 (i) (B LEERRER
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

Name of company

AFER

Ottoman Evershine Holdings

Limited
R SERERAT

Maxwise Limited
#2ERAA

Sharp Pick Ventures Limited

Spring Hero Development Limited

Victory Team Group Limited

Notes:

Place of incorporation/  Particulars of issued/registered

establishment and and
operation paid up capital
HMAL/ RIK EBfT/EMR
BEsY BARARE
British Virgin Island 50,000 ordinary shares of
ABELHE USS1 each
50,000REREE 1 X2 EBR

Hong Kong 10,000 shares of
e HK$1 each
10000RERER BT 2Rt

British Virgin Island 50,000 ordinary shares of
ABELHE US$1 each
50000k EREEI X T2 EBR

British Virgin Island 50,000 ordinary shares of
RBELEE US$1 each
50,000REREE 1 X2 EBR

British Virgin Island 1 ordinary share of
ABRLHEE US$1 each
1REE1ZT EBR

(i) Registered under the laws of the PRC as wholly foreign-owned

enterprise.

(i) Registered under the laws of the PRC as limited liability enterprise.
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Proportion of ownership interest

ity 4 ]

Group's effective holding

AREERKA

2016 2015
“E-1F

ZE-RE

100%
(Direct)
()

55%
(Indirect)
()
100%
(Direct)
(EE)

100%
(Direct)
(B%)

51% 51%
(Indirect) (Indirect)
(B8) (B8)

HEE -

39. REEMBR T 2 E#H (F

Principal activity

IRRH
Investment holdings

REER
Trading of chrome ore
#BRRS

Rental service

RER%

Rental service

BER%

Investment holdings

REER

(i) WREPEEEZMAIEGBELE -

(i) REBEPEEAERIMAERETLE -
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39. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have
material non-controlling interests

The summarised financial information below represents
amounts before intragroup eliminations:

MHBEZEERAF

39. RERMBR B 2= (&)

BAEA KBRS 2 AN EA T
B

TS ERBENENBREERA T
A2 2 -

MHBEZEERO A

2016
—E-AF

HK$°000
TR

Current assets MEEE 7,098 876
Non-current assets FREEE 112,317 118,024
Current liabilities nEEE (12,691) (633)
Non-current liabilities FRBEE - =
Equity attributable to shareholders of ARARRREIEERE
the Company 96,051 105,553
Non-controlling interests e iER 10,673 12,714
MRS EZRERAR MBS ERRERAT
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2016 2015
B=E HE
—B-XF T
+=A=+-8 +=A=+—~
IEEE IEFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FiET
Revenue g 9 —
Expenses FxX (2,416) (261)
Loss for the period HREE (2,407) (261)
Loss attributable to non-controlling 3 RR S FE(RETIE
interests (241) (26)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from: BWERACRE)FE
Operating activities K EE 5,911 (261)
Investing activities RETE (3,412) —
Financing activities RLESEE 9 =
Net cash outflow BE R FEE (2,508) (261)
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40.

160

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2016

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a few amendments and new standards
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December
2016 and which have not been adopted in these financial
statements. These include the following which may be relevant
to the Group:

New and revised HKFRSs that are not mandatorily effective
for the current year

The Group has not applied any of the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet mandatorily
effective:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments’

HKFRS 15 and amendments Revenue from Contracts with
to HKFRS 15 Customers'’

HKFRS 16 Leases?

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions’

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Disclosure Initiative4

Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses#*

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 7
Amendments to HKAS 12

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be

determined
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

EVERSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED  kiEEEZERBER AR

40. CBRGEEEARBE-E—R"E+=

B=+— R FEERMHET - HE
BRRET SRS

BEAMBHREATEEH  FBSFAL
ERBTERRBE-Z2 - E+=A8
=T -BLEFEERNSIRGET R E
8 MAEE N AREARMBRERFEHRAL
ZETRHER - Hh WA EARE
HZERIZEINT

REEWEBFERZHATREETER
FrRs & 2Rl

ZNEL [ AR A T SRR 2 BB AR {E 1) R 2E
A R 7] RAS R BB RS2

BEMBREERFN
BRMBREERE155
REBHBIREER

SR A
BRMBMEERF 65 AE?

ERMITA
RAFFZAHKE"

BBUBREERE2E  UROA/ER A
BIA XA ERETE

BERUBMEERE105 REFLEABENT
REBSTTENENE HeELEHZ

HIES BEES
BRETEMETRETA RKEE!
BBETHERIE125% RAEREREDE

BaA EHRERE

' R=B-\F— B - BRbRRR 2 F R

2 %?%—ﬂi—ﬁ—ﬁﬁﬂféﬁﬁ&ﬁZﬁE?ﬁﬁeﬁ

3 %%%EEZE%&M%%%‘ZEE%%E

4 g;g—tE—H—EﬁLXféliﬁﬁé‘Zifiﬁﬂﬁuﬁ
R o



ST

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁéﬂﬁiﬁiﬁi %I For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE—ZE—A~E+-A=+—HI&EE

40. CBRGEEEARBE-E—R"E+=

40. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2016 (CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs that are not mandatorily effective
for the current year (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 has introduced new requirements for a) classification
and measurement of financial assets, b) impairment of financial
assets and c) general hedge accounting.

Specifically, with regard to the classification and measurement
of financial assets, HKFRS 9 requires all recognised
financial assets that are within the scope of HKFRS 9 to be
subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value. Debt
investments that are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal outstanding are generally measured
at amortised cost at the end of each of the subsequent
accounting periods. Debt investments that are held within a
business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and that
have contractual terms that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding, are generally
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVTOCI). All other debt investments and equity investments
are measured at their fair value at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. Further, under HKFRS 9, entities may
make an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held
for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by an
acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 applies)
in other comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss and that cumulative fair
value changes will not be reclassified to profit or loss upon
derecognition of the investment.

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS
9 requires that the amount of change in the fair value of a
financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk
of that liability is presented in other comprehensive income,
unless the recognition of such changes in other comprehensive
income would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in
profit or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a financial
liability’s credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit
or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in
the fair value of the financial liability designated as fair value
through profit or loss is presented in profit or loss.

B=+—BIEEEERMET - 58
BIRRE TS RINEE (&)

REEWEBFERZHITREETER
B35 22 R (48)

BB BB EREIN LM T A
EBYBRELERFEIRSIAa) TRMEE
ZRERE  b)ERABEZREKS) —
REPEF 2 HIRE o

ERmE  DEmEEZ)ENRTER
> BB REEREORERBE B
BHELNFORHEBN CIECHERAS
BMEEHRZBERAIRQFESE - R
EREWEENRERE < EBERX AN
B RHEENRERBEAINEAERRK
BEATAEZEBRE  —RNREKE
S B R RBERATE - REB
ERFWETNREREREETHMEESR
REGZEBRARNES - BEREER]
NIFRARD N RERKREERS TR
B2 EBRE  —REAFEFARME
EWA(RAFESFAEMEEYA DG
B -FIAEHMEBRERRAREZAR
S MBARE 2 AFERE - W R
BEBMBRELERFES - BERITUNT
BEMEEREMEEBAZIIBRARE
(MIFFEEERE B BREEDFEIN
FrER 2 R T XK SHHER 2R
RE) AR AVEZE  MBEENER
AR REWARNK L EIZRER
ZI A TESBETEEN I ERES -

HNEERBRAFESABRCEHMEE
T8 HAMBHREEREIRRE - BRI
REMEEWABIEESFERREEH 2
FESOYYEAESE 2SR - T8
ZE2PSIEEREBELATEEZYEH
REMEEWAZS - SREEEERR
SRR TESBHETSEHR I HER
i o RIBEBETHEREIN - IHERR
NFEFAES.EMEEATELZDR
BEFINBERRED -
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POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2016 (CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs that are not mandatorily effective
for the current year (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

With regard to impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9
has adopted an expected credit loss model, as opposed to
an incurred credit loss model required under HKAS 39. In
general, the expected credit loss model requires an entity to
assess the change in credit risk of the financial asset since
initial recognition at each reporting date and to recognise the
expected credit loss depending on the degree of the change in
credit risk.

With regard to the general hedge accounting requirements,
HKFRS 9 retains the three types of hedge accounting
mechanisms currently available in HKAS 39. Under HKFRS
9, greater flexibility has been introduced to the types of
transactions eligible for hedge accounting, specifically
broadening the types of instruments that qualify for hedging
instruments and the types of risk components of non-financial
items that are eligible for hedge accounting. In addition, the
effectiveness test has been overhauled and replaced with
the principle of an ‘economic relationship’. Retrospective
assessment of hedge effectiveness is also no longer required.
Enhanced disclosure requirements about an entity’s risk
management activities have also been introduced.

HKFRS 16 Leases
HKFRS 16 will supersede the current lease guidance including
HKAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations when it
becomes effective.

With regard to lessee accounting, the distinction of operating
leases and finance leases, as required by HKAS 17, has
been replaced by a model which requires a right-of-use asset
and a corresponding liability to be recognised for all leases
by lessees except for short-term leases and leases of low
value assets. Specifically, the right-of-use asset is initially
measured at cost and subsequently measured at cost (subject
to certain exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, adjusted for any re-measurement of the
lease liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the
present value of the lease payments that are not paid at that
date. Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for interest
and lease payments. Furthermore, the classification of cash
flows will also be affected as operating lease payments under
HKAS 17 are presented as operating cash flows; whereas,
under the HKFRS 16 model, the lease payments will be split
into a principal and an interest portion which will be presented as
financing and operating cash flows respectively.
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40. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW

41.

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2016 (CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs that are not mandatorily effective
for the current year (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

With regard to lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS
17, and continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either as
an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, HKFRS 16 requires extensive disclosures in the
financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution
of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture

The amendments to 10 and HKAS 28 deal with situations where
there is a sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture. Specifically, the amendments
state that gains or losses resulting from the loss of control of
a subsidiary that does not contain a business in a transaction
with an associate or a joint venture that is accounted for using
the equity method, are recognised in the parent’s profit or loss
only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in that
associate or joint venture. Similarly, gains and losses resulting
from the re-measurement of investments retained in any former
subsidiary (that has become an associate or a joint venture
that is accounted for using the equity method) to fair value
are recognised in the former parent’s profit or loss only to the
extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in the new associate
or joint venture.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these development is expected to be in the period
of initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of
them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 24 March
2017.

41.
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the

Group for the last five financial years is set out below:

AEMBHE

EHREIT

For the year ended 31 December

BEt-RA=1t—-HLEE

AEEBEREVRFEXEUAREERE

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
“E-xE ZE-1f CZZ-MFE C—Z-=F "B--F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TRT THRT FHET THET THRT
(Re-presented) (Re-presented)
(&E5) (E5))
Revenue from continuing REBESEEK Y
operations e 135,462 72,900 45,792 32,703 23,194
Loss before taxation BBATEE (68,546) (29,866) (19,648) (49,059) (27,430)
Profit from discontinued operations 3 &1 & 4 1t 275 > %7 2,706 16,108 (3,520) (5,511) (28,823)
Taxation B 916 228 20 (12) —
Loss for the year REEER (64,924) (13,530) (23,148) (54,582) (56,253)
Net loss from ordinary THEEZAEER
activities b
attributable to shareholders RS (65,399) (11,996) (19,926) (50,582) (46,192)
attributable to non-controlling JEEE R (L
interests 475 (1,534) (3,222) (4,000) (10,061)

As at 31 December

R+=A=1+-H
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
ZE-RF “ZE-F1F “E-E —E-=F —E-C—F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET T TET TEr
Total assets BEE 421,923 308,576 131,701 112,775 158,733
Total liabilities FN=TE (227,441) (91,809) (94,965) (52,842) (187,800)
Non-controlling interests FERES (12,667) (8,701) 19,657 16,435 12,435
181,815 208,066 56,393 76,368 (16,632)
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